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GROUP OVERVIEW
BN

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
(the "Company”) is the listed flagship in Hong Kong of
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”), and is also
one of the first Red Chips listed in Hong Kong
BERERCEXARAR ([F27]) TEHEEFRAR ([HHE
W) EBEELTAR TRAEHNESB LHNAER s —

Since the implementation of the transformation strategy, the
business layout is clearly visible and well poised to take-off

BRBREBAR EBEMREWR R E8F%

- parking assets operation and management business and
urban renewal business are both developing rapidly.
New business scale has been ever-expanding
FEEERLERRNMENEBEFREER
MEBBRETEHREA

- Proactively reduces old business volume and gradually

Our mission
and vision:

be a trustworthy superior
asset investor and operator,

withdraws
FTEEBEEEREBE  WESRY

make city life better

FomES:
KEESEBEBNEBREERE
Our values: value investment, & R R B K AF

excellent products, open and inclusive

BEE  marps suEsS RS

1. Must uphold the principle of value
investment
VABRFEEIRERA
.Be committed to providing the best
products and services to society
BAOR RS R R IF O E R IR
.Be a trustworthy, open and inclusive
investor

H—EEREE AREENKREE




The Company is listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

RABREBB M EMR -

Completed business transformation,
and acquired parking asset operation
and private equity management
business in China

TERERER WRETHREEEFESR
ERENLEESERER

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
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MILESTONES
EEE

Entered in rapid
development period in 2019

20195 B ARER RS @

Shougang Group and

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
(now known as CK Hutchison
Holdings Limited) successfully
acquired the Company in 1992
BMEEBMARIERX (SE)AR
RAN(BBRINCLCEEARAGF)
1992 F B I BB AR 2 A

Commenced asset restructuring,
and sold Qinhuangdao business,
including steel manufacturing,
mineral mining and processing
FREESEH HEZEHEK B
15 A B3 - B YRR BR R N T2 7

Insisted firmly on the transformation
strategy, developed the main
business, reduced the old business,
divested relevant assets, and
introduced strategic shareholders for
coordinated development
BREEREE BRIEEL BR
EAXRT HMERAEE 5| ABB
PR - R E R R
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GROUP STRUCTURE

SEHER

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed
to building China’s leading car parking assets operation and
management and urban renewal fund management company.

As at 31 December 2018
M 20184612 A31H

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BREBEEFRADF
(697.HK)

Parking Business

FEER

Shouzhong
Investment
Management Co.,
Ltd.
BPREEBAR

NG

Urban
Renewal Fund
Management
Business
BHEHES
E43

Beijing-Hebei
Co-development
Exhibition Zone
(Tangshan) Fund
Management Co.,

Ltd.
REBHREFRTE
B(EL) £eER

BRRATA

Iron Ore Trading
Business

HIROEZ XK

Shougang
Concord Shipping
Holdings Limited
BRMESEER

NG

Shareholding in
Listed Companies

¥R ETARE

ARAIREMBAR ([FAEE])BRINITE
FREEENEEEELEEENMTERES

EBRNF -

Shougang Fushan
Resources Group
Limited
BifELEREE
BRAR (639.HK)

35.71%

Shougang
Concord Century
Holdings Limited
BEREEEEAR

7] (103.HK)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

For the year ended 31 December/

As at 31 December

BE12B31BLEEE
®W12A31H

2018 2017 8 (%)

HKS$ Million HK$ Million

EBEHETT B FE T
Revenue B 1,676 3,816 (56.1%)
Gross profit margin EHE 9.6% 0.2% 9.4%
Profit attributable to shareholders [i% 2R FE 5 & A 353 57 516.4%
Earnings per share (HK cents) SRRER (EM) 1.75 0.56 212.5%
Total assets BmEE 9,430 8,186 15.2%
Net assets attributable to shareholders A% JE/EF & E 8,966 7,025 27.6%
Cash and bank balances Re RRITIFR 3,034 1,490 103.7%
Asset-liability Ratio BEBEXR 4.61% 11.52% (6.91%)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Dear shareholders,

all potential investors, employees and business partners who
care about the growth of the company,

“Work all day long and go with the times.” During the past
year, we have demonstrated greater confidence in advancing
strategic transformation to achieve development by changing
lane; we have gained more experience in tactical arrangement,
lean management and splitting complex issues into the most
simplified units.

During the year, the Company held 16 board meetings and 23
director-level special sessions. For its parking business, contracts
have been signed for in aggregate 22,128 new parking lots in
Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging, Chengdu and other cities. The
urban renewal fund under our management reached RMB30
billion, of which about RMB11 billion was newly increased.
The turnover of the iron ore trading continued to decline while
the gross profit margin increased significantly. Its associated
companies also achieved good returns. Moreover, two major
asset restructurings and one share subscription were conducted
during the year which further optimized our asset structure.

During the year, the Company has achieved a profit attributable
to shareholders of HK$353 million, with a year-on-year increase
of 516.4%; whereas the asset-liability ratio fell to 4.61%, with
accounts receivable and notes receivable decreased by HK$706
million to HK$117 million, representing a decrease of 85.8%;
cash reserves increased by HK$1.544 billion, up to HK$3.034
billion. Based on the confidence in the Company’s development
and aspiration to give back to the shareholders, the Company
is pleased to announce that the board has recommended
to distribute 2018 dividends in the total amount of HK$700
million to shareholders and plans to distribute dividends of not
less than HK$700 million to shareholders each year from 2019
to 2022.

BEREBRGESREAT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERESE

BRABIR :

AREUALABKENEEREE BTH
EBRH-

(R AR BEETJE—F RATEHEE
BREL BERABERREATERNARE:
a—F - WPIERMLR S BaElE  $EME
BRVFRNETTEETEZHNER-

FEN RRAIBHEEGION BREZEED
MBEBEE2IN: FEEFAEILR - L -EE -
A SR 4B (722,128 T E#T &S
BRI ERNAREI00E T ERHIEEE
MEOARENETL BBEAEHEEEE
BER EFEKNERA BEAFTBIRET
B FABEITT2REREESMHEM K
BRORE #E—LEBLLTEELE-

FEAN RARAERREEMGGFNABMEIS3E
T REERS164% EEBBEXTRE
4.61% ' FEUW AR Fk K B W AR R D B 670618
TL R EBEIATEIL F1885.8% B &
G N 15,4418 T EB 30348 L &
RERRERZEOCNEBRRBENRE R
2 RRIMAEM018F E MR EIR S BT
B WHE2019F 22022 F BF AR E IR
BABIRTHAR:
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERESE

Under the complicated economic environment in 2018, the
Company's above-mentioned achievements are the result of
joint efforts of all partners. As a Hong Kong listed company,
we are turning into a company with an innovative business
model, good cash flow, stable and healthy operation. Evolution
of the organization is steadily promoted, rapidly iterated and
upgraded. We make progress every quarter, every month and
even every day. With the common mission and vision and
the forming of a shared value, the team is transforming into
a real team. Next, on behalf of the board of directors of the
Company, | report to you on our efforts and achievements over
the past year.

CHAPTER 1. STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION AND
REVIEW

The “grey rhino” stands there, and the “black swan” often
flies over as well. An excellent business management team with
leaping over the economic cycle as its goal can turn a business
idea of “what to do” into a real business of “what should be
done” in an uncertain economic environment.

For the Company, our challenges are to smoothly and safely
retreat from traditional business, seize the opportunities of
rapid growth for new business, maintain sufficient quality
and speed, and achieve transition in different dimensions,
which require the abilities of deep thinking, broad cognitive
dimension and fast learning from our team.

H2018F SREEMRNREREZ T ARNE
ERKEREEBRHFRRB INER  HME
ERB—REFEERN RERRTF EE
S RENEE LT AR e WA B A
EERE REERAR BFE - FADE
BREAFEN ERRANESBEI 2T X
RIEESEETK BERRABKAEENE
B-TEHEAKRRREFTFE ASMEREM
EBE—FRMHSE HMESFHR-

F-EHRHITEEE

[ St BIAETAE - [REI LA H R
MBI — (BT R LB AT
HEAE BEETETMHMEERES 1T
[AE M BE ] 89 B AT B [ WA 11 ) 0
273

HRRFME  BIIRDEEER FREMIEER
REPL 2R INEFEF ) REFIE R
B IRIFE S E B - B E T A AR
HYBE & BB IIBEEG B E T EER R
MR EE BEFEER-
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Parking business segment: flourishing
development with strategic focus

Through the investment and operation of parking assets,
we have achieved product upgrades, management
empowerment and service value increase, in order to
provide better services to users, and thus obtain good
returns from assets.

In the past year, the investment intensity in parking
assets has been continuously increased. By defining a
clear regional layout, we have focused on parking assets
with high traffic, huge potential and good returns, and
promoted efficiency in asset construction and operation
as well as provided users with structural opportunities
for parking consumption upgrade.

During the year, the Company has acquired 22,128
parking lots through contracts awarded to the Company,
increased by 307% (year-on-year), with an actual
acquisition of 30,513 parking lots (some contracts
were signed in February 2019). These parking lots were
strictly selected out from more than 300 car parking
projects on retention and 80 projects which were put
forward to meetings for discussion in 2018. Although
it's below the target of 50,000 parking lots proposed in
the 2017 Chairman’s Statement, the team has adhered
to the bottom line of profits, ensured asset quality as
the priority and strived to reach the optimal results. We
believe that, based on the achievements made during
the year, the Company is capable of fully exerting its
efforts in 2019. By setting the key performance index
for the management team to be the acquirement
of 100,000 parking lots, we will be able to further
consolidate the leading position in the industry.

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERESE

FEEXBRA - RREZED BHK
BRED

BfREFEEENREMNKEE &R
EmTA ERBMEMREIEE /B
PREZEFHNRE EMESRIFNE
EWE -

EREN—FF BASENKEEE
ENRERE PAERKGR &%
ARER BOAK WHEENEEEE
FE RBAEENEREEZMNE R
BRAFPHEREEETRNEBILH

&= o
=

FRFEHERENM22,128F B R
307% BERER (S5 E2019F2 A 5%
PK# 49) 30,5138 iR LM B2
2 FHBiB300E B 518 B & - 801A
FeBEETRRBHFEL RN -HEAK
20174 X % &5 $8 H #950,0001E &
VHEZ BEKRRETRERS:
WRBEEEERELEREZ B
TR&EEREL -BRMEBELTF
RITENERLE 2019F 8 e2mE %
N AREKEEBBERNEZEEZER
100,0001E &8 fi7 - LA 25 B 7 3 <B 5 &9 i
fi ©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERESE

(1)

)

Define attributes of the category to create
cutting-edge products for the future

In 2017, the Company formulated the investment
principle of “key cities, prime locations and
quality parking spaces”. In 2018, we have further
clarified the category attributes of parking assets.
In the area of investment, we have continuously
focused on the first-tier and second-tier key
cities in China. In terms of the classification of
products, as always, we have focused on large-
scale transportation hubs, high-density public
utilities, and the supporting parking assets of
commercial properties with high traffic. For
the operation of specific projects, we have
further focused on high-quality projects in prime
locations.

With the accelerated popularization of
technologies such as 5G, smart driving, and the
Internet of Things, the car as a smart terminal
is about to usher in a magical moment. As the
key component in multiple scenes of travelling,
the future parking space will become a new
landscape with ultimate efficiency, green sharing,
and seamless intelligence.

Focus on market segments, and create
products of differentiated business forms

We have accelerated to make the team more
capable of polishing edge-cutting products in
market of differentiated business forms. We have
explored the investment and business models
with distinctive features in three sub-sectors,
namely transportation hubs, public facilities
and commercial properties, and have achieved
breakthroughs in implementation of major
projects.

(=)

(=)

55 1 i A58 1 - 728 I /5 AR AR HI B
BPE da

2017 RAIMEE T TERW T
BOME BEBMUINKRER
Bl 20185F B Mt — LRI T 1=
HEEMNREBE -ERERSE
mHERLE FEMBER— Z&
WERBTEE TEMELEDY
SDEL WA ERRRAR
R miaad - =% E QR EN
AMEREMWERLRENEFEE
E-TABEENBREL #—
FEEROMENEZIESE -

PEESG HREER MBEEFR
MEy IR E K TEERT R
iy B 765 30 2K A B B % o R R MO 4%
BEREALITHRRHIES
THER BE-EAREHSR 4
BRF BREENEZFESR -

BEMA TS {TEEELHFE
Eam
BFIMREAEBREZRENE
RETH 35 H +T FE SR #B A mm A Y
REERXBEA AHARE B
EWES=—AALRZEAFE
MEBREMEZEEN  BREKNR
B 87 Hh 2R B o
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Transportation hub parking

Based on its comprehensive knowledge of user
needs and deep understanding of the investment
and financing system for infrastructure in China,
the Company has formed a leading position in
airports and high-speed railway stations, and
etc. and has built its core competitiveness in
all links of the whole process of parking lots
ranging from design, investment, construction
and operation. During the year, in addition to the
parking buildings of Beijing Daxing International
Airport and Shanghai Honggiao Airport, the
Company has also acquired the long-term
operating rights of the parking lot of Guiyang
Longdongbao International Airport, which has
further consolidated its leading position among
airport parking building operators.

| would like to introduce to you the Beijing Daxing
International Airport Parking Building Project.
At present, the preparation for construction
and operation of the project is progressing
smoothly and has entered the stage of final
construction and final commissioning. The leasing
and operation together with the product design
are also progressing steadily as planned. The
project is scheduled to be put into operation
simultaneously with Beijing Daxing International
Airport in October 2019.

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

e

BRI E A

BAPERAPBRORELE
A B 3 7 B B R AR e B R B
HRAIER ERERS S
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERESE

As China's super-large integrated transportation
hub for international aviation, Beijing Daxing
International Airport is a new landmark for the
coordinated development of “Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei” integration. It will have the world's largest
single terminal upon completion and operation.
The airport’s long-term planning throughput of
passengers is 100 million person-time, and its
parking building will serve 12 million vehicles/
time annually. We target to build it into a
flagship benchmark project in category of the
comprehensive transportation hub, provide world-
class parking and travel service to customers and
travelers around the world.

Public utility parking

For public utility parking, we have focused on
the segment market of grade lll-level A hospitals
in the first-tier cities. | think many friends share
the same feeling as mine towards the quality of
these parking services: limited parking spaces
in hospitals has caused serious congestion in
the surrounding roads and this brings extremely
inconvenient to nearby residents and patients.
There is a huge demand and urgency to upgrade
the hospital parking lot. To this end, through
carrying out product innovation by changing the
ground parking lot to multi-storey parking lot, the
Company has made intensive land use and tapped
potential of resources, and also has improved
internal and external traffic environment of
hospitals as well as has realized a better unity of
economic benefits and social benefits.

IR AREBE RIS E RS BB
REEBE MG R BIREA 2
[FEE] —BRRERNT
2 EZRELRBEBEARARZK
REBRREE - EIERAKRET
REHLER—BAKX H5EEHE
BEERBERAE 2008 H
SR BMBEBEITERGE
REEAS SR A EE R RIE
B BAEARFAMZREIRME
AR IFEELITR -

NRAREEERE

ERRRMEEEE HAET
—ZEm [ =F] Bl E@EHAD
M5 o EE RN 5 EE MRS
mE RBREZARME — R
R BRELERIEFTE
RoASERREEETIE &K
B 3 JE R AN 28 & & AR R ANE
FEEZEERNFSIRBNERTT
RGBT B ARBBE
BRI TFTRIIEGRWAIF &
WAL REZEREN XK
ETBRANBBRRE BHR
TR e Mt & e B AT
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| want to share with you the China-Japan
Friendship Hospital project. There is, on average,
over 8,000 person-time of outpatients and
emergency patients every day and about 2,500
vehicles entering and exiting hospital daily, but
with limited 340 parking lots formerly. The limited
parking spaces had caused slow traffic, serious
congestion, and even affected passing through
of ambulances, which threatened the life safety
of patients. Our Company has utilized part of
the original ground parking lot and built a self-
propelled four-storey parking building with a total
area of 10,000 square meters, which can provide
520 parking lots, representing an increase of
53%. After implementation of the project, traffic
speed of the main roads around the hospital has
been at least doubled during peak hours, and
the average waiting time of vehicles has been
reduced by 80%. In addition, the top floor of the
parking building is also equipped with a medical
rescue helipad which allows a helicopter of less
than 8 tons to take off and land. It is the only
special medical facility in downtown Beijing that
seamlessly combines air and ground rescue, which
provides a new life channel for emergency rescue
of the seriously ill patients.

BEREBRGESREAT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERESE

Commercial property parking

The parking of commercial properties is
a relatively mature area. Our focus is on
adding value to the owners’ properties and
comprehensively improving operational
capabilities, including the provision of
professional advice on traffic flow forecasting,
moving line optimization and cost saving
aspects. Moreover, we have aimed to deliver fast
and “housekeeping” parking services during
operation.

In 2018, through project expansion and merger
and acquisition of equity, we acquired the
parking lot of New World Department Store in
core business district of Beijing, the parking lot
of Shangjing Tiandi in Shanghai and the parking
lot of the Wisdom Valley of Chengdu (Chengdu
Xibuzhigu Park), which further enriched the basic
portfolio of the Company’s parking business,
increased the size of parking spaces under
operation and management, and optimized the
regional layout of investment.

BRI EFER

FET 5 b B 15 B2 A AR S A A Y
XA RMAEHEINEE
THRERAMEEENEYTR
2 AN 58 7% o FRE fm B E 2 RE
N BRARTPRERHAEREAR
PRECMAONRENEERR
& HEEMMELRMORERRE
MIERA ] OEERS -

20184 HAFTEEIR B AERMAK
ROBHRN - HRIBET bR
ZOBBMERABSEES £
B R R RIS MK E T B
REREBESE E—HHRT
NANFEEBHEREE N
TESEENEURE BT
BRENEREME-
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Consolidate basic capabilities, create lean and
efficient operating system

For high-quality parking assets and premium
parking services, the Company’s commitment to
shareholders and users shall be met through lean
and efficient operation and management by all
colleagues and partners.

We have launched 5-Stars service system to
comprehensively improve the quality of parking
service. ldentification system for parking lots has
been constantly upgraded to make parking more
efficient to save every second for car owners; we
have paid attention to detailed management by
reasonably planning the parking space to ensure
vehicles enter and exit conveniently, and have
been always keeping the parking lots clean to
ensure good experience to car owners; safety
is paramount, we have guaranteed cameras
to operate 24 hours a day and have equipped
parking lots with 24-hour central control and
on-site security personnel to immediately meet
the customer needs. In 2019, the 5-Stars service
system will cover all parking lots under our
management. The Company has always been
committed to meeting the needs of customers,
and we hope that all users can experience the
quality of our parking services in every detail.

In 2019, the Company will continue to increase
its investment in parking technology. Innovative
products such as Al technology and immersive
services will also be launched gradually, and
management productivity will be further improved.

(
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4)

We have launched mixed parking consumption
products in several parking lots. Our team has
expanded the marketing coverage to a radius
of 3 kilometers away from the independent
parking lots and have attracted an increase
of 30% customers. A trail of differentiated
pricing strategy for different hours and different
sub-areas will be launched at Beijing Daxing
International Airport. Meanwhile, we have carried
out environmental and lighting improvement
projects in our parking lots. We hope that the
users could feel the warm light from S-Park on
their journeys.

Explore incremental benefits, expand the
innovative space for non-parking business

We know that excellent asset operators should
never be satisfied with value preservation, but
are good at finding opportunities to explore
incremental benefits. The parking business
inherently possesses dual attributes of traffic
and space, so non-parking business is a natural
extension of parking business and full of space
for innovation. We have in-depth cooperation
with Didi Group, Guazi second-hand car, and JD
Technology, and strive to deliver a better user
experience in areas of convenient transportation,
power charging services and new retail.

We have cooperated with Beijing avant-garde
artists to spice up our parking lots with graffiti art
elements, creating more youthful and fashionable
atmosphere in urban underground space. A
series of events such as graffiti show, flash mobs,
photography festivals, music festivals, and street
performances will be launched subsequently so as
to create a new hangout for urban fashion culture
to attract more young people.
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We have been constantly exploring on how to
shift parking lots from single parking space into
new multi-functional urban space. We believe,
by restructuring and integrating functions of
the space, our product can stand out among
the competitors whilst generate a great sense of
affinity and superimpose its future value.

Based on expansion of non-parking business
and exploration of urban space functionality, we
predict in 2019 that revenue from non-parking
business will account for more than 30% of the
total revenue.

| spend a lot of time to review how we polished
the parking business. | believe no matter how the
economic cycle is adjusted, we should consider
where constant rigid demand is, what unchanged
commercial essence is, and how to improve
efficiency, create products.

Regarding product, we can't be lazy, can't take
shortcuts. Do what we should do, every step
counts. The team should offer products which
are good enough to seize opportunities growing
by ten or even hundreds times. What is “good
enough”? | think that only “one-fold better than
the previous one” is not enough. In the future,
only “ten-fold better” will have an opportunity to
stand out.
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2. The urban renewal fund business segment:
distinctive resource advantages and good
strategic start

The urban renewal fund relates to the major mission
and responsibility of the Company in transformational
development of Shougang Group, also an important part
of the Group’s transformation towards an integrated
urban service provider.

(1) Prominent location advantage of the park,
with major policy support from the Group,
the urban renewal fund business has
outstanding endowment advantages

The hundred-year-old Shougang has witnessed
revitalization of national iron and steel industry,
also has marked a profound accumulation of
industrial civilization. Located in Shijingshan and
by Yongding River, the new Shougang Park has
distinctive regional advantages, rich ecological
and cultural resources, with an area up to 8.63
square kilometers for development. Shougang
Group has given the fund business for Park
renewal to the Company, which has indicated the
strongest policy support to the Company, and we
are determined to play a greater role to serve the
Park development.

With arrival of the Organizing Committee of
the Winter Olympic Games, Shougang Park has
ushered in important historical opportunities.
On 5 June 2018, Shougang Group became
the highest-level sponsor of the 2022 Winter
Olympic Games, namely, the Olympic official
urban renewal service partner. In the future,
the new Shougang Park will become a model
for the Olympic Movement to promote urban
development, a world's model for the reuse of
the industrial heritage and the revitalization of
industrial zones, and a new landmark of urban
renewal with global influence in the new era.
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The Winter Olympic Plaza and Qiaomengyuan
(Overseas Chinese Creation and Innovation
Development Zone) project progressed
smoothly, the urban renewal business
segment achieved a good strategic start

During the year, the Company and Tishman
Speyer, a renowned international investor and
operator for industrial park, jointly launched
the Winter Olympic Plaza project. The project
is located on the extension of Chang’an
Street, accessible by multiple subway lines and
convenient transportation. Integrated with the
Winter Olympic Games Organizing Committee
Office, the gross floor area of this project is
225,000 square meters. We will work with our
partners to create architecture with retained post-
industrial style, perfectly combining historical
heritage with modern architecture. In the
future, the park will become an international
sports, science and technology industrial park
integrating headquarter office, commerce, sports
entertainment, and service facilities for Winter
Olympics Games, a lively practice of promoting
urban development of Olympic Games. The
Qiaomengyuan Project is located on the west
extension of Chang’'an Street, with a total
area of 11,000 square meters. Positioned as a
comprehensive space for innovative new business
forms, the project concentrates on new business
forms such as international business schools, new
retail bookstores, international exhibitions and
displays. In 2018, 168 high-end events, courses
of 5 renowned business schools and 11 TED-style
speeches were undertaken, attracting high-end
traffic of more than 20,000 person-time. Both
Yiwan College of Matrix Partners and the Canjia
College of Shougang Fund have chosen to locate
here. Compared with the surrounding traditional
office, sales per square meter of this project
increased by more than 40%.
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From a long term perspective, we believe in the
future park development and real estate sector
will mainly shift from incremental development to
stock renewal. Through the light asset operation
mode of “Fund + Base + Industry”, aiming at
high-quality development by serving the park
better, we will collaborate with top partners to
build benchmark projects in the park to ensure
quality of renewal development. Meanwhile,
we begin to pay attention to opportunities for
investing and acquiring premium resources and
properties for renewal in core cities besides
Shougang Park. Through renovation and renewal,
operational improvement and import of resources,
we can realize restoration of asset value and add
value to assets, and expect the withdrawal of
fund investors through REITs.
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Non-core business segment: insist firmly
on transformation development, strategic
withdrawal progressing smoothly

Honoring our commitments to all investors, we have
withdrawn further from the non-core business while
developed actively in core business. During the year,
revenue from ore trading reduced to HK$1.5 billion,
decreased by 60.6% than that of 2017; the gross profit
margin of ore trading business increased from 0.2%
to 3.5%, and the receivables decreased from HK$817
million to HK$63 million. In 2019, the Company will
further cut the scale of ore trading business. In addition,
the disposing of the entire equity of Shougang Concord
Century Holdings Limited, an associated company of the
Group, which will bring HK$206 million in cash to the
Company.

An excellent management team takes the initiative
to find new business opportunities and continuously
adds value to company during cyclical adjustment. |
appreciate the great contribution made by the trading
business team to the established strategic withdrawal,
as they have followed the Company’s arrangements and
have taken overall situation into account.
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Introduced strategic investors: ensure long-
term development and highlight strategic

synergy

By introducing strategic investors with synergy and
leading edge, it has further optimized Company’'s
shareholding structure and will enhance corporate
governance of the Company and will bring the
operations of the Company to an international
level, therefore laying the foundation of long-term
development for the Company.

During the year, NWS Group, ORIX Group, and CIMC
Group have become important strategic shareholders of
the Company. NWS Group funded twice in March and
September respectively to support the Company’s equity
adjustment and placement. In December, NWS Group
sold out Urban Parking (Beijing) Limited, a company
which has been cultivated in mainland China for many
years, to the Company, reflecting their strong support
to the Company’s transformation development. CIMC
Group is the largest container manufacturer in China.
Its automatic multi-storey parking system business
subdivided from the airport facilities equipment business
segment, as an important part of the ecological chain of
the parking industry, will form a good strategic synergy
with the Company’s parking business. As one of the
global top integrated financial service groups, ORIX
Group has taken actions to give support to and to show
its confidence in the Company.
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By the end of the year, the Company’s total assets
have reached HK$9.43 billion with an increase of about
HK$1.244 billion from the end of previous year, up
approximately 15.2%, and its book cash has reached
HK$3.034 billion, showing an abundant liquidity. The
Company’s net assets have amounted to HK$8.995
billion with an increase of about HK$1.751 billion from
the end of previous year, up approximately 24.2%. The
asset-liability ratio has further lowered, from 11.52%
to 4.61%. The Company’s asset condition is at its best
in recent years, with extremely low asset-liability ratio
and sufficient cash reserves, making the Company
more unruffled in a complex and volatile economic
environment.

We are extremely grateful for the investment by strategic
shareholders during the transformation stage of the
Company. The Company will exercise best endeavor,
act out and create greater value for shareholders. In
the future, according to the development needs of the
Company, it might be necessary to have a few more
strategic shareholders who understand the industry and
are able to contribute to market expansion and resource
integration. It will increase the number of shares of the
Company, however, the Company will strictly adhere
to the bottom line and gradually enhance its dividend-
paying ability to achieve a continuous increase in the
dividend payout ratio. If the market opportunity is
appropriate, it does not rule out the possibility of share
buy-backs. It is an important task for the management
team to ensure a continuous increase of the earnings per
share for all shareholders.
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CHAPTER 2. ORGANIZATIONAL GROWTH AND
EVOLUTION

There are two core variables in the growth of an enterprise:
strategy and organization. The explicit variable is strategic
focus, and the implied variable is the organizational iteration.
If the strategy cannot be effectively focused, the organization
will be exhausted with decreasing efficiency. If the speed of
organizational evolution cannot be kept up with the pace of
strategy, the enterprise will eventually stop moving forward.

The achievement of the business performance in 2018 was
the result of our constant focus on and efforts in the strategy.
However, in order to win from battle to war, the Company
needs to build a highly capable team and a self-growing
system.

1. Build a highly capable team

Talents gather for their careers, and the Company thrives
on talents. In the journey towards the ambitious goal,
we need excellent talents sharing common goals and
values to continuously join our marching team. How
to attract the best talents to join us, how to place
people in the best suitable positions to play their roles
effectively, how to design a mechanism to retain the
outstanding talents, and how to cultivate the growth of
young talents with great potential, all the above are the
most important things for us to build a remarkable and
evergreen company.
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In 2018, more outstanding talents joined our
management team

Ms. Zhang Meng, Deputy General Manager of the
Company, is in charge of investment, management,
and withdrawal of the Company’s funds. Before joining
Shougang Fund as Director of Risk Management in
2014, she had worked in a well-known law firm in China
for a long time and accumulated rich experience in
fund business. She is forthright, sincere and motivated,
dares to take the responsibilities, and takes care of her
team. She is able to lead the team to achieve good
performance by overcoming difficulties.

Ms. Liang Lixia, Deputy General Manager of the
Company, has more than 20 years of experience in
well-known real estate companies before joining the
Company. She has unique and profound insights into the
value increment and re-creation of commercial projects.
She presided over the acquisition and re-disposal of
various non-performing assets projects in Beijing,
with huge returns generated. Her joining is of great
significance to the Company’s relevant exploration and
business development.

During the year, with the Chinese team of Urban Parking
from NWS Group via acquisition, we have become even
more powerful. Among them, Mr. Lu Ping has 10 years
of experience in parking management and 15 years
of experience in commercial real estate management,
especially extensive practical experience in equipment
selection and emergency response.
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In 2018, more frontline teams have grown rapidly

There are so many teammates | want to thank. This
year | would like to introduce our team at Shanghai
Honggiao Airport to you. Among them, Ms. Jia
Menglei, the ticketing supervisor, starting from a
junior leader responsible for collecting parking fees,
she has witnessed that the daily parking volume of
P1 parking lot of Honggiao Airport has grown from
100~200 vehicles per day to more than 4,000 vehicles
per day. There is always a smile on her face, trying to
make customers feel at home; Ms. He Meifang, Head
of Finance, has come to Shanghai to work since 2007
and is currently Head of the Financial Department of
Honggiao Project. She is meticulous in accounting
work without any deviations and brings great synergy
throughout every level of the Company.

Shape an evolutionary organization

At the moment, the traditional corporate organizational
form might be seriously challenged. Too many
organizational levels lead to low decision-making
efficiency, which makes high-level managers lose their
sensitivity to the frontline market; complex management
rules and systems hamper the initiative and innovation of
talents, and the unreasonable value distribution system
cannot retain outstanding talents.

We must change and shape an organization with the
capability of evolution, in which flexibility could resist
the rigidity derived from scale and innovation could fight
against organizational entropy increase, so as to ensure
the Company stays longer in the phase of healthy and
high-speed growth.

(1) Reduce internal hierarchy, and shape a flat
organization

Generally speaking, the more hierarchies within
an enterprise, the more reporting there will
be, the harder it is to understand and slower
the action will be taken. The primary goal of
employees is to fulfill orders from superiors in
the layer-by-layer report, instead of being user
centric, and they will spend their energy on the
report, instead of going to frontline to solve the
users’ real problems.
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As a startup, we want to create a culture
entirely different from big companies and we are
determined to create a flat organization and strive
to achieve “three and a half levels” and “two and
a half levels” management in decision-making
by streamlining and optimizing organizational
structure. For business operation, there are no
more than three levels from the bottom level to
top management, and then to the last half level
(board) for review. For fund investment business,
there are no more than two levels from the most
bottom level to the top management, then to
the final half level (the investment committee) for
review. We ask mid and senior level executives to
be accountable instead of simply avoiding risks.
Those who fail to lead the team to win the battle,
but blame the subordinates and external factors
shall be resolutely dismissed.

Develop simple rules to create a networked
organization

We are committed to creating a network
organization that is professional, highly
adaptable, and efficient.

In terms of operational rules, we believe that
extremely simple rules rather than complex
central control system can guarantee the
creativity of the junior employees, realize the
network effect of emerging collective wisdom,
and ensure the sensitivity and flexibility of the
Company to the frontline market.
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(3)

In terms of organizational collaboration, we have
drawn inspiration from the Yuanyang Array in
ancient military tactics, to define the boundaries
of each person’s professional ability and view
everyone as a trusted partner on the one hand,
and to break the boundary, communicate and
collaborate in the most direct and effective way
on the other hand. By combining the advantage
of flexible division of small teams with the
advantage of scaled operation of big teams, the
Company can flexibly apply the array according to
environmental changes.

For potential risks, we control them through
negative lists, but contents of the lists comply
with the principle of simplicity and can be
supplemented according to situation. For audits
and various interim and post event supervision,
in-process checking and results replay will be
conducted annually, quarterly and monthly
according to the negative lists, which is an
insurmountable red line for Company’s operation.

Establish a sharing mechanism to create a
dynamic organization

At present, how to establish an effective sharing
mechanism is important to modern corporate
governance. In essence, it is an issue of how
to determine the relationship between talents
and enterprises in respect of value creation and
distribution. As early as 1980s, Shougang Group
was one of the first batch for trials of national
economic system reform to implement a contract
plan of “Contracting for Progressive Increases of
Profit”. Under the historical conditions at that
time, the contract system allowed Shougang to
"have both self-motivated and self-constrained
mechanisms, and be able to be self-accumulated,
self-reform, and self-developed.” Implementation
of the contract system enabled Shougang
to break through the constraints of planned
economic system, expanded the autonomy of
business operation and effectively promoted the
development of the enterprise.
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

The Company inherits the Shougang spirit of
being 'highly responsible, innovative and leading’,
has formulated a mechanism in line with market-
oriented reform for management and key
business staff, covering basic salary, performance
bonus, long-term earnings sharing, and value
sharing. We hope that employees will have no
worries behind when they dedicate to and work
hard for the Company, they will receive sufficient
respect and reward.

CHAPTER 3. PONDERING OVER THE
COMPANY'’S MISSION, VISION,
AND VALUES

In our business practice, | have become more and more aware
that the corporate values not only influence our strategic
Jjudgment, management decisions and behaviors, but also
fundamentally determine our destiny.

What kind of products do we want to provide to users? How
do we continuously make efforts to contribute to the society?
What kind of company do we want to be? What values shall
we uphold to achieve our goals? This is the three ultimate
questions of the philosophy of corporate survival: “Who am 1?
Where am | going? How will | arrive?” Without a mission, we
will not know the ultimate meaning of existence. If there is
no vision in common, we will not know where to go together.
Without values, we will not be able to judge what are right
from wrong.

To this end, we have thought and discussed thoroughly.
Some expressions may not be completely accurate now, but |
hope this is a beginning. We are open and inclusive, hope to
share our ideas, and look forward to hearing voices from all
shareholders, employees, and business partners.
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Our mission and vision: be a trustworthy
superior asset investor and operator, make
city life better!

We hope that in the near future, the Company could
become the best asset investment enterprise with a
deep layout in the familiar assets segment in China,
and create great value for investors through anchoring
the asset investment opportunity with lower risk, better
returns, more dividends, and less retracement.

We hope that in the near future, lean management
could be applied to make asset operation more efficient,
empower evolution of urban functions, provide
more valuable services to customers, use science and
technology to generate profound changes, and create
better urban life for users.

We hope that in the near future, the Company will be
sufficiently inclusive and open, with equity as a link to
invest and acquire more valuable companies and assets,
as well as with SG Capital Group as a cultural identity
to build the cornerstone of trust by empowering and
managing the invested companies and assets.

We hope that in the near future, the team will share
common cognitions, believe in and abide by common
values, continuously grow on the platform, create more
values for the Company and society, and ultimately enjoy
benefits from the Company’s development.

Our values: value investment, excellent
products, open and inclusive

To achieve mission and vision of the Company, we need
to achieve a lot of important tasks. The most important
thing in this process is what kind of values we adhere to,
and the multiple thinking models built by these values.
The values of the Company determine our behavior
patterns and value criterion.
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Must uphold the principle of value
investment

In the past five years, the price of a considerable
number of assets in mainland China has seriously
deviated from their value. Instead of blindly
investing the funds into the highly valuated
business to earn temporary plaudits in commercial
illusions, it is better to make well preparation
while waiting, to take initiative to pave a path
for business development and to comprehensively
engage in the investment and operation of
parking facilities and other undervalued assets.
We have further improved our investment
decision-making model and persisted to maintain
investment standards. We uphold the idea of
being low profile, “make a hard camp and fight a
dull battle”, to win tactfully and readily without
competing. Unswervingly focusing on long-term,
and only earning long-term money, we believe
that excellent long-term investors will be surely
rewarded by time.

Be committed to providing the best products
and services to society

Industry is the past, customers are the future. We
must always think and improve the products from
user’s perspective, and even redefine the product
category, because the users and we all believe
that the parking lot should be a comfortable,
efficient and safe space, and it should exist like a
piece of artwork, and a space full of warmth and
real perception. In order to achieve such goals
and pursuits, we will strive to provide customers
with the best parking service in the world by
creating the best products and services through a
“ten-fold better” efforts.
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(3)  Be a trustworthy, open and inclusive investor

As an investor who intends to acquire control
in the target companies, it is necessary for the
Company to establish a foundation of common
interest with the acquired Company, and it is
necessary to build a multi-level trust system.
Under this principle, we work from three levels.
First, locate the win-win situation for both parties
in the price and structure of transactions. Second,
think about how to empower our partners before
the acquisition, identify to-do-list, in principle,
we will not invest in a company if we can't
help its development. Third, create an extremely
simple negative list, extremely strict red lines and
extremely serious in-process supervision and post
event audit.

As more and more teams join our big family,
we will adhere to an open and inclusive culture
in the future. Inspired by the common mission
and vision, we will continue to foster the
endogenous feature of culture and value and
enhance recognition of value and cultural identity
to become a united team working together in
harmony.

CHAPTER 4. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

There are a lot of people | would like to thank. We are
exploring and walking on an unknown road, and we can see
the glimmer of a lighthouse in a distance. Even though we are
getting closer to the lighthouse, we are still walking on our
way. However, with the support from the shareholders, the care
of our customers, and the efforts of our teammates, we are
never alone when moving forward, and we can draw strength
of the present moment and make great strides towards the
future.

On the road of exploration, Shougang Group gives the best
resources and the greatest support to the Company, and also
allows the team to innovate on the cutting edge via trials and
errors and constantly seek to create the ultimate products. It is
under the inclusiveness of Shougang Group that the Company
has the opportunity to grow up with breakthrough.
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On the road of exploration, investors have given great trust in
us. Now the Company is at the initial stage, and many works
are not perfect. Under this circumstance, our investors give
great financial support to us, help integrate the industrial
chain and spend time on researching the priorities of the
Company’s development. These are the important cornerstones
for the Company to become the best company in the market
segments.

On the road of exploration, customers open up to innovation.
We polish the products, guarantee better urban life services
and redefine product categories in cooperation with our
customers.

On the road of exploration, the teammates are working
together and marching forward. Enterprise never has a perfect
moment, but every teammate has aspiration to pursue “ten-
fold better” with the common goal of creating an ideal
enterprise, and never stop.

The best gratitude is to reward the trust of shareholders and
customers with better performance and better products, and
to encourage the team to grow up together with the Company
and ultimately realize the mission and vision of the Company.

The future has come, 2018 has already ended. | believe in 2019
it will be even more fantastic with the support from all of you.

Thank you all!

Zhao Tianyang
26 March 2019
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

2018 was the first year that the Group focused on car parking
assets operation and management business and urban renewal-
oriented fund management business. The first annual results
have an encouraging performance. The profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the year was HK$353 million,
representing an increase of 516.4% compared to last year.
With the efforts of the Group, car parking assets operation and
management business begun to contribute revenue and the
gross profit margin is increasing along with the improvement
of operation. Meanwhile, the urban renewal-oriented fund
management business managed by the Group are subscribed
by more investors as the team manages the underlying assets
of the funds meticulously, therefore the funds rapidly expanded
and contributing stable profit to the Group. In addition, guided
by the principle of product reduction, risk control and profit
increase formulated in the beginning of 2018, the trading
business turned around from loss to profit. For all those
reasons, the Group's consolidated profit attributable to the
owners of the Company in 2018 records an increase compared
to that of 2017 by several times.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

NEHME
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L mESAFRNNLEESEENE —F
BENEFEENRIBLAETFEZERE K
REMAEERFBEIS3EL BEFIER
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For the year
ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2018 2017
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
EBEHETT B HE T
Profit (loss) attributable to the owners of BEBERREERZ
the Company before share of R ENEF (EE)
results of associates 78 (192)
Share of results of associates B(hEE N R 2 ¥EE 275 249
Profit attributable to the owners of % 3R FE G & R
the Company 353 57
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Key Performance Indicators

BB LA A

HEXRRER

For the year
ended 31 December/
BZ12A3MBLEE
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2018 2017
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EBEEET BB EE T

Revenue EERE 1,676 3,816
Gross profit margin ER = 9.6% 0.2%
Profit attributable to the owners of

the Company P BRJE A 5 353 57
Earnings per share (HK cents) BREAER (E) 1.75 0.56
Total assets mEE 9,430 8,186
Net assets attributable to the owners of

the Company REEIEFEE 8,966 7,025
Bank balances, cash and time deposit RIT&EF BReRRIEAR

with original maturity over three months #2838 =18 A & & B 3,034 1,490
Borrowings EE 103 =

The Group's profit attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$353 million
as compared to the profit of HK$57 million for last year. The
Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,676 million, representing
a decrease of 56.1% over last year. The gross profit margin
increased significantly from 0.2% for last year to 9.6% for the
year. The earnings per share for the year was 1.75 HK cents and
the earnings per share for the last year was 0.56 HK cents.

EEEHE2018F12A31H L FE ZREEA
wm M B3 538 A F R AR FIBE
0.5718TL - KB AFHBFE L XHEM16.76
BT BMEE TFE56.1% ° EFR KRR 1
EFH02% LA AFERIC% - EEAF
BZ2EREN BB MEFEERAF
0.5678 1l
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Year ended 31 December 2018 compared to the year ended 31
December 2017

Revenue and Cost of Sales

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,676 million for this
year, representing a decrease of 56.1% when comparing to
HK$3,816 million for last year. The decrease in revenue was
mainly because that after the introduction of new businesses
and based on the status quo of the trading business, the Group
decided to strictly control the increase in trading volume of iron
ore.

Cost of sales for the year was HK$1,516 million, representing
a decrease of 60.2% when comparing to HK$3,807 million
for last year. The decrease in cost of sales was also mainly
attributable to the tightened control in trading volume of iron
ore by the Group.

Gross profit for the year was HK$161 million. The gross
profit margin was 9.6% as compared to 0.2% for last year.
The increase in gross profit margin was attributable to the
improvement in the overall risk management and operation
capability of the original iron ore trading business on one
hand, and to the newly added car parking assets operation
and management business and urban renewal-oriented fund
management business on the other hand. The gross profit
margin of both businesses was much higher than that of iron
ore trading business, especially the urban renewal-oriented
fund management business.

5t % 51 8
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EBITDA

For the year under review, earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, impairment loss and changes in fair
value of commodity contracts for the operations of the Group
was HK$352 million (2017: HK$223 million).

Finance costs

For the year under review, finance costs amounted to
approximately HK$6 million, 67.2% lower than that of last
year. The decrease in finance costs was due to the decrease in
the overall loan of the Group.

Share of results of associates

In this year, we have shared a profit of HK$278 million from
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang
Resources”) and shared a loss of HK$3 million from Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”),
whereas for last year, the share of profit from Shougang
Resources and loss from Shougang Century were HK$273
million and HK$24 million respectively.

Taxation

The tax expense for the year was HK$10 million, mainly for the
payment of the China enterprise income tax for the subsidiaries
engaged in operation and management of car parking assets
and management of private funds in the mainland China with
the tax rate of 25%, while there was no tax payment for the
last year.

BB LA A

EBITDA
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BB LA A

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Summary of net profit contribution to the Group by operation/

entity:

Operation/Entity

E 3 e

EHHW/ ARHAEBOFENEHHE

Percentage of
interest held
by the Group

For the year ended
31 December

rEBFE
il AN EEEI HZ12A31ALEE
2018 2017
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET B EET
1. Trading business 1. BER¥EK 100% 44 (20)
2. Car Parking Assets Operation and 2. FHEEREER
Management Business % 100% (23) =
3. Urban Renewal-oriented Fund 3. BmEHRAF@M
Management Business ESeEEER 100% 25 =
Sub-total Nt 46 (20)
4. Share of results of associates 4, BIEHELARZEE
Shougang Resources EEEY 27.61% 278 273
Shougang Century BREE 35.71% (3) (24)
Sub-total NE 275 249
5. Others 5. Hith
Net gains/(losses) related to BHEAma Nz W
commodity contracts /(B18) 38 45 (122)
Corporate and others REIBSREAM (13) (50)
Sub-total Ay 32 (172)
Profit attributable to the owners of % 3R P& 4 % Rl
the Company 353 57
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Trading Business

The trading business of the Group mainly involves the trading
of iron ore imported by the PRC. Iron ore is a vital raw material
for the manufacturing of steel, while steel is one of the
important material widely applied in our daily life, including
development of infrastructures, real estates, shipbuilding,
railways, industrial machineries, automobiles and home
appliances, etc.

Since 2017, the Group has adjusted its business model
based on market conditions and has begun to use hedging
instruments including iron ore futures/swaps to reduce the risks
faced by its iron ore trading business. The Group expects that
the prospects of the trading business will remain challenging.
As a result, it has decided to strictly control the risks of iron ore
trading and gradually reduce the revenue from iron ore trading
as well as the volume of iron ore transaction.

In the current year, sales volume of iron ore in trading business
was approximately 2.93 million tonnes, representing a decrease
of 60.3% when comparing to last year, and the selling price
decreased by 1.8% to US$65.4 per tonne. The Group recorded
a revenue of HK$1,500 million, representing a decrease of
60.6% when comparing to last year. Although the revenue
decreased, the gross profit increased significantly and the
gross profit margin increased from the 0.2% for 2017 to 3.5%
for this year. The net profit amounted to HK$44 million, as
compared with the net loss of HK$20 million for last year. The
increase in net profit was mainly due to the increase of gross
profit margin and the reversal of provision of impairment loss in
trade receivables of HK$25 million.
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Ever since 2009, the trading business had mainly involved
trading of iron ore pursuant to the offtake agreements entered
into with Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mt. Gibson"). However,
the amount of iron ore provided by Mt. Gibson to the Group
dropped significantly following the suspension of the Koolan
Island mine of Mt. Gibson due to the occurrence of seawall
slump and flooding in late 2014. Mt. Gibson has restarted the
production of Koolan Island mine which is currently progressing
well. Mt. Gibson expressed that, according to its feasibility
study and technical assessment results of the Koolan Island
mine, the mine had a reserve of iron ore (66% Fe) of 21 million
tonnes and was expected to resume iron ore sales in the first
half of 2019. Under the offtake agreement, the Group is
required to acquire 80% of the annual production of Koolan
Island.

In December 2016, the Group entered into another offtake
agreement with Mt. Gibson for the purchase of about one
fourth of the first year’s production volume of iron ore from
Iron Hill, a new project of Mt. Gibson. The offtake agreement
has a term of 12 months, with subscription price to be
determined based on cost and freight after taking consideration
of the market price with reference to Platts Iron Ore Index,
plus general market premium on iron lump, and penalties in
relation to the purity of the iron ore. The Group is entitled to
extend the term of the agreement to a maximum of 12 months.
In December 2017, the Group entered into another offtake
agreement in respect of the iron ore purchase from Iron Hill
mine, which further optimised the procurement costs for the
purchase of iron ore from Iron Hill mine. The performance of
the offtake agreement in relation to the Iron Hill mine entered
into between the Group and Mt. Gibson will be completed in
the first quarter of 2019.

The iron ore trade has no strategic synergy with the Group’s
new principal business. The Group will continue to reduce iron
ore trading volume to reduce ore trading revenue, and strictly
control the risk of ore trading.

B 5 #EKE2009F 8 £ E R L E EMount
Gibson Iron Limited ([ Mt. Gibson ]) % 5]~
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Urban Renewal-oriented Fund Management
Business

The Group expanded its business to private fund management
through the acquisition of REBRZEE R (FIL)E S
B AR A Fl(Beijing-Hebei Co-development Exhibition Zone
(Tangshan) Fund Management Co., Ltd., “Jingji Capital”) a
the end of 2017. On May 2018, the registered capital of Jingji
Capital changed from RMB200 million to RMB400 million,
and all of the additional registered capital was contributed by
Jingji (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. As of 31 December 2018, there are 17 funds managed
or operated by Jingji Capital, with a total target subscription
scale of approximately RMB30 billion. Currently, the investors
of the managed funds include major financial institutions such
as Agricultural Bank of China, China Merchants Bank and
China Life Insurance, as well as various provincial and municipal
government fund investment agencies in Beijing, Hebei
Province, Jilin Province, Sichuan Province and Heilongjiang
Province, etc. The funds focus on the investments of car
parks based infrastructure and the renovation of old parks.
Meanwhile, it will consider investments in health care based
consumer upgrades, new energy auto parts and equipment
manufacturing, as well as advanced technologies.
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In 2018, the Group successively raised, established and
managed a number of new funds to serve the development
of urban renewal business, including: R E & ¢ @ #% R % &
TEHEES —H (BRAE) (Beijing-Hebei Caofeidian Co-
development Exhibition Zone Fund 1) (Limited Partnership) with
a size of RMB1 billion, focusing on supporting the development
and construction of Caofeidian Park; It R BMEXEAE S
B[R~ 7A] (Beijing Shougang Industry Transformation Fund Co.,
Ltd.) with a registered capital of RMB10 billion (the subscription
for the first and second phases of registered capital has been
completed and the fund size is RMB8&.1 billion), focusing on
supporting the development of ¥ & il &= i E Z 4R A RE =
(New Shougang High-end Industry Comprehensive Service Park,
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“Shougang Park”);, and It REMBEEEELEERACE (B NEXENNEXER - AEEBB[ES
R4 %) (Beijing Shoushi Ming Zhi Jin Xin Economic Consulting +Ei+E % | M FAHESRIER  LHEEEY
Firm (Limited Partnership)) with a size of RMB1,605 million E2FI% EI1E B2 B BBERILE
for investment in Shouao Industrial Park project which is to I ¥ERANGE SESHEXDTE RER
provide Organising Committee for the 2022 Winter Olympic 1 FI 3 2R FE A FH 4%

Games with offices and ancillary premises for training, as well

as to develop itself as an influential industrial park in China by

introducing internationally well-known sports industry leaders,

cultural and creative enterprises and technology innovation

companies. The Group adopts the real estate financial model of

“funds + bases + industries” to participate in the development,

management, operation, and exit of industrial entities. Through

having controlling shareholding or investing in the enterprises

in the old industrial zone, it will lead the concentration of

high-end industries and promote regional development,

transformation and upgrade.

Shougang Park
EHEE
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As the fund manager, Jingji Capital is usually the general
partner. In line with the industry practice of private fund, the
general partner shall invest in a minority stake of the funds
under its management so as to share its investment return
and alpha returns. At 31 December 2018, Jingji Capital held
a basket of interest in the minority stake of funds totaling
HK$195 million.

With the steady growth in the number and size of funds
the Group expects
that in the foreseeable future, the management fee income

under the management of Jingji Capital,

and investment return from the provision of private fund
management services will achieve sustainable and rapid
growth.

Car Parking Assets Operation and Management
Business

Currently, “difficulties and chaos in parking” is one of the
painful points in the administration of large and medium-
sized cities across China and there is a huge gap between the
demand for and the supply of parking spaces. To solve the
problem of scatter, weakness, small scale and low operational
efficiency of car parking industry, the Group provides integrated
solutions for the control of regional static traffic and smart
car parking facilities. With all the efforts, the Group aims
to enhance the operational efficiency of regional static and

dynamic traffic management.
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The Group accelerated the layout of the parking industry and S BINREEFEEEEZENHR FTHEEEZH
adhered to the principle of “key cities, prime locations and T #ZOMIE - EESMHRA - BHERES -
quality parking spaces”, while focusing on segment markets 22f% 735 BFE KAIZAHLHE SKS
such as airports, hospitals, shopping malls, office buildings ZE& SWxEMELER BAIDEHILRA
and roadside to source high-quality, high-return operational EERES - EIGTBKIS - 55 REKS -
projects. At present, the Group has entered into contracts in JdbRF B ARG ER bt R EITEERER -
relation to the benchmark projects in the industry including 20184 AEE AL R L EE S ER
Beijing Daxing International Airport, Shanghai Honggiao B K KEIAE & #E22,12818 -

Airport, Guiyang Longdongbao Airport, Beijing China-Japan

Friendship Hospital, and Beijing Station. In 2018, the Group

obtained the long-term operation rights of 22,128 car parking

lots in Beijing, Shanghai, Chongqging, etc.

Through acquisition, the Group strengthened its existing SENEBBREWRESHX  BIHEEES -
advantages and quickly integrated market resources in the [RIBFHREELTIHER-

meanwhile.

Beijing Station Parking Lot
ERUFES

China-Japan Friendship Hospital Helipad
PEHRFEREFEERREFRIT
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BRI EEEER AR (Shouzhong Investment Management
Co., Ltd., “Shouzhong Investment”) is principally engaged
in the business of car parking assets investment and operation
in the PRC. The Group has completed the acquisition
of 44.94382% of Shouzhong Investment held by CIMC
Transportation Equipment (International) Holdings Limited
("CIMC Transportation”) on 23 March 2018. Upon the
acquisition, Shouzhong Investment is owned as to 89.88764%
by the Group. According to the acquisition agreement, the
consideration of approximately RMB209,884,269 was to be
settled by way of issuing a total of 1,047,931,056 new shares
by the Company at an issue price of HK$0.2475 per share.
The consideration shares were issued on 26 March 2018 at the
share price per share of HK$0.217. In April 2018, the registered
capital of Shouzhong Investment changed from RMB445 million
to RMB1.5 billion to support its rapid business development.
In September 2018, the Company acquired the equity interests
held by Beijing Jianshi Tongxin Management Consultancy
Centre (At REBHRELEEFZEHAF L) in Shouzhong Investment.
Upon completion of the acquisition, Shouzhong Investment is
held as to 100% by the Company and became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

BETFREEEARAR ([EHRREEER
FENECEEEERERECEK -KAEH
2018F3A23H ERKEPERBERE
B (BEBR)IERERAR ([FEXBFEZ
44.94382% EH PRI ERE - N TR U E 18
B -EBRREBRAEERHE89.88764% 5 ©
BRIFWERZ REHAR209,884,2697T
HARAIREITEESREY0.2475 T8 ITE ST
1,047,931,056 ¥ A% 10 2 77 N2 - R H
201863 H268 AT ARAR 75 & #0.2177T %
1T°-M2018F4 7 EHIREFZMELBAARKE
4A5E TR FEBARBISEL U iEERE
RZETISIE - R2018459 8 - AR A AUk B4t F &R
ARLEBZEAPL (AERER)FAENET
BEMRE KESERKE EFREAL
NAEFBI100%#Ezm  KAARR Z2EWE

A



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 28 December 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Urban Parking (Beijing) Limited
(BH (ER)EEELEERAF) (“"Urban Parking Beijing”),
which further expanded its business of management and
operations of car parking assets. Urban Parking Beijing,
together with its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the
provision of car parking management services in Beijing,
Shanghai and Chongging and manages over 10,000 car parking
lots, most of which are located in urban core areas. Pursuant
to sale and purchase agreement, the consideration of the
acquisition was RMB49,380,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$55,591,831), of which RMB9,980,000 shall be settled
in cash and RMB39,400,000 shall be settled by way of
allotment and issuance of 177,425,528 new shares at HK$0.25
per share by the Company. The consideration shares were
issued on 28 December 2018 at the share price per share of
HK$0.196. Through the acquisition, Urban Parking Beijing
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and could
contribute all its revenue and profit to the Group. Meanwhile,
the experienced management team of Urban Parking Beijing
will help the Group expand the market share, in particular in
respect of commercial, office and car parking lot businesses.
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In addition, Shouzhong Investment also owns the car park
operation right of a major project in the new airport in Beijing
through the investment in 48.125% equity interest in it
REPREEEEAR2LQA (Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking
Management Company Limited, “Shouzhong Parking”), a
joint venture of Shouzhong Investment. The operation of the
new airport project is for a term of 20 years with an option
to extend for a further 5 years. The new airport in Beijing
will contain 4,200 parking lots and is expected to be put
into operation by the end of 2019. On 30 December 2018,
Beijing Shouxing Zhixing Investment Co., Ltd. (bt & EE 1T
HEHBR AT, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
“Shouxing Zhixing”), Shouzhong Investment, Shouzhong
Parking, Shougang Fund and Beijing Gonglian Anda Car
Parking Management Co., Ltd. (It R A ZEEFEEEREFR
A7), “Gonglian Anda”) entered into the Capital Increase
Agreement, pursuant to which, Shouxing Zhixing proposed
to contribute RMB76,000,000 to the registered capital of
Shouzhong Parking, and the registered capital of Shouzhong
Parking will thereby be increased from RMB144,000,000
to RMB220,000,000. The capital increase will be subject to
consideration by independent shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the Company’s interests in Shouzhong Parking will be
increased to approximately 66.045% and Shouzhong Parking
will become a subsidiary of the Company and be incorporated
in the accounts of the Company.
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Shougang Resources
Exploration and sale of coking coal

Shougang Resources is a 27.61% owned associate of the
Group listed in Hong Kong and is a major hard coking coal
producer in China. Shougang Resources currently operates
three premium coal mines in Shanxi province, PRC, namely
Xingwu coal mine, Zhaiyadi coal mine and Jinjiazhuang coal
mine. It sold 0.74 million tonnes of raw coking coal and 2.10
million tonnes of clean coking coal during the year and its
consolidated revenue for the year was HK$3,686 million,
an increase of 6% over that of last year. The selling price
(inclusive of VAT) of raw coking coal and clean coking coal
sold during the year were RMB786 and RMB1,451 respectively,
representing increases of 15% and 5% respectively comparing
to last year. In 2018, the price of raw coking coal and clean
coking coal rose slightly, however, as affected by the decline
in the sales volume of raw coking coal, the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company of Shougang Resources for this
year was HK$1,100 million, which was substantially flat with
HK$1,081 million for last year, representing an increase of 2%.
Profit of Shougang Resources attributable to the Group was
HK$278 million in this year while the profit was HK$273 million
in last year.

The strong financial position of Shougang Resources with zero
gearing ratio and bank balances of HK$4.5 billion enable it to
improve its value when appropriate investment opportunities
arise.

Customers are confident of the high-quality products of
Shougang Resources which are regarded as panda coal.
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Shougang Century

Manufacture of steel cord for radial tyres and sawing
wires; processing and trading of copper and brass
products

Shougang Century is a 35.71% owned associate of the Group
listed in Hong Kong whose businesses are manufacturing of
steel cords and processing and trading of copper and brass
products in Shandong province and Zhejiang province, the PRC.
The Group’s share of its net loss was HK$3 million in this year,
comparing to the share of net loss of HK$24 million in last year.

With the Group's transformation towards car parking assets
operation and management business and urban renewal-
oriented private fund management business, from the
perspective of future development strategies, the existing
businesses of Shougang Century are not complementary to
the business development of the Group. To make full use of
resources and optimise the principal business structure, on 21
November 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Shougang Holding in relation to disposal of the
35.71% equity interest in Shougang Century at a consideration
of HK$205,996,553.70, which reflects an indirect transfer of
686,655,179 shares of Shougang Century at a consideration
of HK$0.30 per share of Shougang Century. The restructuring
will be subject to consideration by independent shareholders
at the general meeting of the Company. Upon completion of
the restructuring, the Group will be no longer hold any equity
interest in Shougang Century.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented
approximately 53.2% of the Group's total sales, of which
the sales attributable to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 14.5% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
of purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 91.6% of the Group’s total
purchases, while the purchases attributable to the largest
supplier for the Group accounted for approximately 71.3% of
the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any beneficial
interest in these major customers and suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is mainly engaged in the trading of iron ore,
principally focusing on the trading of iron ore imported by the
PRC. As a vital raw material for the manufacturing of steel,
demand for iron ore depends on the demand for steel in the
PRC. Over the years, demand for imported iron ore in the PRC
maintains upward trend, but any adverse change will affect
the amount of imported iron ore and thereby make the Group
unable to maintain its trading volume of iron ore. Further,
profit from this segment will be decreased, resulting in an
unsatisfactory performance of the Group.

BB LA A

FERFRHER

HZE2018F12A31B I EE  AEEEHAE
FHHEEENMAEBBIHERES3 2% H
FRARFHEEENLAEEAHEEEN
14.5% o

HE2018F12A831HIEFE - AEEMRSAH
EEEENABEREALMASELBEEREN
91.6% MASBEREABERNEEEOG
REBEBETENTI.3% -

HZE2018F12A31MBLFE EF FENE
EHMBEAXTARAABIRE (RESHAES
ARABEBITRMOS%ALEAL) BELEZSE
FEXEPREEHERMERER -

FTERRRTREN
AEBITEZREXGR/EBBOES  ZEH
EREAEENTRZHBAO - HIRASHE
MERETENRME REEFREXZIHE
HMENFLMEREC - BERBESZF F
B ENEEL R REEER  BREE
RADE AR EINENHBANENE
EAREELIGBHERONESE LR
PRZEFECSNNE FEREXERR -

53



54

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EHEEwm D AT

For the purpose to hedge the purchase and sales price risk of
the iron ore trading business, the Group started to adopt iron
ore futures/swap instruments in 2017, which are derivative
financial instruments traded in leveraged way where there is a
chance that the actual losses would exceed the margin deposits
paid for iron ore futures/swaps, and is accordingly of a high risk
profile.

Since 2018, the Group has strictly controlled the iron ore
trading volume, and plans to further reduce the iron ore trading
size in 2019 and focus on the car parking assets operation and
management and urban renewal-oriented fund management
business, which is expected to reduce the impact of the
abovementioned risks and uncertainties on the Group.

At late 2017, the Group has acquired the private fund
management business. In most of the cases, the Group acts
as the general partner of funds or partnerships. According to
relevant agreements, if the realized amount of the assets of
the fund or partnership is insufficient to cover their respective
liabilities, the general partner of the fund or partnership shall
bear unlimited liabilities of the fund or partnership. In China, it
is a customary practice that a general partner bears unlimited
liabilities of the fund or partnership under its management in
case of a net deficit position of the fund or partnership.
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The Group is also engaged in mining and sale of hard coking
coal as well as the manufacture and sale of steel cord for radial
tyres and sawing wires; processing and trading of copper and
brass products in China by holding interests in the Hong Kong
listed associate, Shougang Resources. As a vital raw material for
steel refining, the sale of coking coal of Shougang Resources
has close connection with the steel demand. Weak demand on
steel will directly dampen the results of Shougang Resources.
With significant proportion of investments in these associates,
the results of which will to a certain extent affect the overall
performance of the Group.

Save for the abovementioned risks and uncertainties, the
analysis on market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk of the Group are
detailed in the note related to financial instruments to the

financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations are
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report on
pages 149 to 199 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
are disclosed in the environmental, social and governance

report on pages 149 to 199 of this annual report.
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BB LA A

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to diversify its funding sources through
utilisation of both banking and capital markets. To the extent
possible, financing is arranged to match business characteristics
and cash flows.

1. Cash/Bank Balances and Loans

The cash and bank balances, and borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 as compared to 31
December 2017 is summarised below:
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As at 31 December
®W12A831H
2018 2017
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EHEET B HE T

Cash and bank deposits Be RIRTTER 3,034 1,490
Borrowings B 103 =
Equity attributable to % B PG fE A

the owners of the Company 8,966 7,025

2. Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Other
Market Risk

The Company manages its financial risks in accordance
with guidelines laid down by its Board of Directors. The
treasury policy aims to manage the currency, and interest
rate risk of the Group. Derivatives are mainly used for
managing such risks. We also target to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available for business
growth.
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The Group conducts its businesses mainly in Hong Kong
and the mainland China, it is subject to the foreign
exchange fluctuations of HK dollars, US dollars and
Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure, non-Hong
Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same
currency as the asset or cash flow from it through
borrowings. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
approximately 89.5% of the Group’s revenue for the
continuing operations was denominated in US dollars
and 10.3% in RMB.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balance and
borrowings. As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates
on bank borrowings was 25 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, there would be no
significant impact on the post tax profit of the Group.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk and
commodity prices risk through its commodity contracts
to purchase iron ore. The Group used iron ore future/
swap to hedge for the price risks of the purchase cost
and selling price arising from iron ore trading.

Financing Activities

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of the Group's
term loan financing is HK$35 million.

On 2 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with South China International Leasing
Company Limited, where the leasing principal is RMB60
million, equivalent to approximately HK$74 million with
an annual interest rate of 5.5% and a lease term of one
year.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION OF
NEW SHARES

On 16 November 2017, the Company completed an open
offer of 8,957,896,227 shares with the net proceeds of
approximately HK$2,004 million, of which, approximately
HK$440 million was used to pay for the consideration and
related expenses of the acquisition of Jingji Capital and
Shouzhong Investment; approximately HK$250 million was
used to pay for the capital increase of Jingji Capital and
Shouzhong Investment; approximately HK$270 million was
used to repay the bank loans of the Group; approximately
HK$490 million was used to support the existing operation
of trading business; approximately HK$410 million was used
to expand the car parking and fund management businesses
and to supplement general working capital. The proceeds
from rights issue have almost been fully utilised based on their
proposed use in 2017 and 2018.

On 19 September 2018, the Company completed the open
offer of shares, and a total of 4,903,741,731 new shares
were subscribed by Jingxi Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Fund, Rocket Porade Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("NWS Group”) and ORIX Asia Capital Limited (“ORIX Asia”)
with net proceeds of approximately HK$1,219 million. Out of
the net proceeds, approximately HK$850 million was applied
for the Shougang Park, and the remaining amount was invested
in the car parking assets operation and management business.
The net proceeds have not been utilised so far, and will be used
in the abovementioned activities in the future, to cooperate
closely with Shougang Group to participate in the development
and management of Shougang Park as well as to further
expand the car parking assets operation and management
business. At present, the Group has reserved a number of
quality car park projects with strong demand for liquidity.
With adequate cash reserves, the Group is capable to capture
the opportunity of the high-growth period of the car parking
industry and deliver greater returns to its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

There were no material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
during this year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 19 March 2019, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited
("HOPU"),
Avenue”) and Matrix Partners China V Hong Kong Limited

Red Avenue Investment Group Limited (“Red
(“Matrix Partners”), pursuant to which the subscribers
have conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, a total of
3,384,043,134 subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.25 per subscription share. Upon the completion of the
subscription, HOPU, Red Avenue, and Matrix Partners will hold
approximately 9.9%, 0.438% and 2% of the Company's equity
interest. The net proceeds from the issue of the subscription
shares are estimated to be approximately HK$845 million.
The Company intends to use the net proceeds for general
working capital, further financing the Group’s businesses in
management and operation of car parking assets and urban
renewal-oriented fund management, as well as for funding
other potential investments by the Group in the future.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company issued 6,129,098,315 new shares during this
year.

The issued share capital of the Company was
HK$8,830,429,429 (represented by 24,044,890,769 issued
ordinary shares).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has a total of 413 employees as at 31 December
2018.

The remuneration policies of the Group are to ensure fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration in order to motivate
and retain current employees as well as to attract potential
ones. Remuneration packages are carefully structured to
take into account local practices under various geographical
locations in which the Group operates.

The remuneration packages of employees in Hong Kong
include salary, discretionary bonuses, medical subsidies and
hospitalisation scheme. All of the subsidiaries of the Group in
Hong Kong provide pension schemes to the employees as part
of their staff benefits. The remuneration packages of employees
in the PRC include salary, discretionary bonuses, medical
subsidies and welfare fund contribution as part of their staff

benefits.

PROSPECTS

In 2019, the Group will further reduce and control the scale
of the non-core businesses such as iron ore trading, and focus
more on the car parking assets operation and management and
urban renewal-oriented fund management business.

As of 2018, the car ownership in China has exceeded 240
million, while the gap between the demand for and the actual
number of car parking lots has exceeded 80 million. We
anticipated that the demand for car parking lots in car parks
would remain double-digital growth. The car parking industry
currently has problems including low management efficiency,
excessive market dispersion, and lack of leading enterprise in
the industry, which represented a huge space for integration
and market expansion for Shougang Concord International.
As the only one listed company in China that focuses on the
investment and operation of car parking assets, the Group is
committed to becoming a pioneer and promoter of the car
parking industry. The Group will not only focus on the domestic
market, but also the overseas. It is expected that the Group will
achieve extremely fast development in respect of car parking
operation in the future.
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While creating long-term and stable profits for the Company,
the private fund management business also contributed to
the growth of the Company’s urban renewal and car parking
business. A unique development model of “funds + bases +
industries” was formed, providing a solid foundation for the
robust growth in the future.

In addition, in view of the strong fund-raising capability and
tremendous investors base (international large-scale financial
institutions and provincial and municipal government invested
fund), it is expected that fund management income and
the investment return will continue to rise as the fund size
increases.

However, the original business of trading of imported iron ore
was inconsistent with the strategy of the Group to develop
the car parking assets operation and management and urban
renewal-oriented fund management business. The Group
will further reduce the sales volume of iron ore trading and
dispose the business in a timely manner depending on market
conditions.

In order to support the business transformation, the Group
has successively introduced new strategic shareholders,
namely Shougang Fund, CIMC Group, NWS Group, ORIX Asia,
HOPU, Matrix Partners and Red Avenue, which form synergy
with the business of the Group. Through diversified structure
of shareholders, the Group seeks longer-term and broader
development for the new principal business in the future.

The introduction of strategic shareholders will greatly help the
Company'’s business development, improvement of governance,
and optimisation of risk management. The Group will be more
proactive in seeking projects to expand the existing business,
with the aim of supporting the rapid development of the
Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, aged 38, was appointed an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 January 2018 and is also a member and
the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
degree in science, a Master degree in economics from Peking
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr.
Zhao joined Bl & B BB AR (Shougang Group Co., Ltd.,
“Shougang Group”) in December 2011. He is the assistant to
general manager of Shougang Group, a director of Shougang
Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holding”) and, a
director and the general manager of It R EME S HR A A
Both
Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund are wholly-owned

(Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., “Shougang Fund”).
subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Both Shougang Group and
Shougang Holding are controlling shareholders of the Company
as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Each of Shougang Group, Shougang Holding and
Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Zhao worked in The China Securities Regulatory
Commission, Beijing Municipal Commission of Development
and Reform and in Peking University. He has extensive
experience in company operation and management, investment
and capital operation.
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Mr. Li Shaofeng, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Managing Director of the Company in May
2010 and was re-designated from the Managing Director to the
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on
6 January 2018 and is also a member of each of the Executive
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor degree in Automation from University
of Science and Technology Beijing. Mr. Li joined Shougang
Group in 1989 and held many senior positions in the group
companies of Shougang Group. He is also an executive director
and the managing director of Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”, an associate of the
Company), and an executive director of BeijingWest Industries
International Limited (“BeijingWest International”). Mr. Li is
also a non-executive director of Mount Gibson Iron Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. He was
the chairman of Shougang Resources (resigned on 18 January
2018), an executive director and the chairman of Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”, an
associate of the Company) (resigned on 18 January 2018) and
an executive director and the chairman of each of Shougang
Concord Grand (Group) Limited (“Shougang Grand”) and
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (“GDC") (both
resigned on 14 June 2017). All of Shougang Resources,
BeijingWest International, Shougang Century, Shougang Grand
and GDC are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li has extensive
experience in management of listed companies, investments
and capital operation.

Mr. Xu Liang, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is also a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. He graduated
from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree in Statistics and
obtained a Master degree in Business Administration from
Tsinghua University and is a senior accountant. Mr. Xu joined
the group of Shougang Group in 1988 and held various senior
positions. He is also the managing director of Shougang
Holding. Mr. Xu is also an executive director and the chairman
of Shougang Grand, an executive director of GDC and was the
chairman of GDC (resigned on 21 July 2018). He has extensive
experience in management.
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Mr. Liang Hengyi, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Managing Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member of each of the Executive
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He holds a Master degree in Economics and a Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Management and is a senior economist.
Mr. Liang was the managing director of Shougang Fund. He
also served as the general manager of non-fare business unit of
Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd., the general manager
of Beijing Capital Investment Rail Transit Assets Management
Company and the president of Beijing Urban Underground
Space Development and Construction Co., Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Yinhui, aged 51, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree
in Arts (History) and a Doctorate degree in World Economy
from the Jilin University in 1991 and 2001 respectively, and
a Master degree in Business Administration from the Nanjing
University in 1997. Dr. Li completed his Postdoctoral research
in China Centre for International Economic Exchanges in 2016.
He is also a non-executive director and the chairman of CIMC-
TianDa Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China
Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange and a vice-president of China International
Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on both
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange. Dr. Li has
extensive experience in managing large-scale enterprises.
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Mr. Liu Jingwei, aged 51, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is also
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the School of Economics of Beijing Forestry
University in 1989 and from Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance with a Master degree in 2016. Mr. Liu is a PRC Certified
Public Accountant. He currently serves as a senior partner of
Shinewing Certified Public Accountants and is an external
director of Shougang Group. Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of China Nonferrous Mining Corporation
Limited,
independent director of Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass

a company listed on the Stock Exchange, an

Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
and an independent director of each of Guiyang Longmaster
Information & Technology Co., Ltd. and Beiling StarNeto
Technology Co., Ltd. (appointed on 16 May 2018), both are
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He was an independent
director of Jinxi Axle Company Limited (resigned on 8 March
2017), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, and
Xuzhou Kerong Environmental Resources Co., Ltd. (resigned on
2 June 2017), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, aged 42, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Laws
degree from University of Sydney, Australia and was admitted
as a solicitor in New South Wales, Australia and England and
Wales and as a solicitor and barrister in the High Court of
Australia. Mr. Ho is also a fellow member of CPA Australia.
He is a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shenyang, a standing committee
member of the Youth Federation of Inner Mongolia and a vice
chairman of Inner Mongolia & Hong Kong Youth Exchange
Association. Mr. Ho is an executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited (appointed on 9 July 2018), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, a non-executive director of Wai Kee Holdings
Limited (appointed on 31 December 2018) and an independent
non-executive director of each of Kam Hing International
Holdings Limited, Hailiang International Holdings Limited and
Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, all being listed on
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the Stock Exchange. He was the senior investment director
of New World Development Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and an executive director of New World
Strategic Investment Limited. Mr. Ho was also a partner of an
international law firm Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson
LLP. He was an executive director of HMV Digital China Group
Limited (resigned on 28 June 2017) and an executive director
and the chief executive officer of AID Partners Technology
Holdings Limited (now known as AID Life Science Holdings
Limited) (resigned on 1 January 2018), both are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in the area of
corporate management, investments, corporate finance, merger
and acquisition transactions and international brand and retail
management.

Mr. Li Hao, aged 37, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 September 2018. He holds
a Bachelor degree from Dalian University of Technology
and a Master of Business Administration degree in Finance
from Waseda University, Japan. Mr. LI has been with ORIX
Corporation (“ORIX") since October 2007. He is currently the
managing director of Greater China Division, East Asia Business
Headquarters at ORIX, a diversified financial services company
and whose shares are listed on both Tokyo Stock Exchange and
New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Li also serves as the director and
president of each of ORIX (China) Investment Company Limited
and ORIX Asia Capital Limited, both of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of ORIX. He is also a non-executive director of each
of Panda Green Energy Group Limited (appointed on 20 March
2017) and Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. (appointed on 27
August 2018), both are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wang Xin, aged 41, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and,
is also a member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He received his Ph.D. degree in Accounting from Duke
University in 2006 and obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Tsinghua University in 1999
and 2001 respectively. Dr. Wang is an associate professor of
accounting at the Faculty of Business and Economics, The
He joined HKU in 2011
and was awarded a tenured position by HKU for his excellent

University of Hong Kong (“HKU").

academic performance in 2014. Before he joined HKU, Dr.
Wang worked at The Chinese University of Hong Kong from
2006 to 2011. Dr. Wang has research interests in the fields of
executive compensation, financial disclosure quality, corporate
governance and insider trading. His papers were published
on various world leading academic journals, such as Journal
of Accounting and Economics, The Accounting Review,
Contemporary Accounting Research and Review of Accounting
Studies. Dr. Wang teaches the course of Management
Accounting for the IMBA program at HKU. He has teaching
experience in several accounting courses, including Introductory
Financial Accounting, and Intermediate Financial Accounting
| and Il. Dr. Wang also teaches (as one of co-instructors) the
Ph.D. course of Research Methods for Business Studies. He was
an independent non-executive director of China First Chemical
Holdings Limited (resigned on 15 August 2018), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, aged 54, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree, Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws and a Master degree from HKU in 1997, 1998 and
2001 respectively. Mr. Choi is a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong. He also serves as a consultant of Howse Williams
(formerly known as Howse Williams Bowers) and a managing
director of Mainland Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Choi
served as deputy head of compliance, area compliance officer
in China and head of compliance with HSBC Bank (China) Co.
Ltd., where he managed over 160 compliance officers and
was responsible for regulatory compliance and prevention and
control of financial crime in over 60 cities in China. He worked
at Clifford Chance and Herbert Smith and was specialized in
compliance, anti-money laundering, anti-fraud and corporate
finance and other advisory work. Mr. Choi served in the Hong
Kong Police Force and was a senior inspector. He has over 30
years of experience in compliance management, prevention
and control of commercial crime and investigation, and has
extensive experience in legal practice and, crime investigation
and prosecution.
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Mr. Deng Yougao, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and
is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Economics from JTFERf &L &P (Institute
of Finance and Economics of Jiangxi, now known as Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics) in 1994 and a Bachelor
degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from M E MR T2
Bt (Harbin Shipbuilding Engineering Institute, now known as
Harbin Engineering University) in 1988. Mr. Deng is a director
of RYIME BIPT E A KEHEBR 2R (Shenzhen Henggu Anti-
corrosion Nano Technology Co., Ltd.), the chairman of the
board and the general manager of FI THEXEKREE
AR A A (Shenzhen City Weishi Chengzhang Investment
Management Co., Ltd.) and a supervisor of each of /&M /O E
LRAE TR AR A A (Shanghai Xinyi Darongxun Electronic
Shares Co., Ltd., which had been listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations System till 8 July 2018) and JFIlTH
AT/S O EHE B R A (Shenzhen Qianhai Shi Xin Technology
Co., Ltd.). He is also an independent non-executive director of
Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (appointed on
29 March 2018), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Deng has numerous experiences in different roles in various
companies in different industries.

Ms. Zhang Quanling, aged 45, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member and the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Zhang joined China Central Television in 1997 and has hosted
the famous programmes such as “Oriental Horizon” and
“Focus Interview"”. She participated in numerous news live
coverage and was awarded the Golden Microphone Awards,
the Golden Eagle Awards, the Fan Changjiang Journalism
Award, the most prestigious journalism award in China, and the
19th top ten Outstanding Chinese Youths. Ms. Zhang currently
is the founding partner of Ziniu Fund. She has extensive
experience in news media, brand building and strategic
planning.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and
transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions, and
where applicable, met the recommended best practices in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of twelve Directors, being
four Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is
set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors and
their roles and functions is published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by wide diversity and has a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors
are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices
held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments with an indication of the time involved.
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Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 62 to 69 of this annual
report, the Board members have no other financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-
executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments. They give
the Board and the committees on which they serve the benefit
of their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent
Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate
communications to shareholders.
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Board diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its
approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

Role and function of the Board and the
management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-
day operations of the Company to the Executive Committee
and senior management within the control and authority
framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and endeavors to hold at least four
Board meetings a year. Additional meetings will be arranged,
if and when required. The Directors can attend meetings in
person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. A draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in
the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14 days’
notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
The Company also aims at sending the agenda and the
accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it, to all Directors 5 days,
but at least 3 days, before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given if possible.

The Board has procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company's expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them in performing their duties to
the Company.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Director/committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with
connected persons) which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent Non-
executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at that
Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he or any of his close associates
(or associates where the transaction or arrangement is a
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
has a material interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum
present at the meeting.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the

Directors have made active contribution to the affairs of the

Group and 16 physical Board meetings were held to consider,

among other things, various projects contemplated by the

Group and to review and approve the interim results and

annual results of the Group.

The attendance records of Directors at Board meetings and

H 5T 8%
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BE2018F12A3MH IV HFEERN  EFNE

other committees meetings as well as general meetings during =& -HEthZB8e kKRS 2 HELEHT
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the table #1T:
below:
Number of general
Number of meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
LR/ BTEERY R/ BOIRRAERE
Executive Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual General ~ General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meetings Note
Director Bz Ezg BTERE EHKZERE REZEE FHZEEE RREFAE RRAE Vifi3
Executive Directors HirES
Zhao Tianyang (Chairmen of WG (EFE-

the Board, Executive and HITEBBR

Nomination Committees) EZE2FE) 115 9/9 = 5/6 = 17 03 1
Li Shaofeng Zhig

(Vice Chairman of the Board) (EZ251F) 16/16 1010 - - 813 1 33
Xu Liang #E 9/9 5/5 - - - S 13 2
Liang Hengyi (Managing Director) ~ R&% (EZ4#4%) 15/15 9/9 - 6/6 - 1n 03 7
Ding Rucai Tar 0/ n - - - - - 7
Shu Hong ik m 5/5 - - - 1n = 2
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Li Yinhui ZIHE 13/15 - 113 - i 01 03 1
Liu Jingwei 25 15/15 - 33 - i n 073 7
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang mEE 8/9 - 11 - - - 03 2
Li Hao & 33 - - - - - 0/t 3
Zhang Bingcheng R 01 - - 17N - - - 7
Leung Shun Sang Tony 2EE 6/6 - - 22 22 n - 4
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES

Directors
Wang Xin (Chairman of Audit I&

Committee) (BKZEEBTE) 10110 - 22 5/5 6/6 - 03 4
Choi Fan Keung Vic BEH 10/10 - 2 - 6/6 - 33 4
Deng Yougao Hem 10/10 - 20 5/5 - = 33 4
Zhang Quanling (Chairlady of KRE

Remuneration Committee) (HHERRLE) 1115 - 113 6/6 Vi i1 03 1
Kan Lai Kuen Alice HER 46 - 7 1 17 01 - 4
Wong Kun Kim 3k 5/6 - n 212 212 n - 4
Leung Kai Cheung RHE 6/6 - n 212 212 n - 4

75



76

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBEEGRAR
Annual Report 2018 F R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
N 'M\L\iﬁd:

Notes:

7 Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Liang Hengyi, Dr. Li Yinhui, Mr. Liu Jingwei
and Ms. Zhang Quanling were appointed, and Mr. Ding Rucai and
Mr. Zhang Bingcheng resigned, as Directors with effect from 6
January 2018.

2. Mr. Xu Liang and Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang were appointed, and Mr.
Shu Hung resigned, as Directors with effect from 21 May 2018.

3. Mr. Li Hao was appointed as a Director with effect from 27
September 2018.
4. Mr. Leung Shun Sang Tony and Ms. Kan Lai Kuen Alice retired, Mr.

Wong Kun Kim and Mr. Leung Kai Cheung resigned, and Dr. Wang
Xin, Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic and Mr. Deng Yougao were appointed,
as Directors with effect from the conclusion of the 2018 annual
general meeting held on 18 May 2018.

Access to information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and
information by the management to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before it for approval. The management provides all Board
members with monthly updates which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by
the management, each Director has the right to separately and
independently access to the Company’s senior management to
make further enquiries if necessary.

Bet

1. HABFELE REF AL FTHIEIES BIRE
FERRRELTEEAREEF HURTXT
FTERKTHEEFTEE H2018F1H6H
HEL -

2. BRESERMEESLEEERBEF K REF
HELFTEE  H2018F5H21HEL -

3. GBS EREE  H2018F9H27 HHELE

e

4. RIFLFLRGEIEL T RIFEF FHEE
HRRESFELHIEE RIBEL HER
FERBESALEZAREE H2018F5H
18T ZRRBEFAEBRELH

ERZER
BEHERANESSRETINEEREN =
EEgnURRRGREMENMBEREME
B ELBAERENFE - EEESRARNESS
EEXEBRHUEFNEN REFSBBELS
EZRBAREHEREFVHARRNRE
RARAMRBRLERSRIEROFE  AERE
TRE - HEMNESFEEEEIHRHENE
BIASNERINER SEZHAERNERFER
BITEREARRSREEABIFE—FEH-



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy and review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy,
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or, in the case of an addition to their number, until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
3 years. The Directors who are subject to retirement and re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out on page 107 of this annual report.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have
entered into service agreements or letters of engagement with
the Company for a term of not more than 3 years.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) effective on 1 January 2019 which sets
out the nomination procedures and criteria for the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment as Directors or for
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings.
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Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, prior to a meeting of the
Nomination Committee called for considering candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will invite nominations
of candidates from the Board members or put forward
candidates. The Nomination Committee will consider the
nominated candidates at such committee meeting according
to the criteria of: reputation for integrity; accomplishment and
experience; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and board diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
skills,

service. A selected candidate will then be recommended by

professional experience, knowledge and length of
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and
approval.

A shareholder of the Company may propose a person for
election as a Director in a general meeting pursuant to
procedures set out in the Articles.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 4 Independent Non-executive Directors
and one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
represents one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.
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Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who
has served the board for more than 9 vyears, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company will state in a circular
which will contain, among other things, the notice convening
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
the reasons why the Nomination Committee and the Board
considers Mr. Choi is independent which will include the
number of listed company directorship he is holding, the
perspectives, skills and experience that he can bring to the
Board and how he contributes to diversity of the Board; and
the recommendation to shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of Mr. Choi as a Director.

Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company Secretary facilitates induction and professional
development of Directors and the Company is responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training for the Directors.
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"M\L\iﬁﬂ:

During the year, the Directors were provided with presentation
by qualified professionals, training materials from regulatory
authority and site visits by management team on the latest
developments in the Listing Rules, other applicable laws, rules
and regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities

and the Group's business and operations.

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of
training received during the financial year ended 31 December

2018, a summary of which is as follows:

LHRMRGER-

LINNE

RAFERN NRAARETRAUNNEHER
FRESRGRETNE
BROVAR RSB R R EE
X e HEEHRBENE

fib i@ AR R AR
REFERHEE

B FHA K B 12 [ X

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

REEXRRBEESR

Reading materials Attending briefing

Site visits on
Group's Business
and Operations

BEECRAARARHBEENEE2018%F

12A31H LM BFERRZEIINCE B2

and updates sessions/seminars HAKEEKR  Note
Name of Director = MEREFSHN HEGEN MHE SEEABER M7
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Tianyang fizPN v = v
Li Shaofeng 2 v = v
Xu Liang ®e v v/
Liang Hengyi REH v = v
Ding Rucai T%&F = = = 1
Shu Hong IS = 2
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Li Yinhui FlelE v - v
Liu Jingwei =B v v v
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang EE=§E] v v/ v
Li Hao o v - v
Zhang Bingcheng R - = = 1
Leung Shun Sang Tony 2 g E - = 3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Wang Xin B v v v/
Choi Fan Keung Vic BER v/ v/ v/
Deng Yougao ¥Em v = v
Zhang Quanling RRE v/ - v
Kan Lai Kuen Alice HEH v - - 3
Wong Kun Kim B5HY v - - 2
Leung Kai Cheung RUgE v - - 2
Notes: et -
1 resigned as Director in January 2018 7 R2018F 1 HBHTEZEE
2 resigned as Director in May 2018 2 R2018F5AHEEE

3 retired as Director in May 2018

3 R2018F5 A RITEE
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate
and exercised by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. Currently, Mr. Zhao Tianyang
is the Chairman and Mr. Liang Hengyi serves as the Managing
Director. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities. The Managing Director has overall chief
executive responsibility for the Group's business development
and day-to-day management generally. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing
Director is clearly established and set out in writing.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other

things:

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are
established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues

arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communications with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole;
and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have
their own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the
committees will be reported to the Board at the next Board
meeting.

Executive Committee

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the
Group and has been assigned with the responsibilities to
perform the corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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o to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s
employees and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Li Shaofeng, Mr. Xu Liang and
Mr. Liang Hengyi.
During the year, 10 physical meetings of the Executive
Committee were held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting
was held for the purpose of performing the corporate
governance duties. The attendance of each member at these
meetings is set out in the table above under subsection
“Attendance records” of the section headed “BOARD OF

DIRECTORS”.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of
the Group performed by the Executive Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, reviewing the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

o overseeing the relationship with and engagement of the
Company'’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of
the Group;
o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,

internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and the authority to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary. It is given access to and assistance from
the employees and reasonable resources to perform its duties

properly.
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The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wang Xin, an
Independent Non-executive Director and the members of the
Audit Committee are Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Yinhui, Mr. Liu Jingwei,
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, Mr. Deng
Yougao and Ms. Zhang Quanling. None of the members of
the Audit Committee are former partners of the auditor of the
Company.

During the year, 3 physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of each member is set out in
the table above under subsection “Attendance records” of the
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed the final results of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group for the 6
months ended 30 June 2018;

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group prepared by an
independent advisory firm; and

o considered the change of auditor of the Company
and the engagement letter of the new auditor; and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o determining suitably qualified individual(s) to become
deputy general manager(s) of the Company; and

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviewing the progress on achieving the objectives.
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Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then
be tendered to the Board for approval. In considering the
nomination of a new Director, the Nomination Committee will
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and
take into account the qualification, ability, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates. In
determining the independence of Directors, the Board follows
the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Following the Company’s approval of the adoption of the
Nomination Policy during the year as disclosed above, the
Nomination Committee will follow the nomination procedures
and criteria set out thereunder in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain outside independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhao
Tianyang who is also the Chairman of the Board and members
of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Liang Hengyi, an
Executive Director and Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Deng Yougao and Ms.
Zhang Quanling, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

During the year, 7 physical meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held and the attendance of each member
is set out in the table above under subsection “Attendance
records” of the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included, amongst other things, the following:

. considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and re-designation of Directors and
committees members;

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendations on proposed changes
of Directors and committees members to the Board;

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

° considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting;

o considered and approved the appointments of deputy
general managers of the Company; and

o considered and recommended the Nomination Policy to
the Board for adoption.
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Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

o making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Company’s
goals and objectives;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the Managing Director of the Company about
their remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. It
has explicit authority to seek any necessary information from
the employees within its scope of duties and the authority
to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are based on market alignment and reward for
performance. The Company reviews the remuneration package
annually taking into consideration of the market practice,
competitive market position and individual performance.

The chairlady of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Zhang
Quanling, an Independent Non-executive Director and members
of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Li Shaofeng, an
Executive Director, Dr. Li Yinhui, a Non-executive Director, and
Dr. Wang Xin and Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic who are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and the chief
executive of the Company for the year are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, 8 physical meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of each member
is set out in the table above under subsection “Attendance
records” of the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed and approved the terms of the service
agreements of the Executive Directors and management
of the Company;

. considered, reviewed and determined the remuneration
of the Executive Directors of the Company for the year
2018;

. considered the bonuses of the Executive Directors of the
Company for the year 2017;

. made recommendations to the Board on the terms of the
engagement letters of the Non-executive Directors of the
Company;

o considered the bonuses of the management of the
Company and recommended the relevant bonus
proposal to the Board for consideration; and

° made recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fee of the Non-executive Directors for the years 2018
and 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/
or the Managing Director on corporate governance and the
implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group’s affairs.
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The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the
Managing Director. All Directors also have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, while the Board is responsible for overseeing
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
A review of the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control system has been conducted annually to cover
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Main features of the risk management and

internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: ldentify type of significant risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks

and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going

monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2018, no
significant weakness was identified.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment. A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external

communication to provide the Group with the

information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.
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Internal Auditor

The Group outsources the internal audit work to BDO Financial
Services Limited, which is one of the professional internal audit
services providers in Hong Kong. Internal audit function carries
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The internal audit function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An internal audit plan has been reviewed by the Board.
According to the established plan, review of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
annually and the results are reviewed by the Audit Committee

and reported to the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually
according to the requirements of the CG Code.

The Board,
internal audit function and Audit Committee, concluded

through its review and the review made by

that the risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure
policy (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on
21 December 2015 which sets out the procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information with a view
to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are
provided with full, accurate and timely information about the
activities and the financial condition of the Group. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving
the confidentiality of inside information, escalating
upwards any such potential information and cascading
down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff;
and

o identifying who the Company's authorized spokespersons are
and their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders
of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant
staff regarding the implementation of the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the “"Model

Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”

code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black-out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee herself, she must
notify the Managing Director and receive a dated written

acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:

EEERRE

BT &

RAFEARBE XN, BN FARRRBAE K
BAGERFTE EHANM &I T

HK$'000
Services rendered P42 iR 7% BT T
Audit services EETRE 2,820
Non-audit services IEFFT RS
Interim review fh B 28 ) 370
Tax services B 7% B 7% 264
Others Hib 644
4,098
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EERNUBEHRERNET
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing ZEEZHRAFSEETHEEANEEITERE U

financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis and in presenting the annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 200 to 213 of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to
enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.shougang-intl.com.hk.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address shareholders’ queries.

During the year, 4 general meetings were held. One of the
general meetings was the annual general meeting held on 18
May 2018 (the “2018 AGM") and the others were the general
meetings held on 13 September 2018 and 20 December 2018
(the "GMs") for approving the followings:

1. the subscription agreement dated 24 July 2018 entered
into between the Company and Jingxi Holdings Limited
in relation to the subscription of 2,800,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company (the “Jingxi
Subscription Shares”) by Jingxi Holdings Limited at the
subscription price of HK$0.25 per Jingxi Subscription
Share and the transactions contemplated thereunder;
and the granting of a specific mandate to the Directors
to allot and issue the Jingxi Subscription Shares;
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the subscription agreement dated 24 July 2018 entered
into between the Company and Rocket Parade Limited in
relation to the subscription of 600,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Rocket Subscription
Shares”) by Rocket Parade Limited at the subscription
price of HK$0.25 per Rocket Subscription Share and the
transactions contemplated thereunder; and the granting
of a specific mandate to the Directors to allot and issue
the Rocket Subscription Shares;

the subscription agreement dated 24 July 2018 entered
into between the Company and ORIX Asia Capital
Limited in relation to the subscription of 1,503,741,731
new ordinary shares of the Company (the “Subscription
Shares”) by ORIX Asia Capital Limited at the
subscription price of HK$0.25 per Subscription Share
and the transactions contemplated thereunder; and the
granting of a specific mandate to the Directors to allot
and issue the Subscription Shares;

the fund subscription agreement (the “Fund
Subscription Agreement”) dated 24 July 2018
between the Company and It R E & 2 &N
AR A al(Beijing Shoushi Management Advisory
Co., Ltd., “Shoushi Company”) in relation to the
Company’s participation in dt R B MG E E S E&E
L (AR A %) (Beijing Shoushi Ming Zhi Jin
Xin Economic Consulting Firm (Limited Partnership),
the “Partnership”) as a limited partner for a capital
commitment of RMB135 million; and the partnership
agreement proposed to be entered into among the
Company (or its designated subsidiary), Shoushi
Company and any other limited partner(s) of the
Partnership in relation to the transactions contemplated
under the Fund Subscription Agreement;
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5. the framework agreement dated 12 August 2018
entered into amongst the Company, &= 3 #[F % E R & [E
(B ZE4EIE AR QA (Beijing-Hebei Co-development
Exhibition Zone (Tangshan) Fund Management Co., Ltd.)
and 1t R & 8] & & B BR 2 8] (Beijing Shougang Fund Co.,
Ltd.) in relation to the formation of the funds and the
transactions contemplated thereunder; and

6. the granting of a specific mandate to the Directors to
allot and issue an aggregate of 177,425,528 shares
of the Company to Urban Parking Limited at HK$0.25
each in accordance with the terms of the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 1 November 2018
entered into among the Company, BRI EEE AR
A A](Shouzhong Investment Management Co., Ltd.),
Urban Parking Limited and E%# (It ) FEEEEFR A
7] (Urban Parking (Beijing) Limited).

The former auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
attended the 2018 AGM. Details of the attendance of each
Director at the general meetings of the Company held during
the year are set out in the table above under subsection
“Attendance records” of the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS".

During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched
by the Company to its shareholders for meetings held were
sent for annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and at least 10 clear business days for all
other general meetings. Separate resolutions were proposed at
general meetings on each substantially separate issue, including
the election of individual Directors, and all resolutions put to
the vote of a general meeting were taken by way of a poll. At
the general meetings, the chairman of the meetings explained
the procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions
from shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the
poll were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a relevant right to vote at a general
meeting can request the Company to circulate to the
shareholders of the Company a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting
pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses shall be borne
by the shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice
of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to be
circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.

EEERRE

IR ERAEF
BRBRRAE

RIBEFBEDIE622F R EEHIE5661% (52
BERERRARG LRRNAQRABMRNA
RREZRDVS%HRRAERLEEFRAMEAN
S AHERALHABGEBEBRRAE L&
ENEEHN-—REERAIREATERRAE L
REBBDELRERRAREG LHHARENX
AR o % BRBEYR H B SKA R R RE R AHIA
BAREFHARRXARB T AAME -

ERRAESREER

RIEBEEBEADIFE622E R EEHIE5801%  (h2
BERRAS LERBRRAENORAFRE
MBERRERL25%ME k& P508%
BRERE B HEBRAENORE AT A ERAK
ARAAARFREEHEFERRTEAE LEE
B EEREAREMANERT KEMEF
ERERG LRENEEMFTETZ 1,000
FHRMLE - RIEEHSERRFEBAFAE -
AR A KB E RRARME  FARRFE
BHEZBARAIRNEIMMLE  TAIBA
BHRLEERNBREAE EEEREKEE
FEHNBRMERBLEMBREZERHRE
RE WEACZEKRMBATHIREASRHLD
TEHUEIAE AL EFERNARARARFTAA
M o

101



102

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERERE

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at an
annual general meeting can request the Company to give to
the shareholders of the Company notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the
attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate,
or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 214 to
378 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development
to be an objective. Under the dividend policy adopted by the
Company, dividends may be recommended, declared and paid
to shareholders from time to time. In summary, the declaration
of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board, taking into

consideration of, among others, the following factors:

° financial results;

o shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;

o capital requirements;

o taxation considerations;

o contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any;
and

o any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgREE

EECENIREEEEREERARRIREN
B ([A&EE])EH=2018F12A831HIEF
EZEEBERYERER UHEE-
FTEEK
ARRIZEBEBAEREER - STEWEAR
A BERRRAE R ZEKINNREGEASE
ERERMFEI7R18 -

ES

AREEEHF2018F12A3MBILFEZEEN
AEBRZBZUBRRABEIN N AFEHRE214
BEFIV8HE BB AMBRE -

KRR

EZenEREARREREELRFRHAK
SENARRERRETRHE REAQAR
MO ERR  ARAIHETHRABREZRE
EMRERB -BENE REERELES
SZR (KT BE) A TERERBERT

. BHES:
. REEH:

. BEEBRRDER
. E2BER

. BBEERE:

. BRCEERBRERS (WH) Rk

. Exgr R aRBEnNEmMEERE-

8

103



104

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEGREE

Where a dividend is being declared in any particular financial
year, the total amount of payment shall not exceed 50% of the
accumulated profits available for distribution during such given
financial year.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in
the total amount of HK$700 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil), payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Monday, 17 June 2019. Based on
the enlarged total number of issued shares of 27,428,933,903
shares of the Company immediately following the completion
of the subscriptions of shares pursuant to the subscription
agreements announced by the Company on 19 March 2019,
such a final dividend would amount to HK$2.55 cents per
share.

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held
on Tuesday, 28 May 2019 (the “AGM"), the final dividend is
expected to be paid on or about Thursday, 18 July 2019. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 17 June 2019 for
registration.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 23 May 2019 to Tuesday, 28 May 2019 (both days
inclusive) to determine the shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. During such period, no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 May 2019 for registration.

EEMFEMBRFESREER  E5EM R
FEAXAENSEB50%MHRER DA
e

BEEghaERREHE2018F12A318 1t
FEZAREBREALERETET (2017F 1 £)
FR2019F6 17 (28— ) 2 XKHELER
A ARNBIREZMAZRE - RIEARA
M2019F3 198 A EMRE R HEER
RO ERERNDAEREAD FHITRG BE
27,428,933,903% - Z R EAR B % B EAR2.55
AL

HARERFN2019F5 A28H (BH - ) BT 2 AR
ARRAFRg ((RERAFEARE]) L E#
KR REANR B8 - THEAREAAR B 20194
7R18H (EHM) Ik - RS EREBIRER
ZARERE FIBRPEXHERBEARENE
201964178 (E 8 —) T F4K30% Al
REARNBZROBEFELREZESRFER
DRI RBBERFRERISIRE A O
22 MR MOHBFER-

EENERMBFER

ARA 201958238 (£ HM) E2019
F5H28H (EHZ) (BEEEMAB) Ei=i
BERHBPER UBRERREFERBRRRESF
AEURELRECER BEBETHER
REIRHNBLERE - BEEREEREAF KR
BYRELRE BB XHERMBBEARKRE
WIEFR2019F 58228 (28 =) T 48309
A REARRZRNBFRELESEERERE
ERAR MUt ABEEF/RNBRISIHAM
L2218 AIB AR B B AL -



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 35 and pages 36 to 61 of this annual report
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 379 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued an aggregate of
6,129,098,315 new ordinary shares, details of which are set out
in the section headed “SHARES ISSUED" below.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2017: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

are:

Executive Directors

Zhao Tianyang (appointed with effect from 6 January 2018)

Li Shaofeng

Xu Liang (appointed with effect from 21 May 2018)

Liang Hengyi (appointed with effect from 6 January 2018)
Shu Hong (resigned with effect from 21 May 2018)

Ding Rucai (resigned with effect from 6 January 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Li Yinhui (appointed with effect from 6 January 2018)

Liu Jingwei (appointed with effect from 6 January 2018)

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang (appointed with effect from 21 May 2018)

Li Hao (appointed with effect from 27 September 2018)

Leung Shun Sang Tony (retired with effect from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)

Zhang Bingcheng (resigned with effect from 6 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wang Xin (appointed with effect from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)
Choi Fan Keung Vic (appointed with effect from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)
Deng Yougao (appointed with effect from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)
Zhang Quanling (appointed with effect from 6 January 2018)
Kan Lai Kuen Alice (retired with effect from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)
Wong Kun Kim (resigned with effect from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)
Leung Kai Cheung (resigned with effect from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018)
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

In accordance with articles 93 and 102(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Xu Liang, Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang,
Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Li Shaofeng, Mr. Liu Jingwei and Mr. Choi Fan
Keung Vic will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company include Zhao Tianyang, Li
Shaofeng, Liang Hengyi, Ding Rucai*, Shu Hong, Leung Shun
Sang, Tony*, Bao Linsheng, Chang Yingxin, Chen Yu*, Chen
Zhichao, Chen Zhong, Ching Chien Wei*, Fu Qiang, Hao Bolin,
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang*, Ji Weizheng, Jia Tinting, Jiang Molin*,
Li Chensong, Li Na, Li Qingyang, Li Yinhui, Lin Yan, Liu Hongyi,
Liu Wenbin, Liu Ying*, Ma lJian*, Meng Yue, Meng Ziyang,
Ng Tik Hong*, Qin Gang, Ryan Reed Botjer, Shen Zhuolin, Shi
Xiaodong, Song Qinggiu*, Sui Changzheng, Tan Long, Tian
Aibin, Wang Hongpeng, Wang Jinyong*, Wang Lei*, Wu Jing,
Xia Xiaohong, Xie Peng, Xu Huajie, Xu Ke, Yang Junlin*, Yu
Haiyang, Yu Yuqun*, Zhang Beicen*, Zhang Chunping, Zhang
Jun, Zhang Lan, Zhang Meng, Zhao Xiaotong, Zhao Yongshi*
and Zou Derong*.

* Ceased to be directors of relevant subsidiaries of the Company as at
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:
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(a)

(b)

Long positions in the shares and underlying (a)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

shares of the Company
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RAEXRRDREBARG 2FR

% of the total
number of shares of
the Company in issue
as at 31.12.2018

EERDE
Capacity in which Number of 20185 12831H
Name of Director interests were held shares held ERITRHLE
BEspgg BERRZ SR BERGHA ZED
Liang Hengyi Beneficial owner 3,880,000 0.0161
2% BEmiEA A
Liu Jingwei Beneficial owner 1,380,000 0.0057
Elp =g ERBAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 300,000 0.0012
REEBER (MiE)
Wang Xin Beneficial owner 200,000 0.0008
& ERBAA
Interest of spouse 1,000,000 0.0042
Bic 15 8 &
Note: Kt -

These shares were held by Sunshine Express International Consulting
Company Limited, which was 100% controlled by Mr. Liu Jingwei.

Long positions in the shares of associated (b)

corporation of the Company

ZERG B RNE L E100%5E #8915 5k E 8
REFHBERLAFFE -

REQATEBEIE 2RO ZHFR
% of the
total number of
shares of

the associated
corporation

in issue as at

Number of shares 31.12.2018

in the associated 16 BB R

Name of Capacity in which corporation held 720185 12831H

Name of Director associated corporation interests were held BEREEE ERTROAEH
BEEnA HBEEAE KFERZZSH BRGEE ZAED
Li Shaofeng Shougang Concord Century Beneficial owner 1,652,000 0.0859

Lk

Holdings Limited
BEREEEEERAH

EafEAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had registered any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the section headed "“DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” herein,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its
parent company was a party and in which a Director or his/her
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

B EXCRIREEE SN R2018F12A31H - &F
SRR REERITHABRBEESE 2 BB AB
ENARR A E AR EBRD - HERG
SEEEPRE CEARABREZISFRHE
BOIEIS2EREBEFZELMPLHE A
MERIAR  KIRBFEETUNESITHAER
NE| MR 2 A RSB A A

EERERDNERER ZEF

BAFREERKRSTHRABRRKRD  HEH
Ry E#BEzZRENRR] — MR EE
S AN E R B ) - AN 2 &) 3% H A fa] B
BAR HBRARSIEGRRNEAKERF
BESETVENLH EEFIHREEAL
FESARm T N\EOFRAEBEARRAHE
I E A A B 2 Ity sk B mES A -

EERRG THIASH2ER

RARHEEMMBEAR HERARKEHR
AMERMBARERNFEERBRAFEE
AREA SERITEAEAKREXBARL
THEERG LHRAH EHEEREH
BERERARERESEANE -



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following
Directors have declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

Name of entity
whose businesses are
considered to compete
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EERNEFRE2ER

RIBLTRAUNESNF ATEFCEERS
RATER B AR (L TEREFEZER
BRARRZEEURRARA R HAAEEE
AREBARIEDEZER) MESRBRER
RAFERNEARERBEREXIHERF
HABERBAR BT

Description of businesses
of the entity which are
considered to compete
or likely to compete

or likely to compete with the businesses Nature of
with the businesses of the Group interest of
of the Group EBERE the Director
EBERAELAER BEAREEEK in the entity
Name of Director FBEHRFREE 8 AR S T BE AR ESRERRES
Esns BRBECERZERE BECERCZEN ZHERZME
Zhao Tianyang Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Trading of iron ore and Director
=P Limited ("Shougang Holding")* steel products o
BER (FE)BRAR" HEAONMMMERE S
([E@ER])
IErREHESER A A" Fund management Director and
(Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.)¥  E&E&EE General
Manager
EEFERE
Xu Liang Shougang Holding* Trading of iron ore and Director
"= EE e steel products o
HEAONMMMERE S
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang Urban Parking Limited* Car park management Director
CE=XE] EWEESEBERLOA EESER 5%
Li Shaofeng* Shougang Holding* Trading of iron ore and steel Director
=D+ ERit e products =
HiEA LM ERE
Zhang Bingcheng” Shougang Holding* Trading of iron ore and steel Director
R A A" EER products o)
HEANMMMERE S
Ding Rucai” Shougang Holding* Trading of iron ore and steel Director
T EE products o=
HEAORHAMERE S
# Such businesses may be carried out through the subsidiaries or — * BEXG A BRI ER B LA HER
associates of the entity concerned or by way of other forms of BlS E MR E T T
investments.
* Mr. Li Shaofeng resigned as a director of Shougang Holding

with effect from 3 January 2018.

Mr. Zhang Bing Cheng and Mr. Ding Rucai resigned as Directors
with effected from 6 January 2018.
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The Board is independent from the boards of the above-
mentioned entities and is accountable to the Company's
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent
Non-executive Directors whose views carry significant weight
in the Board's decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
businesses of these entities.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of
the Company

E=xgBURN LA ERZESS YARMAR
ARRAE - AEBZBYIFRTEERRD
B -HEFERRREHEREEZER
HARERERZATRIEZEZERSELE

REZE-
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2
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12A318 TIAT (BREFHKARRR&ESIT
BABIN RARE IR RABRIRR D #EA sk
WRERSE BEARAIREESKBEKH
E336IEMTE BB Tz ELMP Rz ik

N
RE

RADEREHERDZFR

% of the
total number of
shares of the

Company in
issue as at
31.12.2018
EARAR
Capacity in which Number of shares/  #2018%12A31H
Name of shareholder interests were held underlying shares ERITROEE Note
BRRAE KEREZZSH R4 HERGEHE ZEIK Hiit
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 12,633,903,865 52.54 1
("Shougang Group”) _corporations
HEREERRAR ([EHER]) REEE R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited Interests of controlled 2,677,425,528 11.14 2
#corporations
RIEEE 2 R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 2,677,425,528 11.14 2
_corporations
XEEEER
Rocket Parade Limited Beneficial owner 2,677,425,528 11.14 2
ERERA
ORIX Corporation Interests of controlled 1,503,741,731 6.25 3
_corporation
Bht&E XEEBEzER
ORIX Asia Capital Limited Beneficial owner 1,503,741,731 6.25 3
BMAOLTENERERAR ERERA



Notes:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

Shougang Group is interested in all the shares held by its direct
and indirect subsidiaries, namely, Shougang Holding (holding
360,601,160 shares), China Gate Investments Limited (holding
2,757,829,774 shares), Grand Invest International Limited (holding
768,340,765 shares), Wide Success Holdings Limited (holding
4,106,748,921 shares), Prime Success Investments Limited (holding
48,574,000 shares), Lyre Terrace Management Limited (holding
230,000 shares) and Jingxi Holdings Limited (holding 4,591,579,245
shares).

Rocket Parade Limited is wholly-owned by NWS FM Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS FM Holdings Limited. NWS
FM Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by NWS Service Management
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman lIslands) ("NWS Service”). NWS
Service is wholly-owned by NWS Holdings Limited which is held as
to 60.99% by New World Development Company Limited, which
is in turn held as to 44.46% by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”). Chow Tai Fook Enterprises is
wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, which is held as
to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, which is in turn held
as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and as to
46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited respectively.

ORIX Corporation is interested in all the shares held by its wholly-
owned subsidiary, ORIX Asia Capital Limited.

December 2018, the

Company had not been notified of any person (other than

a Director or chief executive of the Company), who had any

interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Bet
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, at no time during the year had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
their subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
or any contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there
is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual

report.

SHARES ISSUED

(a)

Issued 1,047,931,056 shares on 26 March 2018

On 12 March 2018, the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Shouzhong (Hong Kong) Limited,
entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”)
with CIMC Transportation Equipment (International)
Holdings Limited (“CIMC Transportation”) to acquire
44.94382% in the registered capital of Shouzhong
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B EEHEAR
A 7], "Shouzhong Investment”) (the “Acquisition”)
from CIMC Transportation at a consideration of
RMB209,884,269 to be settled by the Company issuing
to CIMC Transportation or its designated person(s) an
aggregate of 1,047,931,056 new ordinary shares of the
Company at the issue price of HK$0.2475 per share (the
“Consideration Shares”), equivalent to an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$259,362,936.36. The issue
price of HK$0.2475 per Consideration Share represented
a premium of approximately 2.27% to the closing
price of HK$0.242 per ordinary share of the Company
as at the date of entering into the Agreement. The
Consideration Shares were allotted and issued to CIMC
Transportation upon completion of the Acquisition on
26 March 2018 under the general mandate to issue and
deal in the ordinary shares of the Company granted by
the shareholders to the Directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2017.
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(b)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

Issued 4,903,741,731 shares on 19 September

2018

In response to the funding needs of the Group, the

Company entered into the following agreements on 24
July 2018:

(i)

(i)

a subscription agreement (the "Jingxi
Subscription Agreement”) with Jingxi
Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Group, and a subscription agreement (the
“Rocket Subscription Agreement”) with
Rocket Parade Limited (“Rocket Parade”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company (Jingxi
Subscription Agreement and Rocket Subscription
Agreement together, the “Connected
Subscription Agreements”). Pursuant to
the Connected Subscription Agreements, the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue, and Jingxi Holdings and Rocket Parade
have conditionally agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of 3,400,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Connected Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25
per Connected Subscription Share, equivalent
to an aggregate amount of approximately

HK$850,000,000.

a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with ORIX Asia Capital Limited
("ORIX Asia”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue and
ORIX Asia has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for an aggregate of 1,503,741,731 new ordinary
shares of the Company (the "Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25 per
Subscription Share, equivalent to an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$375,935,433.

(b)
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The subscription price of HK$0.25 per Connected
Subscription Share and Subscription Share represented
a premium of approximately 28.8660% over the
closing price of HK$0.1940 per ordinary share of the
Company as at the date of entering into the Connected
Subscription Agreements and Subscription Agreement.
Completion of the Connected Subscription Agreements
and the Subscription Agreement took place on 19
September 2018. The Connected Subscription Shares
and Subscription Shares were allotted and issued on 19
September 2018 under the specific mandate to issue and
deal in the ordinary shares of the Company granted by
the shareholders to the Directors at the general meeting
of the Company held on 13 September 2018.

Details of the total funds raised from the issue of the
Connected Subscription Shares and the Subscription
Shares and the use of proceeds are set out under
the section headed “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES” in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

(¢) Issued 177,425,528 shares on 28 December
2018

On 1 November 2018, the Company, Shouzhong
Investment, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as the purchaser, Urban Parking Limited (“Urban
Parking”) as the vendor and Urban Parking (Beijing)
Limited (B3 (I R)EEEEBFR A A "Urban
Parking Beijing”) as the target company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which Shouzhong
Investment conditionally agreed to acquire and Urban
Parking conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity
interest in Urban Parking Beijing (the “Sale Shares”) at
a total consideration of RMB49,380,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$55,591,831), of which RMB9,980,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,235,449) shall
be settled by cash and RMB39,400,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$44,356,382) shall be settled by
an aggregate of 177,425,528 new ordinary shares of
the Company (the “Consideration Shares”) to be
allotted and issued by the Company to Urban Parking at
HK$0.25 per Consideration Share (the “Acquisition”).
The issue price of HK$0.25 per Consideration Share
represented a premium of approximately 42.045% to
the closing price of HK$0.176 per ordinary share of the
Company as at the date of entering into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement.

The Consideration Shares were allotted and issued
upon completion of the Acquisition on 28 December
2018 under the specific mandate to issue and deal in
the ordinary shares of the Company granted by the
independent shareholders to the Directors at the general
meeting of the Company held on 20 December 2018.

Further details of the transactions contemplated under the
Agreement, Connected Subscription Agreements, Subscription
Agreement and Sale and Purchase Agreement are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and also in
the Company’s announcements dated 12 March 2018, 24 July
2018 and 1 November 2018 and circulars dated 27 August
2018 and 28 November 2018.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “SHARES ISSUED"
above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
(whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, details
of which are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented
approximately 53.2% of the Group’s total sales, of which
the sales attributable to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 14.5% of the Group's total sales; whereas the
aggregate amount of purchase attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers represented approximately 91.6% of the
Group's total purchases, of which the purchases attributable to
the largest supplier for the Group accounted for approximately
71.3% of the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any beneficial
interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions and continuing

connected transactions were recorded during the year and up

to the date of this annual report:

Connected Transactions

(a)

Lease Agreement dated 2 February 2018

On 2 February 2018, Chengdu Shouzhong Easy Parking
Management Ltd. (K& EH ZRIFESERBAER A
7], “Chengdu Shouzhong"),
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a lease

an indirect non wholly-

agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with South China
International Leasing Company Limited (“South China
Leasing”), pursuant to which South China Leasing has
agreed to provide finance lease to Chengdu Shouzhong
by way of sale and leaseback the underground carpark
(comprising 1,457 car parking spaces) located at
no. 222 Ji Rui Wu Road, Gaoxin District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province, PRC, representing the state-owned
construction land use rights/the property (building)
ownership rights of a commercial land with shared
parcel of land area of 20,551.37 square meters and
property floor area of 46,870.09 square meters (the
“Leased Assets”) to Chengdu Shouzhong for a term
of one year, subject to an extension for another year
upon mutual agreement at a fixed annual interest rate
of 7.15%. The aggregate lease payments payable to
South China Leasing under the Lease Agreement shall be
approximately RMB63,345,833, comprising (i) principal
amount of RMB60,000,000 (being the consideration
for purchasing of the Leased Assets); and (ii) interest
of approximately RMB3,345,833 calculated based on a
fixed annual interest rate of 5.5%. South China Leasing
is also entitled to a handling fee of RMB900,000,
payable by Chengdu Shouzhong to South China Leasing
prior to the commencement of the lease term. At the
end of the term of the Lease Agreement, Chengdu
Shouzhong will purchase the Leased Assets at a nominal
purchase price of RMB1.
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(b)

The entering into of the Lease Agreement will enable
Chengdu Shouzhong to finance its investment.

Given that South China Leasing is an associate of
Shougang Group, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and therefore is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules, the transaction
contemplated under the Lease Agreement constituted
a connected transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction and
the connected relationship were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 2 February 2018.

Partnership Agreement dated 12 February 2018

On 12 February 2018, Beijing-Hebei Co-development
Exhibition Zone (Tangshan) Fund Management Co.,
Ld (REBREEREGER (BEL)ESEEFR LA,
“Jingji Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a partnership agreement (the
“Partnership Agreement”) with Beijing Shougang
Fund Co., Ltd. (kR EHMEELBR A A, “Shougang
Fund”), a subsidiary of Shougang Group, Caofeidian
Financial Development Group Co., Ltd. (B2 A< fl % E
£ B ERAF, “Caofeidian Financial Development”)
and China Merchants Securities Assets Management Co.,
Ltd. (HEEHFEEERABR2AGE, "China Merchants
Assets Management”) for the establishment of a
partnership (the “Partnership”) for a term of eight
years. The Partnership will engage in equity investments
and other investments as permitted by law with a focus
on investing in infrastructure development projects and
related services in the Beijing-Hebei Caofeidian Co-
development Exhibition Zone (R E & i A # [ & & '~
&% ) and in industries relocating from Beijing in sectors
encouraged by the PRC government and in line with the
investment requirements of Shougang Fund. The total
capital contribution to the Partnership will be RMB1,000
million of which 1%, 29%, 20% and 50% will be
contributed by Jingji Capital, Shougang Fund, Caofeidian
Financial Development and China Merchants Assets
Management respectively. Jingji Capital will have the
sole right to determine the introduction of new investors
to the Partnership within 24 months from the date of
the first capital contribution to the Partnership.

(b)
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

Jingji Capital will act as the general partner and
fund manager of the Partnership and in return, the
Partnership will pay Jingji Capital:

(i) an annual management fee of 1.5% of the actual
amount invested by each partner in the project
from the date of investment in the project until
the date of withdrawal from the project by the
relevant partner; and

(i) thereafter, the annual management fee will be
calculated at 1.5% of the difference between
the actual investment made by a partner in the
project and the distribution by the Partnership to
the said partner.

Upon the investment project becoming profitable, the
management fee will be paid to Jingji Capital prior to
any distribution to the partners.

Since its establishment, Jingji Capital has actively
implemented the strategy of coordinated development
of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area. Based on its rich
experience in fund management, it has attracted
Caofeidian Financial Development, representing the
local state-owned enterprises, and China Merchants
Assets Management, representing professional financial
institutions, to co-sponsor the establishment of the
Partnership. The establishment of the Partnership will
play a positive role in furthering the fund management
business of Jingji Capital and expanding its investment
influence in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei Province.

Among other things, Shougang Fund is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group as at the date of the
Partnership Agreement. Given that Shougang Fund is
a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules, the entering into of the Partnership Agreement
constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
12 February 2018.
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(c)

Partnership Agreement dated 28 March 2018

On 28 March 2018, Heilongjiang Shouhe Venture
Capital Limited Partnership (BT EMAI XX EE
BhE(BERAE), "Shouhe”),
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a partnership

a non wholly-owned

agreement (as supplemented, the “Partnership
Agreement”) with Shougang Fund, Heilongjiang Keli
High Technology Industry Investment Co., Ltd. (25T
ERORBEEFXKREBR AT, "Keli”) and Harbin
Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd. (KR BAIEREEE
BRRAA,
the establishment of a partnership (the “Partnership”)

“Harbin Venture Capital”) in relation to

for a term of eight years. The first five years of the term
shall be the investment period (“Investment Period”),
and the last three years of the term shall be the
payback period (“Payback Period”), during which the
Partnership shall not carry out any further investments.
Subject to agreement at a meeting of the partners, the
term of the Partnership may be extended to not more
than ten years, and the Investment Period or Payback
Period can be extended twice, for one year each time.
The Partnership will engage in investment activities as
permitted by law in the PRC, with a focus on investing
in car parking infrastructure facilities, smart cities, ice
sports entertainment, underground pipelines, healthcare
and other city integrated services industry areas, as
well as advanced manufacturing, robotics, technology,
media and telecoms, new materials, cloud computing,
comprehensive health and other new strategic industry
areas.
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

The target total capital contribution to the Partnership
is RMB600 million. Shouhe, Shougang Fund, Keli and
Harbin Venture Capital shall be the founding partners
and make capital contributions in the total amount
of RMB406 million and hold as to 1.478%, 49.261%,
36.946% and 12.315% interests in the Partnership
respectively. Shougang Dongbei Revitalization Industry
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (B#lRILIRBEEEE S
& HRAA, “Fund Manager”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, shall be responsible for
raising contributions in the amount of RMB60 million
and RMB134 million, respectively, from the Harbin
Economic-Technological Development Zone Guidance
Fund (Harbin Yuerong) and from social capital.

The Partnership shall pay the Fund Manager:

(i) during the Investment Period, an annual
management fee of 0.5% of the Partnership’s
total subscribed capital contribution amount; and

(ii) during the Payback Period as well as during
extensions of the Investment Period or Payback
Period, an annual management fee of 0.5%
of the fund under the management of the
Partnership.

The Partnership shall pay Shouhe as the general partner
in its role as executive partner:

(i) during the Investment Period, an annual executive
compensation of 1% of the Partnership’s total
subscribed capital contribution amount; and

(ii) during the Payback Period as well as during
extensions of the Investment Period or Payback
Period, an annual executive compensation of
1% of the fund under the management of the
Partnership.
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(d)

The Partnership is established along with the strategy
of revitalization of Northeast China and will enhance
the connection between the Group and the economic
activities in Heilongjiang Province, which would lead
to a priority of potential business in the future. The
establishment of the Partnership will play a positive
role in furthering the fund management business of
the Group and exploiting potential market for its car
parking facilities and investment operation business in
Heilongjiang Province.

Given that Shougang Fund is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules, the entering
into of the Partnership Agreement constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2018.

Shareholders’ Agreement (as amended and restated
by the Amended and Restated Shareholders’
Agreement) dated 8 May 2018

On 8 May 2018, Jingji Capital entered into a shareholders’
agreement (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”) with
Shougang Group for the establishment of a fund company
(the "Fund Company”) for a term of eight years. The
first four years of the term shall be the investment period
and the remaining years of the term shall be the exit
period, during which the Fund Company shall not, aside
from follow-on investments to existing investments, carry
out any further investments. The term may be extended
for two years subject to unanimous shareholders’
agreement. The Fund Company is established to support
the development of New Shougang High-end Industry
Comprehensive Service Park (¥ & il =i E ¥ 4726 RBE,
“Shougang Park”).
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

The target total capital contribution to the Fund
Company is RMB10,000 million. The initial registered
capital of the Fund Company will be RMB3,100
million, of which 96.8% and 3.2% will be contributed
by Shougang Group and Jingji Capital respectively.
Jingji Capital will act as a fund manager (the “Fund
Manager”) to the Fund Company and its responsibility
for the Fund Company will include filings, promotion
and fundraising, investment and daily operations and
information disclosure obligations. The Fund Company
shall pay the Fund Manager an annual management fee
of 1.5% of the Fund Company’s subscribed registered
capital.

On 28 December 2018, Jingji Capital, Shougang Group
and Shougang Fund entered into an amended and
restated shareholders’ agreement (the “Amended and
Restated Shareholders’ Agreement”) to amend and
restate certain terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement, of
which (i) the provision relating to the option to extend
the term of the Fund Company for another two years
has been deleted; (ii) the registered capital of the Fund
Company will be revised to RMB8,100 million and the
total capital contribution of Jingji Capital has remained
unchanged at RMB100 million, as a result of which,
37.04%, 61.73% and 1.23% will be contributed by
Shougang Group, Shougang Fund and Jingji Capital
respectively; and (iii) the Fund Company shall pay the
Fund Manager an annual management fee of 1.5% of
the Fund Company’s paid up registered capital, instead
of subscribed registered capital.
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(e)

Given that Shougang Group and Shougang Fund are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules, the entering into of the Shareholders’ Agreement
and the Amended and Restated Shareholders’
Agreement constituted connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
transactions were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 8 May 2018, 10 May 2018 and 28
December 2018.

Loan Agreements dated 19 March 2018 and 20 June
2018

On 20 June 2018, Shouzhong Investment, a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Beijing
Shouzhong Car Parking Management Company Limited
(EtREPFEEEFERQA,

entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”)

“Shouzhong Parking”)

for the provision of a loan in the principal amount of
RMB20 million (the “Loan”) by Shouzhong Investment
to Shouzhong Parking for a term of six months
commencing from 20 June 2018 to 19 December 2018
at an interest rate of 6.5% per annum. The Loan helps
to secure the normal and stable operation of Shouzhong
Parking.

On 19 March 2018, Shouzhong Investment and
Shouzhong Parking entered into a loan agreement
(the “Previous Loan Agreement”) for the provision
of a loan in the principal amount of RMB1.55 million
by Shouzhong Investment to Shouzhong Parking at an
interest rate of 6.5% per annum.

Given that Shouzhong Parking was an associate of
Shougang Group as at the date of the Loan Agreement,
and therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules, the entering into of the
Loan Agreement and the Previous Loan Agreement
constituted connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
20 June 2018.

(e)
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(f)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

Partnership Agreement dated 13 July 2018 -
Fund Subscription Agreement dated 24 July 2018
and Restated Partnership Agreement dated 14
December 2018

(i)

On 13 July 2018, Beijing Shoushi Management
Advisory Co., Ltd. (IR EMEBEEERER
v A], “Shoushi Company”), a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as general
partner, entered into a partnership agreement
(the "Partnership Agreement”) with Shougang
Fund as a limited partner for the establishment
of a limited partnership (the “Partnership”) for
a term of six years (the “Partnership Term”).
Shoushi Company has the sole discretion to
extend the Partnership Term twice, each time for
one year. After which and subject to agreement
at a meeting of the partners, the Partnership
Term may be further extended for one year. The
initial first year of the Partnership Term shall be
the investment period, which shall be extended
for one year for one time only at the sole
discretion of Shoushi Company. The Partnership
was established to support the development of
Shougang Park.

The total committed capital contribution to
the Partnership shall be RMB910 million, of
which 98.90% and 1.10% will be contributed
by Shougang Fund and Shoushi Company
respectively.

()
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(i)

The Partnership, Shoushi Company and the joint
fund managers, Jingji Capital and Shanghai
Shiwei Investment Advisory Co., Ltd. ( _E/&8HIEL
®ELXANEMR AT, "Shanghai Shiwei”), shall
enter into an entrusted management agreement,
pursuant to which, the joint fund managers shall
provide management services to the Partnership.
The Partnership will pay Jingji Capital as the chief
manager of the Partnership and Shanghai Shiwei
as the associate manager of the Partnership
a total of 1% of its total committed capital
contribution as management fee yearly; and will
pay Shoushi Company as general partner of the
Partnership a fundraising service fee in a total
amount not exceeding 1% of its total committed
capital contribution.

On 24 July 2018, the Company conditionally
entered into a fund subscription agreement
(the "Fund Subscription Agreement”) with
Shoushi Company (as general partner of the
Partnership). Pursuant to the Fund Subscription
Agreement, the Company (or its designated
subsidiary) conditionally agreed to participate in
the Partnership as a limited partner for a capital
commitment of RMB135 million and to enter
into a partnership agreement (the “Proposed
Partnership Agreement”) with Shoushi
Company (as general partner), Shougang Fund
and other limited partners (if any) upon approval
by the independent shareholders of the Company,
which was granted at the general meeting held
on 13 September 2018, for investment in the
Partnership and to support the development of
Shougang Park.
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(iii)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

The interest holding of the Partnership will
be in the proportion of 86.12%, 0.96% and
12.92% by Shougang Fund, Shoushi Company
and the Company (or its designated subsidiary)
respectively upon investment by the Company.

On 14 December 2018, Shoushi Company,
Shougang Fund and Beijing Shouyuan Investment
Limited (1t R HIRIEEBR AR, “Shouyuan”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a restated partnership agreement
(the “Restated Partnership Agreement”)
in relation to the Partnership. Pursuant to the
Restated Partnership Agreement, (i) Shoushi
Company as the general partner has the sole
discretion to extend the Partnership Term twice,
each time for one year, subject to, among other
things, the extended Partnership Term not being
shorter than the Partnership’s term for holding
the project company used to invest in the Shouao
Industrial Park ( B2 EZER ) (“"Project Holding
Term”), the Project Holding Term shall be five
years from the closing date of the Partnership,
or if the Partnership makes an early exit from the
investment in Shouao Industrial Park, the Project
Holding Term expires on completion of such
exit; (ii) Shoushi Company’s committed capital
contribution to the Partnership will increase from
RMB10,000,000 to RMB70,000,000, as a result
of which the total committed capital contribution
to the Partnership shall be RMB1,105,000,000,
of which 81.45%, 12.22% and 6.33% will be
contributed by Shougang Fund, Shouyuan and
Shoushi Company respectively; and (iii) Jingji
Capital shall be the sole fund manager to the
Partnership and the Partnership shall pay the
sole fund manager a total of 1% of its total
committed capital contribution as management
fee.
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(9)

Given that Shougang Fund is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date
of the respective agreements, the entering into of the
Partnership Agreement (as restated by the Restated
Partnership Agreement), Fund Subscription Agreement
and the Proposed Partnership Agreement constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the

Listing Rules.

Details of the transactions contemplated under the
Partnership Agreement (as restated by the Restated
Partnership Agreement) and the Fund Subscription
Agreement have been disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 13 July 2018, 24 July 2018 and
14 December 2018 and in the circular of the Company
dated 27 August 2018.

Connected Subscription Agreements dated 24 July
2018

On 24 July 2018,
subscription agreement with Jingxi Holdings and

the Company entered into a

with Rocket Parade respectively (collectively, the
“Connected Subscription Agreements”). Pursuant to
the Connected Subscription Agreements, the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and Jingxi
Holdings and Rocket Parade have conditionally agreed
to subscribe for an aggregate of 3,400,000,000 new
shares of the Company (the “Connected Subscription
Shares”) under the specific mandate at a subscription
price of HK$0.25 per Connected Subscription Share.

The entering into of the Connected Subscription
Agreements was in response to the funding needs
of the Group for the further development of the car
parking business and operations of the Group as well
as the participation in development and management
of Shougang Park, which in turn will strengthen the
revenue base of the Group.

The completion of the subscriptions under the
Connected Subscription Agreements took place on 19
September 2018.
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(h)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

Given that both Jingxi Holdings and Rocket Parade are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules as at the date of the Connected Subscription
Agreements, the entering into of the Connected
Subscription Agreements constituted connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions contemplated under the
Connected Subscription Agreements have been disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 24 July
2018 and in the circular of the Company dated 27
August 2018.

Framework Agreement in relation to formation of
funds dated 12 August 2018

On 12 August 2018, the Company, Jingji Capital and
Shougang Fund entered into a framework agreement
(the "Framework Agreement”) in relation to formation
of funds not exceeding 15 to be established thereunder
(the “Funds”). The term of each Fund shall be from
five to ten years from the date of formation, of which
the first three to six years of the term shall be the
investment period (the “Investment Period”) and the
remaining years of the term shall be the exit period (the
“Exit Period”), during which the Funds shall not carry
out further investments, subject to extension as agreed
by the investors of the respective Fund. The Funds
shall be established for the purpose of supporting the
further expansion of the Company’s fund management
business. The expected aggregate total size of the Funds
shall not exceed RMB30 billion, of which Shougang
Fund and its associates shall, in aggregate, contribute
not more than RMB10 billion; and the Company and its
subsidiaries shall, in aggregate, contribute not more than
RMB500 million.

Jingji Capital or its subsidiary will have priority to be
appointed as the fund manager of the Funds (the “Fund
Manager”) and each Fund shall pay the Fund Manager
a management fee as follows:

(a) during the Investment Period, between 0.5% to
2% per annum on subscribed capital contribution
or paid-in capital contribution, to be agreed
amongst the Fund investors in due course; and

(h)
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(i)

(b) during the Exit Period, between 0.5% to 2% per
annum on subscribed capital contribution, paid-
in capital contribution or remaining paid-in capital
contribution, to be agreed amongst the Fund
investors in due course.

Given that Shougang Fund is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date
of the Framework Agreement, the entering into of
the Framework Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions contemplated under the
Framework Agreement have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 August 2018
and in the circular of the Company dated 29 August
2018.

Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 1 November
2018

On 1
Investment as the purchaser, Urban Parking as the
vendor and Urban Parking Beijing as the target company
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to
which Shouzhong Investment conditionally agreed
to acquire and Urban Parking conditionally agreed
to sell the entire equity interest in Urban Parking
Beijing at a total consideration of RMB49,380,000,
of which RMB9,980,000 shall be settled by cash and
RMB39,400,000 shall be settled by an aggregate
of 177,425,528 shares of the Company (the
"Consideration Shares”) to be allotted and issued
by the Company to Urban Parking at HK$0.25 per
Consideration Share (the “Acquisition”).

November 2018, the Company, Shouzhong

By the Acquisition, Urban Parking Beijing could
contribute all its revenue and profit into the Group
and the experienced team from Urban Parking Beijing
will help the Group to expand the market share and
therefore, the Acquisition represents a good opportunity
for the Group to further engage in the car parking
industry in the PRC.
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The vendor Urban Parking, is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, and therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules at the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement constituted connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions contemplated under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 November 2018
and in the circular of the Company dated 28 November
2018.

Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 21 November
2018

On 21 November 2018, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Shougang Holding, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to sell and Shougang
Holding conditionally agreed to purchase one ordinary
share of Fair Union Holdings Limited (“Fair Union”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, representing
its entire issued share capital (the “Sale Share”),
at a consideration of HK$205,996,553.70 which
reflected an indirect transfer of 686,655,179 shares
at a consideration of HK$0.30 per share of Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang
Century”), which was indirectly owned as to
approximately 35.71% in aggregate by the Company as
on the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the
“Proposed Restructuring”). Upon completion of the
Proposed Restructuring, the Company will cease to have
any shareholding interest in Shougang Century.

The Proposed Restructuring is a strategic move of the
Group to align with the business development strategy
of the Group.

1)
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(k)

Given that Shougang Holding is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Proposed
Restructuring constituted a connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 November 2018 and in the circular
of the Company dated 2 January 2019.

Capital Increase Agreement and Joint Venture
Agreement dated 30 December 2018 and
Supplemental Agreement dated 14 January 2019

On 30 December 2018, (i) Beijing Shouxing Zhixing
Ltd. (R EHEBTREERA
7], “Shouxing Zhixing”), an indirect wholly-owned

Investment Co.,

subsidiary of the Company, Shouzhong Investment,
Shouzhong Parking, Shougang Fund and Beijing Gonglian
Anda Car Parking Management Co., Ltd. (1t A B &3z
ZEEE AR A, “Gonglian Anda”) (collectively, the
“Parties”) entered into a capital increase agreement (the
"Capital Increase Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Shouxing Zhixing agreed to contribute RMB76,000,000
to the registered capital of Shouzhong Parking, and the
registered capital of Shouzhong Parking will thereby be
increased from RMB144,000,000 to RMB220,000,000
(the “Capital Increase”); and (ii) the Parties also entered
into a joint venture agreement (the “Joint Venture
Agreement”) for the operation and management of
Shouzhong Parking.

The Capital Increase shall be made by Shouxing Zhixing
in cash before 31 January 2019 and after the Capital
Increase, the equity interest of Shouxing Zhixing,
Shouzhong Investment, Shougang Fund and Gonglian
Anda in Shouzhong Parking will become 34.545%,
31.5%, 33.136% and 0.818% respectively, and
the Company’s aggregate indirect equity interest in
Shouzhong Parking will be increased from approximately
48.125% to approximately 66.045%.
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Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

The Capital Increase will significantly add to the capital
strength of Shouzhong Parking, and thereby expand the
Group’s business in investment and operation of airport
parking building in the future.

On 14 January 2019, Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong
Parking entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) to the Capital Increase
Agreement to supplement certain terms of the Capital
Increase Agreement.

Given that Shougang Fund and Shouzhong Parking
(an associate of Shougang Group) are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules as at
the date of the respective agreements, the entering
into of the Capital Increase Agreement, the Joint
Venture Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the transactions contemplated under the
Capital Increase Agreement (as supplemented by
the Supplemental Agreement) and the Joint Venture
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 30 December 2018 and 14 January
2019 and in the circular of the Company dated 21
February 2019.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(a)

Master agreement dated 3 October 2016

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 3
October 2016 and in the circular of the Company dated
18 November 2016, a master agreement between the
Company and Shougang Corporation (now known as
Shougang Group), a connected person of the Company
by virtue of its being the controlling shareholder of
the Company, was entered into on 3 October 2016
(the “2016 Master Agreement”) for governing the
continuing connected transactions to be entered
into between the Group and Shougang Group and/
or its associates for the three financial years ending
31 December 2019. Pursuant to the 2016 Master
Agreement, Shougang Group and/or its associates will
provide iron ore, steel and related products to the Group
(the "Purchases”) during the three financial years
ending 31 December 2019.

The cap amounts of the Purchases for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2019 are as follows:

(a) HFE2016E1053H M 4E =

BANARBR2016F10 A3 A E K&
2016511 H18H By gk Fr it - AN 1 7
HEMEAT (BEalHEBBRATF
((EREE])) (AEARQRMERR
ROFTUABARRRBEAT)R2016
F10A3BEE —Mira ik ([2016
FRetmEl) UHEAEEREHE
Bk HEBEAREZE2019F12A8
BTHIE=EBREERR®ETNFE
BER S BE2016E 88 1HE RE
ZF2019F12A31H It = A8 B F = &5
MElERE SKEBBEAREAER
REHEEL, HEREEER (KBS
B/]) o

REE2019F12A31H 1L = BB B F
EEFNHEEEBECLLRESBHOT:

Financial year ended/ending 31 December

HZ12A3MA LHBEE
2017 2018 2019
20175 20184 20194
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B E & T B EE T B EE T
Cap amounts for the Purchases #H#BEEBEZ FRE5E 1,100 1,600 2,700

The continuing connected transactions with Shougang
Group and/or its associates under the 2016 Master
Agreement would secure a stable source of supply
of iron ore, steel and related products to support the
business of trading in iron ore, steel and related products
carried out by the Group following the disposal of the
Qinhuangdao business in late 2016.

AEBERE2016FRaHBHREWNER
RSFEBEAETORERERS
ARERASE R ESEEA W M
MEMZREHRERER UXHAKE
R216FFRHNERESXBRME
THEBEL HEMEEERCESE
75 o
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The price and terms of the transactions under the 2016
Master Agreement have been determined in accordance
with the pricing policies and guideline set out in the
relevant announcement and circular dated 3 October
2016 and 18 November 2016 respectively.

Tenancy agreements

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated
23 December 2016 and 23 March 2017, the following
tenancy agreements (the “Tenancy Agreements”) were
entered into by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company:

(i) a tenancy agreement dated 23 December
2016 (the “Tenancy Agreement 1") whereby
a portion of the 5th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 228 square feet
was leased by Billioncorp Development Limited
("Billioncorp”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Holding, to Shougang Concord Services
Limited (“Shougang Services”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a term of thirty-
six (36) months commencing on 1 January 2017
and expiring on 31 December 2019 at a monthly
rental of HK$10,700, exclusive of rates and
management fee;

(i) a tenancy agreement dated 23 December
2016 (the “Tenancy Agreement 2") whereby
a portion of the 6th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 190 square feet
was leased by Winluck Properties Limited
("Winluck"”),
Shougang Holding, to Shougang Services for a
term of thirty-six (36) months commencing on 1
January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019
at a monthly rental of HK$9,000, exclusive of
rates and management fee;

a wholly-owned subsidiary of

(b)
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20165 EHER T 2R P EE RIGEHK
T RIRIE AR AR R20165F10H3A &
2016511 A18R 2 Al A& KB & AT
HoEBEBRERESIEE -

HEwE

BN R A R2016F12 238 KX2017
FIAEM ARG -ARARIETE
EMBAR U THAERZ (A
EH=El)

(i) HEA20165F12 238 E
e ((HEHBR1]) B sl
ERNEEWNBARIKERES
RAR([KERAARFNZ
EMBARIBERRBERA A
(BERBREEHEEEERRA
#9228 F HF R BB EHFETIT
#B56%5% R o R 1T 78 & 052 &
HEE  BH36ME A - B20174
1A1H# 22019128318 &
o BB 10,700 (KRB
EMREESE):

(ii) BHEA2016%F12A23BMHEE
W ([HEHHR2)) B El
TR EENBRARKEE X
BERAR([KE])MERRS
B EEIE L 190 5 R
BEEFELTITB56R R TR
THEERLERNER B
3618 A B2017F1B1H#EE
201912 A31H fE@m - AME
#9,000c (T EIEEZM R EE
B):
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(i)  a tenancy agreement dated 23 December
2016 (the “Tenancy Agreement 3") whereby
a portion of the 7th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 6,618 square feet
was leased by Wonderfine Development Limited
("Wonderfine”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Holding, to Shougang Services for a
term of thirty-six (36) months commencing on 1
January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019
at a monthly rental of HK$311,000, exclusive of
rates and management fee; and

(iv) a tenancy agreement on 23 March 2017 (the
“Tenancy Agreement 4") whereby a portion of
the 5th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View
Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong with an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 1,629 square feet was leased by
Billioncorp to Shougang Shipping Services Limited
(“Shougang Shipping Services”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, for a term of
thirty-three (33) months commencing on 1 April
2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019 at a
monthly rental of HK$76,563, exclusive of rates
and management fee.

The Tenancy Agreement 1, the Tenancy Agreement 2,
the Tenancy Agreement 3 and the Tenancy Agreement
4 were entered to renew the tenancies of the premises
as offices of the Group with the expiry of the respective
tenancy agreements on 31 December 2016. Due to
relocation of offices, Shougang Services and Shougang
Shipping Services had terminated the Tenancy
Agreement 1 and the Tenancy Agreement 4 with
Billioncorp respectively, both with effect from 1 October
2018.

(iii)

HEI A2016F12A23BMAEE
W ([HEHE3]) Bt E i
TRHEEMBRATKEBER
ERAF([XEB])ME KRR
AR 48 L E 496,618F 757
RE)E B ETE T TES65 R
WITABERLIERNDER B
3618 A - B2017F1A1HEE
201912 8318 @Em - AREE
311,000 (A BEIEEZMEEE
E): &

BHEIR201763H23HMEEH
H([HEHSEA]) B KER
BEEMERBERAR([BE
MERKHBAEEERED
1,629 F TR BB EHFE LTI
E565E R I R{T A E P OSERS
DIE®E BE33@ A 520175
AR1H#£E2019F12A318 &
e A ET76,5637L (TR 1E
EMNEEE) -

RN EBEERZEN20165F12H311°
BIER L AEEFT SRR CHE
WE2 HEWHRINBERRINEDR
HEZSVERENRAZE -HARNHSE
wE sREkalNERBEESE
BERERIEEERRIREER RS 15
E2018F 108 1HREM -
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Based on the monthly rents payable under each of the
Tenancy Agreements (other than the terminated Tenancy
Agreement 1 and Tenancy Agreement 4), the annual
caps for the three years ending 31 December 2019 are
as follows:
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ERENHEHEHBZ(KELKLENEE
I REERESN BINNT AR
& EHE2019F 128318 L3EFES
FHEFLEROT:

For the
three years ending
31 December

2019

HZE2019%F1248

318 1t3 HEE

HK$

B

Tenancy Agreement 2 HEWHE2 108,000
Tenancy Agreement 3 HEWZ3 3,732,000
Total et 3,840,000

Each of Billioncorp, Winluck and Wonderfine is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding, which in turn is
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Tenancy Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Partnership agreements

On 8 September 2017, Jingji (Hong Kong) Limited
(the “First Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement (the “First
Agreement”) with Shougang Fund under which the
First Purchaser agreed to acquire 95% of the equity
interest (the “First Sale Shares”) in Beijing-Hebei
Co-development Exhibition Zone (Tangshan) Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (REBRER T~&E (F L)
E&EIBAERAA], the “First Target Company”) for
RMB231,135,000 and to inject RMB32,300,000 into the
First Target Company as committed and unpaid capital
for the First Sale Shares (the “First Acquisition”). The
First Target Company is a limited liability company which
is principally engaged in the business of the provision of
private fund management services in the PRC.

()

KE KERKEBEYRBMIZERNE
EMBAR EMERAA/ERAR 2
PRBCR - Atk R EWRA HE W
BETHRZERARB ZHBERER
5o

BRI &

M2017F9A8H AR BI 22 EM B
REAIRE(BEB)ERAA(IE—8
FlDEEHMEST IHE ([8—1i#
2 B F—EFREBEUARY
231,135,0007T Uy B8 R 3 1 [ 3% R R #8
E(BELWESETEERAA ([E—
BEQG])295%kiE([E-—FER
7)) URE-—FERD ZEREE N
REFMZERAE-BERATEAAR
#32,300,000C ([ — Uk EBEHE]) -
E—HEBEARARBEREAAR  FEXE
PR ERELEESCEERB ¥
ﬁ%o
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Before the date of the First Agreement, the First Target FE—HZBBZA F—BERRN
Company or its subsidiaries had entered into certain HMBARE®R (KR BEFE)RARAZ
partnership agreements with, among others, Shougang AEATEHEES R REBB AR
Fund and/or its associates which were connected URKREEREEIUETERGE-
persons of the Company, for the establishment and BiEZEeEHhE F—BEARIHHE
regulations of the partnerships. Pursuant to such MEBARERALBERALLEESE
partnership agreements, the First Target Company or BA BRZSEECERELERS
its subsidiaries shall provide private fund management EERB - BRZEEBCEEHME
services to such partnerships as a general partner BIHMBA ZEAREEBRE K
or private fund manager. As such partnerships were BEBTHRKAARA ZBEEATLT
associates of Shougang Fund, such partnerships became Hit - £ — B R 2QAISENEQRIRE
connected persons of the Company upon completion of EXMEMNZEAREERBLEES
the First Acquisition. The provision of the private fund EIRRFEHE R E — W BB TK R ERK
management services by the First Target Company or its IHRABTARRCHERERS -

subsidiaries to such partnerships under the partnership
agreements therefore constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules
upon completion of the First Acquisition.

The principal business of the First Target Company is F—HERARZEEEBRERELEE
the provision of private fund management services. PEERB - aBHREEE —WES
The partnership agreements were entered into prior BZMEN WHEE—BEEZERAR
to the First Acquisition and were being carried out HB ARz —MEBKBEFET-A
in the ordinary course of business of the First Target ReEX¥m@E 2 RABFHRAIFEI10ET
Company and/or its subsidiaries. As the partnership Z ARVERFERTERGE  UE
agreements have remaining terms of between 3 years PE—BHEQR (HEWBRATIRE
and 10 years to run, the continuous performance of the —WEEBETKKEREEE-

partnership agreements is necessary to avoid the First
Target Company (or its subsidiaries) defaulting on its
obligations upon completion of the First Acquisition.

Details of the partnership agreements were disclosed in ERHBBENFBEERELELMRANE
the announcement of the Company dated 8 September 14A.6016 7% B Bl 2201749 HA8H A A
2017 pursuant to rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules. NERNERNELHERE-
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Master agreement dated 8 September 2017 (d)

In contemplation of the First Target Company and/
or its subsidiaries continuing to provide private
fund management services to any new partnerships
or entities (being associates of Shougang Fund, a
connected person of the Company) after completion
of the First Acquisition, the Company and Shougang
Fund entered into a master agreement on 8 September
2017 (the "2017 Master Agreement”). Pursuant to
the 2017 Master Agreement, the Company and/or
its subsidiaries will provide private fund management
services to Shougang Fund and/or its associates for a
term commencing from the completion date of the First
Acquisition (i.e. 13 December 2017) and will expire on
31 December 2019.

The transaction amounts under the 2017 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will not
exceed the following annual caps:

From the
commencement

date of the 2017
Master Agreement
(i.e.

13 December 2017)
to 31 December 2017
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BE 52017659 H8H K45 2

EEHNE—BERRAR/KEKBAF
TE-—WEESETKEEERTMTN
AELEXRER (BARRBEEALTSE
MESCHEA)RHLEESETER
% ARREEHESMN2017F9888
RINERAWE (2017 K6HFE]) -
RIE2017F 4R E Bk A QAR HHE
MBARKRMEMES R HEBE
ARBILERSEERS - 2017F K4
EZFHAE - WESEE 2TXA
HY (BI2017F 12 B13A) ALK B R
2019128318 Em -

RBEFHRA - 2017FEEHAERTZ
RIEBRBTEBRBUTFRELR:

H2017%  For the year ended  For the year ending

SEmBENAS 31 December 2018 31 December 2019

(B2017%12A136)E B Z20185128318  EZ2019512831H

2017F12A318 LEE LEE

RMB RMB RMB

ARH ARK ARK

Provision of private fund RELZESERRG 10,000,000 180,000,000 250,000,000

management services

Pursuant to the terms of the 2017 Master Agreement,
the provision of private fund management service
shall be priced between 0.5% and 2% of the
capital commitment or the capital contribution of
the partnership each year (as determined under
the respective partnership agreements) which was
determined by reference to and in accordance with the
prevailing marketing prices offered by the other private
fund management companies for the same and similar
scope of service.

BIE2017F a8 HE 2GR BELE
B2 EEMRBBEEFREBRLERAD
BREAEHLER (RERNEZHBEN
BEE)ZO0S5%E2%EE I HES
ERBEEMABESETEQRHER
NI RISFTIRE 2 BITTIBER
i & 5E °
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(e)

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2017 Master Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
8 September 2017 and in the circular of the Company
dated 25 September 2017.

Carpark operation contractor agreements and
carpark management agreement

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
1 November 2018 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2018, Urban Parking Beijing,
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
upon completion of the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Urban Parking Beijing (i.e. on 28 December
2018) by Shouzhong Investment, entered into (i)
three carpark operation contractor agreements dated
1 April 2015 (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements”) with each of Beijing Chong Wen e New
World Properties Development Co., Ltd. (1t =23 o
M AEMEREREGR QG
Beijing Chong Yu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (4t
REMEMERZEER AT, "Beijing Chongyu”) and
China New World Electronics Ltd. (R BI#Tit RE T H R
2 7], "China New World Electronics”), each of which

“Beijing Chongwen”),

is a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (“New World Development”), which in turn
is a substantial shareholder of the Company; and (ii)
a carpark management agreement dated 1 April 2018
(the "Carpark Management Agreement”) with Beijing
Xianghe Property Management Co., Ltd. (1t R EER ¥ 2
EIRHR A A, “Beijing Xianghe”), a subsidiary of New
World Development.

(e)

017F IREMBE T ZRHERERS
MEBEEARARQFN2017F9A8H K
NEK20174E9 F25 0 HY B B N E H

FESEERNEHBERFESEE A

AN N FIR2018F 1M ATHHAE R
2018411 A28 A M@ K PTit - BT E
IRREFERETHKKBEDRE
% (BDA2018F12828R) "N AL A
ANEEWB AR B EEILROR
2015F4 A1 H 5 B4 =3 o FTH R
BHEZERERAG ([XFEEX]) it
RENEHMERZEERAR ([ERESR
B ERHPBEFHASTFERAE ([
Bt RET )T 3ME R HIGEE K
mEmE((ZEEESEERNERN
F]) AREEREBRRPEFH
ARETHARRARNEZIERRHMHTR
BREBRAF ([FHRBER]) 2B
NA) K(i)R2018F4 A1 B B 8%
BRAOMBARIREMMEERGRA
AI(TERERMD I IFHI5ERH=
(IZEESERHE]) -
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Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the initial term is 36 months commencing
on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018, after
which Urban Parking Beijing may opt to (and with
respect to the year commencing 1 April 2018, has opted
to) renew the respective Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements for a successive period of one year each,
until 10 years from the date of the agreement, subject
to any framework agreement applicable to Urban
Parking Beijing and re-compliance with the Listing Rules
at the relevant time; and Urban Parking Beijing will
provide carpark operation services to Beijing Chongwen,
Beijing Chongyu and China New World Electronics
for different sections of the carparks in Beijing New
World Department Store Phase 1 and Phase 2 (“Beijing
Carparks”) in return for income from parking, car
detailing, rental fees in the car park, advertising revenue
and other service incomes subject to the following
payments of fees (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Fees”):

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017
H2015F4H18 &
2017%3A318
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BEZEEESEERANTHE 75
HIBR &3618 A - m2015F481HEE
2018F3A31RE W EREMEEIL
RAEiE (RR2018FE4 1Bt 2 F
EEER)RSNZESEESEERN
ARSI RER T B A AR
10F AL HEXRBRAREMERILR
AT AR HE R 1h 2 P AR PR - 0 A B B B R
EHET WA ZHAE  SHFEEIL
R AL REX - db RSB T Bt
AEFRZENIL R REE—H
“HTAMENEES ([ZELREE
B | RHEISESRYE  mEHE
Bl RBEERRIEES  TEER
FBEGHe A BEEREREMmR
BEA RBRTINFREZNER ([FEE
EEANBREER])

Subsequent 2-year period
from 1 April 2017
2017F4R18 8
HEMFH

Beijing Chongwen
IEREX

RMB1,166,975 per year
BF AR1,166,9757T

Beijing Chongyu
I RER

RMB1,900,000 per year
B9 AR%1,900,0007T

China New World Electronics

hEFERE

RMB733,025 per year
BH AR¥T733,0257T

Approximately 5% increase
EFALI5%

Approximately 5% increase
EFALI5%

Approximately 5% increase
EFALI5%
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Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor

Agreements, the Carpark Operation Contractor Fees are

REZSEFEESEEAMBHR FE
GEBARBHERAIUTFELRR

subject to the following annual caps: il
1 April 2015 1 April 2017 1 April 2019 1 April 2021 1 April 2023
to 31 March  to 31 March  to 31 March  to 31 March  to 31 March
2017 2019 2021 2023 2025
20155 20175 20195 202145 2023F
4R1BZ 4A1B % 4A1BZ 4A1BZ 4A1B8Z
2017 20194 202145 20235 20255
3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR ARH AR
Carpark Operation FESEE
Contractor Fees ENEER 3,800,000 3,990,000 4,189,500 4,398,976 4,618,924
Pursuant to the Carpark Management Agreement, its BIEZEESEERZ BH24EA

term is 24 months commencing on 1 April 2018 and
expiring on 31 March 2020 and Beijing Xianghe will
be responsible for the management and maintenance
services of certain sections of the Beijing Carparks.
Urban Parking Beijing will pay to Beijing Xianghe a
monthly fee of RMB145,000, amounting to an annual
fee of RMB1,740,000 per year, which is also the annual
cap of this agreement.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements and the Carpark Management Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018.

H2018F4H 1B E£2020F3H31H
Em It REMEEERZSIERESE
B ATHORHREEREERT -
EWEELREMIEREMENA AR
AR®145,000 FHAEBFAR®K
1,740,0007T ' IR Aa& hsEmIFE LR o

ZEFESEEANERERZEFES
EEMBETNREBERS ZFHE
EAEARRNR2018F11AIBHNAER
2018F 11 A28 HRBERAEL IR -
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Operation right transfer agreement dated 11 () BRI B2019F 1511 H A& #EZE =
January 2019
As stated in the announcement of the Company dated BMANA AT BHEA2019F1 B11EHMHA
11 January 2019, an operation right transfer agreement Hhrt - FEE TR ERIEENR2019F
between Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong Parking was TRANMBEI e RERGE ([
entered into on 11 January 2019 (the “Operation Right EEHE]) UEEEHETLERE
Transfer Agreement”) for governing the continuing BYEBETZHEBER S - BEL
connected transactions to be entered into between EREERZ BPFEREKILERAX
Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong Parking. Pursuant to FEBEREMREEEEREERES
the Operation Right Transfer Agreement, Shouzhong Bl K EREETHEMT V15 H
Parking agreed to transfer to Shouxing Zhixing the R A3F 8520191 811H £20224F1
operation right in relation to the convenience facilities R10B L ([H®BEBR])  HEETH
and advertising spaces located in two parking buildings BERKSEREEGZARIFE HEEB
in Beijing Daxing International Airport for an initial VIt EAR 1R 2 B BFT20F A1k - B
term of three years commencing from 11 January 2019 BT REREEREEZEERRE
to 10 January 2022 (the “Initial Term”), subject to REEREFEEEBENTONINE
extension by Shouxing Zhixing for another three-year FEZER(IFEEZEER]) -
terms up to twenty years from the commencement date
of the Initial Term. In return, Shouxing Zhixing will pay
Shouzhong Parking an annual transfer fee representing
70% of the annual revenue generated from operation of
such convenience facilities and advertising spaces (the
“Annual Transfer Fee").
The cap amounts of the Annual Transfer Fee for each of HZE2022F1 8108 L 23EFE & B
the three years ending 10 January 2022 are as follows: WEEEZRERLRESENT:
From From From
11 January 11 January 11 January
2019 to 2020 to 2021 to
10 January 10 January 10 January
2020 2021 2022
20195 20205 2021%
1A11BZ 1811BZE 18118 &
2020 20215 2022
1810H 1810H 1A10H
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B
Annual Transfer Fee FEHRER 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000
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The Operation Right Transfer Agreement and the
continuing connected transactions with Shouzhong
Parking thereunder would strengthen the Group’s
business of car parking facilities and investment
operation in the PRC with a focus on smart car parking
market and to expand the Group’s investment and
operation of airport parking building in the future.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Operation Right Transfer
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 January 2019.

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions as set out above during the
year have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who have confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0) according to the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC")
was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in the paragraph above in accordance with rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been

provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RegEEhaREEREENRFER
Lx%ﬂ?ﬁ$ﬁlﬁ¢lamﬂ EfF
EMENEEREEFMIREEL I
#— *%ﬁKEE%XE%%%EE%
R EELE -

FRAREHEZRMZETNHERER
SZEHEBERART BEA2019F1A

MBZAEFRHERE-

BB R BIE14A 556 RAF 2B IEH
TEFEDEMNREAFEANETZ D ERE
X% Iﬁgwu uxi/\%

(a) MAKBZAEERBHEIL:

(b) REB—RBEBERIEEGERTET R

(0 REBEZSXHZHBHEET K
HAFEE TAFAARAGTREZE
B FE o

BIEETRAIFE14A.5605 ARQ A M X BENE
ERKBETMELKA ([BERKE])RE
BEAGHMASRLEN(EERERAER
3000) (&M [EEL M B ERBEFTHE
BN ERR] W2 RB (EBHBA) F
7405 R ER (LKA FrltisERER
5% BRM 1 | B S A BRI E R E
RBELER -BEFKECRE ETHERE
14AS6IEE LB AREBR LR 2 &
BEXZINERERNEREER T AR
B 2 5% 1% BAM B 1 Bl AR 2 2B AT PR o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements. For those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
(other than those described in the section above headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”) under the Listing Rules, such transactions
were fully exempt from shareholder’s approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 70 to 102 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 149 to 199 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the
Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as
the auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, both with effect
from 1 August 2018. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be submitted
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

Save for the above, there has been no other change in the
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
Zhao Tianyang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG")
report (the “Report”) demonstrates Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Shougang Concord”, the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries’ (the “Group” or “"We") approach
and performance in terms of sustainable development
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2018
("FY2018").The Group believes that a sustainable,
resilient and reliable governance culture is essential to
the Group’s long-term success. Details of the Group's
management approach in both environmental and social
aspects can be found throughout this Report.

This Report covers the environmental and social
performance within defined operational boundaries
of the Group that includes the Group’s operation in
Hong Kong and car parking operation and management
business and urban renewal fund management business
in mainland China. The reporting period is the Group’s
financial year dating from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018 (FY2018). This Report is prepared in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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The information in this ESG Report was gathered
through numerous channels, including official
documents and statistics of the Group, the integrated
information of supervision, management and operation
in accordance with the relevant policy, the internal
guantitative and qualitative questionnaires based on
the reporting framework, and sustainability practices
provided by the subsidiaries of the Group.

To deliver a formalised and internationally compatible
report that appeals to our global readership, the Group
referenced GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) Sustainability
Reporting Standards, a globally-accepted reporting
instrument, to improve the integrity, international
compatibility and industrial comparability of the report.
All the data in the Report can be found at the end of
this Report.

ABOUT SHOUGANG CONCORD

Shougang Concord is the flagship listed company
in Hong Kong of Shougang Group. Its current main
business includes operation and management of parking
assets and urban renewal fund management.

Group Goals

It is the mission of Shougang Concord to become the
leading listed company providing comprehensive urban
services among Hong Kong listed companies and to be
competitive in different economic circles with robust
cash flow and well-established operations. Shougang
Concord always endeavors to create the highest value
for its shareholders and enable the investors to maximize
their returns. It is also our mission to become one of the
best employers who benefits employees and makes them
work for the company without any worries.

The Group is listed in Hong Kong since 1991 and was
one of the first “red chips” with a diversified portfolio
of assets. In FY2016, Shougang Concord commenced
asset restructuring, selling steel manufacturing, mineral
mining and processing operations, and in FY2017 the
Group further acquired private fund management
services and parking lot operations in mainland China,
completing its business transformation.
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Strategic Investor

The Group has a strong shareholder background to
provide financial and resource support. The major
shareholders of the Group include Shougang Group
0., Ltd. ("Shougang Group”), NWS Holdings Limited
("NWS"), ORIX Corporation (“ORIX"”) and China
International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.
("cIMcC”).

BRR HEeRkERERE

BEREA
AEEEERANERE R RERHE
RRHESNERNXB - SEXR
EREEEHEEARAR ([BHAE
) HREEEERAR ([HARK
| BALBROBARAR ([BALE
m])RPEBRREESRER (KE)K
MAERRAR ([HFEKEE]) -

The steel giant with a history of nearly a hundred years has started

Shougang Resource industrial transformation in recent years and provided Shougang Park as

BREA BEES MRS

Import development resources for Shougang Concord.
IFRMEXSE REk et & 8 = (= BA

Business The infrastructure and service flagship of New World Development Co.,
N Collaboration Ltd.’s, with operation in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau.
HAZEE

Services co dozens of field

& B AR %5

EEAE BT O

Group Business

The Group has established a two-wheel drive business
development model of “Industry + Funds” and is
committed to building China’s leading car parking assets
operation and management and urban renewal fund
management company.

2 5 422 ] FtABRARDANEER B E 2 # - o B P RORPS -

) ) Headquartered in Tokyo, Japan, it is one of the world’s largest integrated
Financial fmanoa\ services groups vvlth branches in 36 countries and regions,

— ZEtE R 36ME R R

. China’s first professional container production plant and one of the earliest
Industrial Sino-foreign joint ventures, its automated three-dimensional parking system
Cooperation busmess will cooperate with the company’s parking business.
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Ill.  HIGHLIGHT OF THE REPORT n. HBEFE
The total parking spaces has amounted Invite students from
over 22,128, including those of airport, Caofeidian to travel in Beijing
large sports stadium, general hospital, to perform and provide them
shopping mall, office building, residential with scholarships
area and other various places BEE NS ERTEILRIR
HIEZ=2018F K %@FET‘ 22,1288 - &2 7 U RBMRERES

RS REREEE A Bk ﬁ%%%u
REE- EEE%%E%E&

O Shougang Park with beautiful IREIEAH K ERRES
EEEEmmmmrEm  ©"Vironment after renovation, echoing FRA7F] (Beijing Vstartup
H Beijing urban planning, is committed to Investment and Development
Il II building cultural center, international Co., Ltd., “Vstartup”)
communication center and science and s PrOVides entrepreneurs with
technology innovation center space and support to realize
HUERIRIF B E HE R - AL R T their dreams
MR E] » BRSO BIBR A2/ A O K st IEREIEATIREBHRERAF
BREFTHL (TRIEDR]) REIZERM

B2 BHZE M M S

Content Data

Highlights Highlights
NERE BERE

1,232.2 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent emission
1,232 2M8 — &Lk E

4,284.0 cubic metres wastewater ?oigsinizglc metres water
4,284,037 77 KEEIK o .

3,296.4 kg solid wastes
3,296.4F 5 E 8813k

4,283 5K KE RE A

Totaled 413, number of
employees increased 14.4%
HBEA3RB T WY
14.4%

1,192,602 kWh electricity
consumed

1,192,602 FFELFE S A
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BOARD INCLUSIVENESS
Governance Structure

The Group has established internal policies to create
sustainable value for stakeholders and to reduce the
negative impact the Group has on the environment. In
order to implement a sustainable development strategy
from top to bottom, the Board of Directors of the Group
has ultimate responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness
of the ESG policies.

In order to fully implement the sustainable development
strategy, the Group has established dedicated teams
to manage ESG issues. The Group has established
a sustainable development strategy to create
sustainable value and continuously reduce the Group’s
environmental impact. Dedicated teams with designated
staff for management of ESG issues have been assigned
to enforce and supervise the implementation of the
relevant ESG policies cascading through the Group.

BRR HEeRkERERE

ExgsHn

ERRE

AEBEFIEARIEEK  §E/H A
MERIGENREEE MBS AEE
HRENITREE - RTHLEETER
ETARELERER EFESRELR
SEAMEENRE HE8REAREDN
MO AHHEBZMEE-

SBTZEHERETHELRRRE &
SECRVEXEREERE HEk
B8 ([ESG | ) MMERS=IH - AEE D2
VA REERBE AERREEE
VHBEREAEEHRENTE -FH
TEA B I an 58 FI 1T A8 B ER SR L AN

WAEE »

Our Sustainable Governance Structure

ERNTHAZRRERLRR

B

BEmMT  RERES

BOARD EX&

e Develops and initiates
sustainable development
strategies and guidelines;
7 30 BR B P45 4B B R AR
Ntgal:

e Acknowledges, supervises
and monitors the

MANAGEMENT EE g

Top-down: decision making and leadership

implementation of sustainable

e |dentifies the potential risks development practices;
in business plan.
BEXBERBREPHEL
o

BRI

e Assesses and manages the
risks during operations.

AR EE 2 ERRNER -

BTmE: RBRRE

HE - EEMEEAREER

Bottom-up: experiences and feedback

DEPARTMENTS B 85289

e Executes the policies at
different stages of operations;
ETREERBRAITATIBE:

e Eliminates, abates and controls
the risks.
TR B 122 il L B o
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With the forward-looking strategies and well-designed
plans of action to address underlying ESG matters, the
management and responsible teams keep reviewing and
adjusting the Group’s sustainability policies to satisfy
the ever-changing needs of its stakeholders on a regular
basis. Through the assignment of the responsibility
of progress tracking to different management level
positions, the Group is committed to achieving an
excellent performance in ESG management while also
remaining competitive compared with its peers.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

An effective communication with both internal and
external stakeholders is regarded as essential to the
Group in many areas. It not only delivers the Group’s
commitment to long-term value creation to stakeholders
who care about the level of sustainable development
of the Group, but also helps the Group gain a better
understanding of those topics’ material and relevant to
different groups of stakeholders.

Fostering a meaningful relationship with all stakeholders
has been viewed as the premise of effective
communications and the realisation of the Group’s
vision of valuation creation for all. As such, the Group
relies on its good citizenship awareness, reputational
influence and great capability in coordination, and
has built a sound relationship with its stakeholders
including policymakers, regulators, investors, customers,
and suppliers. Through a broad range of open
communication channels, the Group successfully gained
a deeper understanding of its stakeholders’ genuine
concerns and expectations during recent years, which
facilitated the Group to better position itself in the
competitive market and to make a rapid and accurate
strategic adjustment.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE
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With the goal to strengthen corporate sustainability
management while enhancing stakeholders’ awareness
of ESG and sustainability issues, the Group has put
tremendous efforts into its internal and external
stakeholder engagement. During the year under review,
the Group carefully evaluated its stakeholders’ opinions
on corporate sustainable development, especially the
material ESG topics and United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) from their perspectives,
and committed to resolving the problems in a proper
manner based on continuous, concise and effective
communications. With the survey initiated by an external
sustainability consultancy agency, the Group hopes to
achieve three goals:

a. Depict a comprehensive and objective picture of
stakeholders’ concerns in the path of the Group's
long-term sustainable development;

b. Capture potential business opportunities by
addressing climate-related risks and crisis to
people by innovation and optimisation of the
entire operational process;

C. Clarify a shared value between the Group and
investors through quality education on ESG
requirements and SDGs commitment.

BE - dE@RERRE
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The Group highly values the feedback from its

stakeholders and actively collects stakeholder’s feedback

to build a trustful and supportive relationship with them

through their preferred communication channels listed in

the table below.

FOERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RR -HERER

AREEZEERAEDMINELE 1D E K
BER-AGHEEBUERNENDER
R-YEEFHERIMERFHEEEE
MBEXFORBER - NREBETRA
5 R B R B R A a5 AR R 7y i S B

Communication with Stakeholders

Government and
regulatol authorltles

HFRES

Expectations and concerns
HHE*HEE’F)J
Compliance with laws and
regulations
EEER
- Sustainable development

A EER

Communication Channels
%E%L
- Supervision on compliance with
local laws and regulations

HEATABMERERETER
- Routine reports
PITTHRE

Customers
BE

Expectations and concerns
ﬁﬂ%fﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ
ngh quality products and
services
= m B A 7 e AR TS
- Protection of the rights of
customers

REZ PR

Communication Channels

BERE

- Customer satisfaction survey
BEEREERAS

- Face-to-face meetings and
on-site visits
T T B 2 T AN 3R 35 H 57 P

- Customer service hotline and
email

BEPRB2GMEF B

Shareholders
% =

Expectations and concerns
ﬁﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ
Return on investments
& & EIR
- Corporate governance
tEER
- Business compliance

X aM

Communication Channels

BERE

- Regular reports and announcements
i%;&t‘:}ﬁux\i

- Regular general meetings
RERRE

- Official company website
RAIE T Ak

Expectations and concerns

ﬂﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ
Fa|r and open procurement

NGNS

- Wm -win cooperation
EHat

Communication Channels

BERE

- Open tendering
YNk

- Suppliers’ satisfactory
assessment
HIERIE M B E T

- Face-to-face meetings and
on-site visits

T S T A & 2 AN ER A5 HO 27

Employees
BT

Expectations and concerns
?ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ
- Employees’ compensation and
benefits
8 T EFH =
- Career development
- Health and safety in the working
environment

REMZ 20 TIERE

Communication Channels

BRERE

- Employee performance evaluation
8T RBFH

- Regular meetings and trainings
P 7
M

- Team building and activities
B R R AR

- Emails, notice boards, hotline, and
employee engagement activities

BE BER BRRET2EEH

General public
DR

Expectations and concerns

?ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂ
Involvement in communities

S EtE

- Business compliance
XBaR

- Environmental protection
awareness

RIEREEH

Communication Channels

- Regular reports and
announcements
EHBERAE

- Regular general meetings
EHRERE

- Official websites
B 73 #93h
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BRR HEeRkERERE

Online Survey

ERAE

Stakeholder
Selection 2

FHERE

Topic
Prioritisation

SENEERF

4%;%

Materiality
Matrix
EEMER

1

Stakeholder
Identification

£ 10 & W5

N—_

Materiality Assessment

As the ESG risk differs among industries and is decided
by the detailed business model of the company, the
Group undertakes annual review in identifying and
understanding its stakeholders’ main concerns and
material interests for the ESG Report. In FY2018, the
Group engaged its stakeholders to conduct a materiality
assessment survey. Specifically, internal and external
stakeholders were selected based on their influence
and dependence on the Group. Stakeholders with a
high level of influence and dependence on the Group
were selected by the management of the Group, and
invited to express their views and concerns on a list of
sustainability issues via an online survey. The Group was
able to prioritise the issues for discussion. The result
from the materiality assessment survey was mapped and
presented below.

EEMFI

RSB MESGAREITRM R - I A
RN DB EABEBRA At AKE
BEHELTHNESERES  BAR
AkEBREFNEHSAREELRE &
THERARELNTEMIFTAREX
i REBMER2018 FERFTBE L
F-NETENESREZEFNGRAE
IARE(R 38 & B0 ERE I BB S 1 - A
UEDEHASENTE MKBEER
- ELABRIINBRNDEETE
EUFERAT - BENRHEREE L
HENL A RABEEEROBEER
ERANMEHBEI AKERBZAE
BEHRKOENEEZEREENA KA
MEE ERMNEAEERO NEFAN
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Materiality Matrix
EEMER

Areas identified as relevant for disclosure: Areas identified as critical for disclosure:
BREEBRAAEENEE BRIEBERPREENERE:
* Employee remuneration and benefits e Occupational health and safety Health and
1& & % M A0 48 7 safety relating to products/services
. . . Em/ RERRNZ2
e Selection of suppliers and assessment of their
products/services N } e Protection of consumer information and
tai HEFERREER/REHFHEE privacy -
e - . BREMMELRE
% * Social risks assessment of the suppliers
9 HEEmE e R R e Prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and
O« Procurement practices G LS
A ! B PR MRS
b FTJJt AR %J% ;}\.u’.ﬁf i % |
# e Labelling relating to products/services * é:oté-ec(;)ur;gftlon policies and whistle-blowing
i BT/ BRISAE B0 IS R R KRB EHERBR R
“é“ * Understanding local communities” needs
No THEMMREK
S
i Areas identified as not relevant for disclosure: Areas identified as relevant for disclosure:
i BREERB AT EHBHNERE: i T B R A B R
w
= o Lang use, polltit[on and restoration o Air an_d\greenhouse gas (’GHG') emissions
a TENGA FREMIRE ARG RMAAE RER BN
8 e Solid waste treatment e Sewage treatment
v, E s EY R E Ak
E e Use of raw/packaging materials * Use of energy
w JRIE BEME R LR A
I
~ e Mitigation measures to protect natural e Use of water resources
o resources KE R
IE A
Y % RIR 1= 1 e Employee development and training
4 £ ° Composition of employees &8 &R RIE
< = U o
ol + EE\I\‘HEX . .
o [ * Prevention of child and forced labour
S8 =« Suppliers’ geographical classification it EFEI ML
= i HERER D RER . .
= B e Environmental protection assessment of the
N Public welfare and charity suppliers .
REMEE HEB B RRTE
e Customer satisfaction
BEREE
* Marketing and promotion
TSR

e Observance and protection of intellectual
property rights
3 <R o A AR

e Quality control and management of products
EmmBEETRER

Not relevant T8 Crucial 28

IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP A& BN EEY
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The Group built a materiality analysis matrix and
prioritised the 29 sustainability issues accordingly.
With respect to this Report, the Group has identified
Occupational health and safety, Health and safety
relating to products/services, Protection of consumer
information and privacy, Prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, Anti-corruption policies
and whistle-blowing procedures as important issues to
both the Group and its stakeholders. This review has
helped the Group in prioritising its sustainability issues
and highlighting the material and relevant aspects, so as
to align them with stakeholders’ expectations.

According to the result, it was found that to those well-
selected stakeholders, Goal 1 (No poverty) and Goal 4
(Quality education) as the most important goals among
all 17 topics in terms of the degree of stakeholders’
attention and interest, respectively.

To address the stakeholders’ concerns, better align
its operations and business growth with SDGs, and
establish a useful starting point to leverage and
contribute to the globally significant sustainability issues,
the Group meticulously evaluated its interconnections
with these two objectives from within the company
and commits to integrate them into its future strategic
planning and business decision-making.

BRR HEeRkERERE

AEERY TEENSAER  WHEE
W29 B B EERBBIT - AR
EME AKREKINBEEFELE
Em REREHNLZ BEEZAFE
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NO Calls for elimination of poverty in all its manifestations by 2030. To ensure the social protection for the
POVERTY poor and vulnerable, guarantee the access to basic services by individuals and effectively control the
climate-related economic, social and environmental shocks, the Group commits to provide sufficient
insurance, proper compensation, and unconditional support to both its employees and community groups.
IRETI2030F BB EERANBR R THRRABANBLHERHELERE REAAEFTELRR
BUABEFEREEANLCE LENRREE AEEAELFEINTRERBRET D NORE @
B ENERGN -

Obtaining a quality education is the foundation to creating sustainable development. In addition to

EII]JGEIATTYIUN improving quality of life, access to inclusive education can help equip locals with the tools required

to develop innovative solutions to the world’s greatest problems. The Group has contributed to the
education career in rural areas to help students there to get access to better education resources.
BEEEHERAEAHEXERNER RTRSETESIN BEL2EAHEEEDRAE M ARE
REAFTRATRUEHER LS AMEMZNIA - AEERENMENHEFEME T ER &
BB BEEESEHNREER-
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VI.

Insufficient Parking Space
Large Incremental Demand

BE dE2RERTE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Car Parking Assets Operation and
Management Business

Parking difficulty and chaotic parking are the difficult
points of large and medium-sized cities in China, so the
parking industry prospects are generally optimistic. The
Chinese parking industry is facing a series of problems,
including the insufficient supply of parking spaces, poor
operational capacity, unbalanced parking development,
and unregulated management.

VL.

EmE
FEEEREEERY

[MEE2 - FHEE ] 2B AT BRI
TREMNEE Az EEXA KB
BREM BT IF%"%EE&*?&"J
AR TZ2eE: FEuHfHETE &

= FESERITE - E.EET%E
o

Parking Industry Scattered, Weak and
Small with Poor O
FEITXER H -NEERED

ratlon Capablllty

- In 2018, China’s car ownershlp reached 240 million

2018 F B/ BERAEIE2.4EW

- Estimated parking space shortage exceeds 80 million

BfAEMEREBTE

Inefficient Parking Lot Inventory with
Unbalanced Development

FEBEBMER N REFTE

- lIsolated parking lot information, parking space
resources can not be effectively utilized

FHEISEENES B EIRTEHE RFIA

- Parking lot management is inefficient and cannot meet
parking demand

FHESEERERE BERRIFERR

- Parking lot utilization needs to be improved

FESNAREFE

- Low market concentration with fierce competition,

and the parking lot operators are relatively small
MiHEFER BRI FESELHRRAEE/)

- Low professionalism and low level of intelligence

HEREREK B2KERE

Unstandardized Parking Management

FEEETRE

- Low parking management level

FEHERKERE

- Affecting dynamic traffic, causing urban congestion

FEBEE  ER T

- Urgent need of upgrading intelligent management
level and building a liveable C|ty

BRI EZ(CEIERE  ZREEHT
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We will vigorously develop investment and operation
of parking assets, adhering to the principle of "key
cities, core locations, and quality parking spaces”,
actively promote the parking complex model, meet
the demand for parking and related services, enhance
the value of the industry chain, and actively embrace
the development trend of the Internet. We aim to
construct a smart parking ecosystem that includes
parking space reservation, parking space sharing,
parking space navigation, electronic payment, online
and offline interaction, and are committed to “smart
parking, service life.” Intelligent renovation of parking
facilities, optimization of operational service efficiency,
implantation of charging piles and convenience services,
dynamic pricing mechanism based on urban air quality
and etc., improve urban static traffic operation efficiency
and user experience, and build a green ecosystem of
"people, cars, and life” that makes city life better.

The main business of the Group has transferred into
operation and management of parking assets in Beijing,
Shanghai, Chengdu and other cities in mainland China.
Shougang Concord aims to become a leading parking
assets operation and management company in China
through firm commitment in the parking industry and
enhanced investment in parking facilities. The Group
now manages and operates over 40 parking lots, the
total parking spot has amounted over 22,128, including
those of airport, large sports stadium, general hospital,
shopping mall, office building, residential area and other
various places.

BE - dE@RERRE

BABANBREERBREES R
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ME - HNERAFPBR BE[AeHEe4
BIMREERER BRHAEES
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AEBENEFTEXEBRELEBREZILL R L&
R E KR E A E MR EE
BEHEEREE BREBRBREMRD
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With a high standard of service quality, the Group TEBEBESKENRBEEE  Uan
obtained the evaluation of the quality credit AAA BEETLETRBZEEREN LEN
of Shanghai 2018 public parking lot issued by the 2018F AR ES (FE) mEEEAAA
Shanghai Municipal Transportation Commission with RFTE R IR EKEE L GHES
high scores. At the same time, the Honggiao team won SERZENENRESEREIERSS
the outstanding co-operator of Import Expo Safety EBfM - ELBIBEZDEIR T RMER
Work issued by Shanghai Airport Group. These awards EnRGEENREEERSEMITE
fully demonstrate our strict control over the quality of RA] B EERROEREEER
products and our high level of industry recognition. We BaKENREEE BORAEFIR
will continue to maintain a high level of service quality HE T W RTS o

in the future and are committed to providing the best

service to our customers.
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At the same time, the Group also developed a

competitive strategy based on industry weaknesses,

provide comprehensive solutions for regional static

traffic control and smart parking facilities, and relied

on the corporate advantages of Shougang Concord

to improve the operational effects of static traffic and

dynamic traffic management in the region and to solve

the problems faced by the parking lot industry.

Rational allocation of
assets, the asset structure is
conducive to the expansion

of business scale and to
maintaining the level of asset
returns

HRELECEBRE BEAER
AR AR ER - XAF
FHERS & B W e kAR

Rational
allocation of

Competition
Strategy

Combine various commercial

patters, release the vitality of
parking assets and increase the
level of income
FEBEBERE BHEEE
AT IR R KA

BRR HEeRkERERE

FIES  NERBESHHITESDH HIEDH
FRES - AR R SRERI A R
HERERERABRATR  BEEER
RONEEED  RITMREFEBEN
BREBEEM T E R E L WE - R
FESITERAAERHHMERE-

Intelligent, standardized

and specified operation
management mode to
improve operational quality and
efficiency

BRI REL RELHEE
EEEANEES mENE
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BOARAREPRUEKERY A&EBE
RBEERTERAKRNER D - BEERRG
é%ﬁﬂam@%mﬁﬂi Al BRI AR

CERRBEEFEMETER MR
s o

As the Group strives to provide the best service to
clients, the Group devotes a lot energy in service
management. Measures taken to manage service
quality include regular training, establishing service
standard, implementing service standard assessment and
performing customer satisfaction survey.

Establishing
Service
Standard
o0 By RS
(]
[ ]
Performing
Customer
Satisfaction Survey
“ ETEFRERERE

m»

Holding Regular
Training

EE R

Implementing
Service Standard

Assessment
Bt RS EETE
To ensure the stable operation of the intellectual AEREBEFEERANETESE K&
parking system, the Group has taken various measures, EEERZERER 215
including:
. Selecting experienced software suppliers and . BEMECRATEORGHERS
hardware suppliers with high market reputation RmisOE - 2% REREN
and quality standard; R

o Timely updating and maintaining hardware and
software systems;

o Setting specific personnel for software and
hardware update and maintenance; and

o Establishing emergency management procedure.

The Group performs regular checks on the parking
system to detect system failure and replace the failed
equipment. We have responding procedure in case
parking system breaks down.

1. On-site employees actively guide vehicles to enter
and exit; and perform emotional consoling for
drivers to minimise the impact;

2. Technicians detect system failure; and replace
new equipment in time according to equipment
problems.

. KW B AT REG RS

. BEANRBEREFEHGE

. RHEABNESBEREE -

AEETE RSB R ARAER
R E I F ISR f% nMEERE
BEF UBNEERRBELRE-

1. MG ABREBS| EEEFHE L M
BEMNEBETBELZE UES

AR

2. }ﬁim/\,\ﬁ B R R EE - MARE
R 15 R e By B MR AR A4 o
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The Group also places safety signs at dangerous areas
and separate dangerous areas with normal parking areas
to prevent potential danger.

The Group provides service through hotlines and
emails to communicate with customers and access to
complaints. The Group performs the evaluation and
investigation upon receipt of customer complaints to
identify the cause of the problems. Once confirming
the complaints, the Group would work out specific
solutions, respond to relevant clients and record the
complaints. During FY2018, no complaints were
received.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant laws
relating to customers’ privacy such as the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations to ensure
customers’ rights are strictly protected. Information
collected by the Group from its customers would only
be used for the intended purpose. The Group prohibits
the provision of customer information to a third party
without the authorisation of the customer. The Group
has built a Data Safety Protection System which is only
accessible to specific staffs to ensure the security of
the data. The employees are educated to enhance the
awareness of the data leakage risks and required to
sign the confidentiality agreement. The IT department
sets obstruction between office and commercial net to
prevent unauthorized data use, exportation and copy.

BRR HEeRkERERE

AEBEECREENEZ2RE X
KreRREEEEFEREDHF A
FEENER -

REBRBHRMEFBRERS
HEPEBIWESIIRF NEEERE
BEPRFRETHENAL - UHEER
BHRE — BRI NEESH
EEBMBRTEYOEBEEF I
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F486F ) AR EAMMERERER - R
EFESXIBERRE - AKREREP
Wz ERHESBIERWERNRAR
ZoAEEBREREEFRERAF =N
REEFEN AKBECRY—E%XE
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BUARRBELZ2 AEEREETHR
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The Group has established internal guidelines to ensure
the sales and marketing departments provide accurate,
precise product descriptions and information that
complies with the relevant local laws and regulations
to the customers. Any misrepresentation in marketing
materials or exaggeration of offerings is strictly
prohibited. The Group is involved in the research and
development of the parking management system and
related equipment, and actively applies for patents.

Urban Renewal Fund Management Business

At the end of 2017, the Group successfully acquired
the Beijing-Hebei Co-development Exhibition Zone Fund
Management Co., Ltd., expanding its business to the
urban renewal-orientated fund management business.
The investment focus is on parking-based infrastructure
and park construction. At the same time, it will
consider investing in medical-oriented consumption
upgrades, new energy vehicles’ parts and equipment
manufacturing, and cutting-edge technology.

The New Shougang High-end Industrial Comprehensive
Service Park (“Shougang Park”) is named because of
the orientation of development and construction of the
old industrial zone, after the discontinued operation
of Shougang Group's iron and steel business. It is
located at the western end of Chang’an Street, only
18 kilometers away from Tiananmen Square, covering
an area of 8.63 square kilometers. It is the only area in
the urban area of Beijing that can be developed on a
large scale. The park has a beautiful environment and
unique scenery. It is adjacent to the Yongding River,
which is Beijing’s mother river, and backed by the Xishan
Mountain, and has industrial and natural landscapes
such as Shijingshan, Qunming Lake, Xiuchi and blast
furnace, and has been listed as a green ecological
demonstration zone in Beijing. The park’s positioning
echoes Beijing’s urban planning. As an important
carrier of Shougang Group's strategic transformation,
it strives to build a cultural center, an international
communication center, and a science and technology
innovation center, carrying the development functions of
energy conservation, environmental protection, health
care, cultural education, financial services and urban
infrastructure.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Group’s Advantage in Urban Renewal

SEEERRED

Traffic
Advantage
REERZ

Historical
Advantage
AXES

Environmental
Advantage
RIZES

Beautiful natural Long history of the Located along

landscape park the west side of
BENBATE [ [& s8R Chang’an Street

with convenient
Urban public traffic

Planning
Advantage
REEZ

Unified
planning, overall

development
IR Bk

New Shougang activities leisure R REZEASE Cooperation
International belt and riverside RIEE R with well-known
Talent Community comprehensive planning and
Construction leisure belt design institutes at
MEMBERATHE S RREBREE home and abroad
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Case study EY D
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B (H228F oK) HIFERBRE

development of the park, which opens a new chapter
in the company’s participation in the development,
construction and operation of the park. Through the
entrusted lease, the original office building is renovated
and rebuilt, and the proceeds are obtained through
investment promotion and project operation. The
construction area is 10,000 square meters and has
been completed. This provides fundamental services for
the development and operation of the second-phase
World Overseas Chinese Business Innovation Center of
Shougang Park (about 220,000 square meters).
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In 2016, Beijing 2022 Winter Olympics Organizing
Committee moved in the Shougang Old Industrial Zone.
Shougang’s transformation and development ushered in
new opportunities. In accordance with the Beijing City
Master Plan, the new Shougang Park will be positioned
to seize the major opportunity of organizing the 2022
Beijing Winter Olympics, focusing on improving the
functional organization order of the Changan Street axis,
making overall plans for the protection and utilization of
industrial remains, and fully exploiting historical values
and era values. By creating “new space” and “new
energy”, Shougang Park will build a “new landmark for
the revitalization of the capital city in the new era”.

The southeast area of Shougang Park, with a space of
200,000 square meters, is invested to build the Jingxi
Financial Industrial Park, absorbing the spilled over
resources of Financial Street, CBD and Zhongguancun,
and building the Jingxi Financial Industry Cluster to
provide supporting housing and talent apartments
for high-end talents in Western Beijing to realize the
concept of occupational residence balance.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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In FY2018, the Group was not in violation of any
relevant laws and regulations regarding health and
safety, advertising, labelling, and privacy matters of its
products and services that have a significant impact on
the Group.
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EMPLOYEEMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
Employment

The Group treasures employee’s talent and sees it as
the key to driving the success and maintaining the
sustainable development of the Group. The Group
has persisted in the combination of a people-oriented
management philosophy and an innovation mechanism.
Through diversity and humanistic management, the
Group has established a close relationship of mutual
trust and support between the Group and its staff, and
created a positive, healthy and motivated corporate
culture and safe working environment for its employees.

The Group always strives to provide its employees
with a safe and suitable platform for developing their
career, professionalism and advancement. The Group
attaches great attention to employee training and
cultivates employees to provide high-quality service to all
customers.

Law compliance

The human resources policies of the Group strictly
adhere to the applicable employment laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and mainland China, including
but not limited to:

o Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong);

° Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap. 485 of Laws of Hong Kong);

VILI.
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RIE - HERERBRS
. Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China; . R ARLFBEILB)E
. Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of . FEARLNMBSEHERE: &
China; and

. Company Law of the People’s Republic of China. . HRE ARKMBERRDE

The Group has also complied with the laws and AEENEETHEBAREETSRETE
regulations with respect to the employees’ social security BERKER  ZEElm P E A
schemes that are enforced by the local governments in FHEREERMMIT  REEMH AT
the PRC in relation to employee benefits. The human BIREBPIRIR F AR KR PIE HE B
resources department of the Group is responsible for RENBHRERBER -

reviewing and updating the relevant policies on a regular
basis in accordance with the latest laws and regulations.

Employee structure BT4iEE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a workforce of HZE1E2018F 128310 REBRFH
413 in mainland China and Hong Kong. Wi R BB HEBF43REL

Employee by Region

BitEDENEIH

. Mainland China
A

. Hong Kong
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Recruitment and promotion

Recruitment is the key to the Group’s long-term
sustainable development. The Group prudently selects
employees through recruitment events and has
established annual recruitment plan, which clarifies
the number of employees to be employed, title of the
vacant job and the requirements on candidates. The
Group attracts talented employees through various
channels, such as the internet, recruitment seminar and
headhunting companies. During the recruitment process,
the Group strives to provide candidates with an open,
fair, transparent and standard environment to recruit
outstanding employees.

The Group values talented employees and takes personal
capability, professional qualification, working experience
and market benchmark as the most important aspect in
recruitment decision.

The promotion report issued by the manager should be
based on the outstanding performance of the employee.
By improving the remuneration system and career paths,
the Group is expected to establish a comprehensive
incentive system based on physical, mental, emotional
and growth motivations, to maintain a harmonious and
stable employment relationship.

Compensation and dismissal

The Group conducts annual performance appraisal
for employees based on employees’ work ability,
performance, benchmark, and internal budget of the
company, and encourages employees with outstanding
performance. The Group also distributes bonuses
based on employee performance to motivate key
management’s long-term contribution to the Group.
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Any appointment, promotion or termination of the
employment contract would be based on reasonable,
lawful ground and internal policies, such as staff
handbooks. The Group strictly prohibits any kind of
unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

Working hours and Holidays

The Group has formulated its policy based on local
employment laws to ensure enough working hours
and rest time for employees. The Group has arrange
reasonable working hours and rest time for employees.
The Group has formulated its own internal policies to
inspect the working hours for every employee to ensure
the compliance of local laws. Employees can receive
overtime pay or compensatory leave if the employees
work at non-office hours. In addition to basic paid
annual leave and statutory holidays stipulated by
local governments, employees may also be entitled to
additional leave entitlements such as marriage leave,
compassionate leave and others.

Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group
is committed to creating a fair, respectful and
diverse working environment by promoting anti-
discrimination and equal opportunity in all human
resources and employment decisions. In other words,
training and promotion opportunities, dismissals and
retirement policies are based on factors irrespective
of the employees’ age, gender, race, colour, disability,
nationality, religion or any other non-job-related
elements. Meanwhile, the equal opportunity policy
allows zero tolerance in relation to any workplace
discrimination, harassment or vilification in accordance
with local ordinances and regulations, such as Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
480 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Employees are highly
encouraged to report any discrimination to the human
resources department of the Group. The Group will
then take the responsibility of assessing, dealing with,
recording and taking any necessary disciplinary actions
on such incidents.
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Benefits and welfare

Except for statutory annual leave, the Group also offers
other benefits to its employees, such as annual physical
check, abundant holiday gifts and other benefits.
Meanwhile, to facilitate employees’ relationship, the
Group held a series of activities in FY2018 to relieve
employees’ pressure. The Group also use social media,
emails to maintain good communication between
managers and employees.

During the year under review, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, welfare and other benefits that have
a significant impact on the Group.
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Health and Safety

The Group believes that health and safety at work
involves both the prevention of harm and the promotion
of employees’ well-being. To provide and maintain
a safe, clean and environmentally-friendly working
condition for employees, the Group has established strict
internal safety and health policies, which are in line
with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
mainland China, including:

o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.
509 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases;
and

o Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance.

The Group believes that a clean and comfortable
environment can improve employees’ creativity to
the maximum, hence strives to provide employee
with a clean, smoke-free, healthy and safe working
environment by adhering to the principle of anti-
smoking, anti-drug and anti-alcoholism.

At the same time, the Group requires the responsible
person of the parking lots to conscientiously implement
the national laws and regulations on occupational
hazards prevention and control and participate in
regular occupational health training, and supervise
the formulation and implementation of the health
management system and operational procedures in
daily work. In case of occupational hazard accidents,
the Group shall promptly report to the local safety
production supervision and management department
and organize various departments to quickly take
effective measures to reduce or eliminate the hazards
of occupational diseases and prevent accidents from
expanding. The Group strictly prohibits late reporting,
underreporting, false reporting or concealed reporting of
occupational hazards.
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The Group is also equipped with occupational safety
management personnel to study and implement the
laws, regulations, rules and standards of the state
on occupational hazards prevention, supervise the
implementation of occupational hazard prevention and
control responsibility system at all levels, and ensure the
health and safety of workers in the labour process, and
monitor employees’ health.

Cleaning companies should perform regular cleaning,
including disinfecting carpets, cleaning air conditioning
systems, and water dispensers. Emergency exits need to
be kept open and not locked during working hours. A
fully equipped first aid kit is available in the workplace,
with expired medications replaced in a timely manner.

The Group also requires employees to stay alertness
during working hours. The Group regularly organizes
safety and health conferences and trainings in the
field of occupational health and safety. To cultivate the
emergency management ability, the Group holds fire
drill and emergency management trainings regularly. In
the event of a threat to employees’ health and safety,
the Group promptly handles the matter and investigates
other possible hazards. To eliminate the ignorance of
threats, punish are taken on employees who failed to
report potential threats.

In FY2018, no work-related fatalities and no loss due
to work injury occurred in the Group's related activities.
During the year under review, the Group was not in
violation of any of the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to providing a safe working environment and
protecting the employees from occupational hazards that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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Development and Training

The Group values the importance of the growth and
development of its employees and has formulated its
internal strategy for talent training and retention. The
Group strives to create a promising and satisfactory
career path with promotion prospects for different
employees by providing trainings on various aspects.
Apart from traditional training, employees are also
able to share their knowledge and experience through
intranet.

For starters, the Group provides comprehensive
orientation training to understand the corporate culture,
business flow, working health and safety, management
systems and group development. For on-job employees,
the Group provides business improvement courses and
management capacity improvement courses, while
sharing learning materials through the intranet.

As a responsible employer, we also concern our
employee’s mental health and provide support for
employees to solve their psychological problems. During
the year under review, the Group organised young
employees to participate in the psychological counselling
course. This course is lectured by Lingling Wang, who is
a clinical hypnotherapist certified by Eriksson College,
the International Self-Therapeutic Society Certified
Treatment Unit (London), and is the International
Complex Trauma Certified Therapist (Germany), with
aims to provide psychological counselling for employees
and reduce employee psychological stress.
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Internal training is the mainstream of the Group while
we also provide opportunities to employees for external
training. Employees are encouraged to participate in
external training, seminar and examination to gain more
work-related knowledge. The Group aims to foster a
learning culture that could strengthen its employees’
professional knowledge, so as to benefit the Group,
as employees are expected to achieve better working
performance after receiving appropriate training.

The total training hour of the Group during the year
under review has amounted to 23,600 hours. The
average training hours for different genders in the same
level is the same.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by local and national labour
standards, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, to
prohibit any child and/or forced labour employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, the Group’s
human resources department requires job applicants to
provide valid identity documents before confirmation of
employment to ensure that the applicants are lawfully
employable. A whistle-blowing mechanism has been
established to monitor and ensure full compliance of
latest and relevant laws and regulations that prohibit
child labour and forced labour. Furthermore, the human
resources department of the Group is also responsible to
monitor and guarantee the Group's compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child labour
and forced labour employment.

In FY2018, the Group was not in violation of any
relevant laws and regulations, in relation to the
prevention of child and forced labour that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres to the
local laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption and
bribery, irrespective of the area or country where the
Group conducts its business, such as Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Anti-Money Laundering and the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

The Group has formulated comprehensive internal
operating manuals, such as staff handbooks and
financial management policies, based on the anti-
corruption, anti-fraud and anti-bribery policies of the
Group. The Group’s commitment to integrity and the
prevention of fraud and commercial bribery is reflected
in its different business agreements, such as the
employment contracts, bidding documents, procurement
contracts, which are signed by employees, business
units and customers. All employees are expected to
discharge their duties with integrity and self-disciplined,
and they are required to abstain from engaging in any
activities related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering which might affect their business decision
or independent judgment in the course of business
operation which exploit their positions against the
Group's interests.

The Group has no tolerance for any corruption and
set whistle-blowing policy to report any corruption.
Relevant evaluation, consultation, investigation and
punishment are written in the Whistle-blowing policy.
Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to the
management or the senior management of the Group
for any suspected misconduct with full details and
supporting evidence. The management will conduct
investigations against any suspicious or illegal behaviour
to protect the Group’s interests. The Group advocates a
confidentiality mechanism to protect the whistle-blowers
against unfair dismissal or victimisation through security
regimes. Where criminality is suspected, a report is made
to the relevant regulators or law enforcement authorities
when the management considers necessary.
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The Group greatly evaluates the promotion and
education of anti-corruption and conducts regular
meetings to prevent corruption. Besides, the Group has
noted the employees to prevent bribery in the operation
and interest damage of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group is not in
violation of any of the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact on the Group.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGMENT

As an enterprise that bases its basic principle on
sustainable development while fulfilling social
responsibilities, it is critical for the Group to maintain
and manage a reliable supply chain that takes
environmental and social impact into consideration. This
requires an efficient and strict monitoring regime on
supply chain practices.

The Group has achieved this goal by conducting
comprehensive evaluation of potential suppliers,
investigating selected suppliers, imposing strict standards
on the quality of suppliers’ raw materials and services,
and reviewing the suppliers’ products, services, previous
track record, ongoing projects, reputation, quality and
their social and environmental responsibility regularly so
as to maintain a good and long-term relationship with

suppliers.

Selection of suppliers

When choosing suppliers, the Group requires the

suppliers to provide business license, production
certification and financial information. Occupational
Safety and Health certificate holders will be considered
in priority. As product quality is the main concern, the
Group requires the suppliers to provide the analysis
report on quality accidents, describe the reason of the
accident, conduct quality analysis and take prevention
measures.
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Business license

EXYR

Quality
certification
BEERE

The Group conducts basic evaluations of top manager'’s
turnover, production capacity, changes in manufacturing
techniques and raw materials, and violations of the law
and discipline of the suppliers. Site inspections are held
to assess the background of the eligible tenderers based
on their quality management systems and business
certificates, equipment and facilities, financial position,
reputation and after-sales services. According to the
evaluation of the Group, suppliers with serious problems
in the regulatory compliance, delivery, health and safety,
and environmental protection will be put in the black list
immediately.

Risk management

For suppliers of the same types of products, Shougang
Concord generally adopts the combination of suppliers
and backup suppliers to reduce the risks in the supply
process. The Group keeps close contact with suppliers
and establishes a long-term relationship to ensure a
stable supply chain. Suppliers are divided into different
groups according to cooperation term and production
capital to implement differentiated management
strategies.
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We implement a strict control on unqualified products
provided by suppliers, including labelling, isolating
and reporting non-conforming products to prevent
unintended use or delivery of unqualified products,
and take effective measures to reduce the impact of
unqualified products on the Group's daily operations
and customers. If the supplier has serious problems
in compliance, delivery, health, safety, environmental
protection, and etc., the Group will assess the risk and
take appropriate measures against the supplier according
to the situation.

In daily operations, we find that the system hardwares
in different parking lots vary in brands, which increases
the difficulty in intelligent parking management.
Shougang Concord has taken measures to make the
system hardware uniform, including obtaining long-term
management rights and deciding the brand for system
hardware, to facilitate better management and enhance
corporate image.

Referring to environmental risks, environmental
requirements are clearly stated in the commercial
agreement. The Group has conducted environmental
action interview with suppliers on the significant
environmental impact, pollution accident and
environmental protection measures taken to control,
reduce and prevent pollution in the supply chain.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

In the past ten years, the concept of socially responsible
investment that pursues long-term value growth and
balances economic and social benefits has received more
and more attention in the asset management industry.
At the same time, the practice of social responsibility
has been increasingly valued by domestic venture capital
institutions. Many organizations have carried out various
public welfare activities and new explorations of public
welfare. Shougang Concord deeply understands its
social responsibilities as a leading company of Shougang
Group, one of the most famous state-owned enterprises.
In FY2018, we have actively participated in community
activities to facilitate the economic growth and harmony
in communities. The Group mainly focused on four
aspects of social activities, which were educational
charity activities, donation activities blood donation, and
V startup community.
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Educational charity activities
Case study

The Group, as the member of China Venter Capital
Charity Alliance, organised an activity, namely
“Enterprise and Community Co-Construction — Investors
Are In Action”, which invited students from Caofeidian
to travel to Beijing in two separate groups. The event
aimed to provide children who were invited to Beijing
with an opportunity to gain knowledge and understand
the society, and to use cross-border resources and
professional exploration to support the progress and
development of the focus area of social welfare, such
as environmental protection, culture, education, medical
care and other social welfare areas. This event was also
committed to bringing new enlightenment to social
development. At the event, Yang Xueqin, founder of
Tumeng Education, shared the story of how students
in remote areas realized their dreams through online
vocational education. Also, the former national athlete
and volunteer, Xibo Gu, shared his experience on his
career as a runner with students from Caofeidian. He
said, perseverance is a kind of spirit and a kind of belief,
holding on to the dream, people can get more than they
can imagine. After the speech, students and teachers
from Caofeidian visited Shougang Park together with
other companies from China Venter Capital Charity
Alliance and the caring people from famous institutional
investors in the society.
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The next day, the children from the Caofeidian campus
of Jingshan School held a sharing session with the
volunteers to share their thoughts on the trip to Beijing.
At the meeting, students with excellent academic
performance also received scholarships from the
Changqing Charity Foundation sponsored by Shougang
Fund employees and Shougang Concord employees.

Children Say

el (5
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When | grow up, | also want to help
others and pass on this love.

EARMRBEEREDHIA BRENE -

Not affected by the surrounding,
moving forward better.
PRBEEZE  MEIFAE -

| hope that | can use this money to
fulfill my own little wishes, and then
achieve my goals step by step to help
more people.
HEREAEEEEHACEZH/ B
E ANE—TTERBENARR =EH
EEZ: PN

Beijing is a place you must go in life.
It is the wish that Shougang's uncles
helped me to complete. | will study
hard and never let you down.
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Volunteers Says

HFEE R

| hope this event is an opportunity. You
can communicate with us through reading
notes, paintings, letters, etc. We hope
that we will become good friends. We

wil certainly help you in the best of our
people.
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It is the first time to make contact with
rural children and to understand how to
take care of these children if we want to
give them appropriate care. Every step
needs to be cautious, but every step
counts
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Equal communication does not exist

in reality. It requires courage to
communicate. Only when we are brave
enough can children gradually put their
guards down.

FENEFE RERPENFEN BERFE
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| have worked as a volunteer and also
taught in remote areas. The help that
children need most is not material, but
the direction of efforts set through the
guidance of volunteers, which has the
most important impact on their lives.
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Donation activities

In addition to supporting education in surrounding
areas, the Group also continuously focuses on the
material and spiritual needs of people in remote areas
of China. In FY2018, we organised the donation of
books and winter clothes to the people in need in
remote areas. During these activities, we have collected
a total of 261 books and 20 winter clothes donated by
employees, which were sent to Xinjiang Province after
the activities. We wish to help the needy to go through
a warm winter and encourage them to continue learning

through our little love.
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RIR - HERERKRE

Blood donation

Unpaid blood donation is a kind of social mutual aid
behaviour, and a lofty act of saving lives and selfless
dedication. On 20 November 2018, 12 colleagues from
Shougang Fund, Shougang Concord and its subsidiaries
took the initiative to participate in blood donation. After
the blood donation, they did not rest, but immediately
returned to the company and re-entered the work. The
love of dedication of the colleagues also demonstrated
the sense of responsibility and responsibility of the new

Shougang people.
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Vstartup

As an urban renewal service provider under Shougang
Group, Vstartup focuses on the transformation and
operation of the city’s stock assets and activates the
urban space with the ecological operation mode of
“fund + base + industry chain service”, which brings
companies from different industries with different
levels of development together to achieve resource
and information sharing, to help small and medium-
sized micro-tech enterprises realize their entrepreneurial
dreams. Shougang Concord is committed to supporting
the growth of small and medium sized companies,
providing them with an open and efficient platform to
promote economic growth.
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In addition, the Group has also built a helipad for the
China-Japan Friendship Hospital for the take-off and
landing of emergency rescue helicopters. At the same
time, the Group is also responsible for the operation
and maintenance of the apron. In a complex urban
transportation system, a short district sometimes can
cost an ambulance for dozens of minutes or more to
arrive while a helicopter can reach its destination in less
than ten minutes, which can meet the needs of rapid
medical care. The maintenance of the apron is fairly
complicated, so the daily operation and maintenance
provided by the Group for the hospital are extremely
important. The downtime assessment greatly enhanced
the hospital’s emergency rescue, the efficiency of
transporting patients, and saved countless lives.
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ENVIRONMENT

To seek the long-term sustainability of the environment
and the community where it operates, the Group is
prudent in controlling its emissions and consumption
of resources and complies with relevant environmental
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and mainland China
during its daily operations, including:

o Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Wastes

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Conserving Energy

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Pollution From
Environmental Noise

o Regulations of the Management of Economical
Use of Urban Water

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

° Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of
the Laws of Hong Kong); and

o Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).
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This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies,
practices, and quantitative data on emissions, use of
resources, the environment and natural resources in
FY2018.

Emissions

The Group has complied with all relevant local
environmental laws and regulations in terms of emissions
set out in Hong Kong and mainland China. In FY2018,
the Group found no disregard to influential laws relevant
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. The Group commits to constantly keep mitigate
its environmental impacts through effective measures,
such as the smart control of the Group’s resource
consumption and the upgrade of outdated equipment
that performs poorly in energy efficiency.

Given the nature of the Group's business, air emissions
mainly come from the combustion of fuels for
transportation. In FY2018, the air emissions of sulfur
oxides (“SOx") and nitrogen oxides (“NOx") amounted
to 1.0 kg and 22.3 kg.
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GHGs are a major contributor to climate change
and rigorously governed by the United Nations (UN)
‘Framework Convention on Climate Change’ and the
subsequent UN ‘Kyoto Protocol’. GHG emissions from
the Group are primarily generated from electricity
consumption during operations. Specifically, the Group’s
total GHG emissions were 1,232.2 tonnes COze, with an
intensity of 3.2 tonnes COze/employee being calculated
during the year under review. The CO:e form Scope
2 Indirect emission took up 89% of the total CO:e
emission while COze from Scope 1 Direct emission and
Scope 3 Other Indirect emission accounted for 15% of
the total emission.

GHG Emissions
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R HEgRELRRE

FY2018 GHG Emissions in Sankey Diagram

018 FEERERBHERRER

Geographical Business

Unit: tonne COze
B =t v-aimzs

|2l - Use of resources Emission scopes Total emissions
locations segments 2y =
BB oy HRERA B30 & E 35

Electricity: 1,050.3
Car park operation: 1,068.9
The PRC: 11769
[ roms Konz: <53 Bm"“'m’.'."a’;n;mmmn

Other than GHG emissions, the Group also generated
solid wastes and wastewater from its administration
offices and parking lots. A total of 3,296.4 kg of non-
hazardous solid wastes (with an intensity of 8.5 kg/
employee) and 4,284.0 cubic metres of non-hazardous
commercial wastewater (with an intensity of 11.1cubic
meters/employee) were discharged during the Group’s
operations.

In FY2018, The Group did not generate any hazardous
waste and the Group’s total emissions are summarised in
Table 1.

Seape 2: 1,050.3

Totnl GHOG emissions: 1.232.2

Seope 12 Iﬂ.l|

Seope 3: 1580
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Air & GHG emission management

Air emissions of the Group were insignificant as it mainly
came from the use of vehicles for its daily operation. The
exhausted gases generated from the combustion process
were mainly carbon dioxide, SOx, and NOx. The primary
source of GHG emissions emitted by the Group was
the use of purchased electricity. As the GHGs emission
is positively correlated to electricity consumption, the
Group has implemented policies to reduce the electricity
consumption in its daily operation through specific
measures, which are further detailed in the subsection
headed “Electricity” under section “Use of Resources”
of this ESG Report.

Waste management

Wastewater produced by the Group was domestic
wastewater, which was collected by the property
management and further discharged to the municipal
wastewater treatment plant through the sewage pipe
work. Solid wastes generated by the Group came
from discarded paper and domestic solid wastes. To
reduce the amount of solid waste generated, the
Group has adopted garbage categorization and reused
the recyclable solid wastes. The Group encourages
employees to bring their own lunch boxes, recycle the
office stationery and use non-disposable cups.

Use of resources

The Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to the Group's use of resources
during the year under review. In FY2018, the major
resources consumed by the Group were electricity, water,
gasoline and paper. The Table 2 illustrates the amount of
resources used by the Group in FY2018.
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Electricity

The Group’s electricity consumption came from daily
operations of administrative offices and parking lots.
In FY2018, the total electricity consumption of the
Group was 1,192.6 '000kWh (with an intensity of
3.1 '000kWh/employee).

To align with the Group’s policy of saving electricity, all
subsidiaries and parking lots of the Group have taken
a variety of measures to ensure the most effective use
of electricity and demonstrate their determination to
protect our environment.

HE

SENENERRETEHAZNEE
BEBRNBEEL -M2018FEHF - K
EENEREEER1,192.6 T TRE (%
EA31TTREE THZ8T)-

REAASENSMERE ~A&E ME
B~ R R EISH E RIS A M A
BRREMLERE N YR TERFRE
REARL

e Turn off all lights and air conditions which are no replace high electricity consumption lamps with the installation of

electricity saving lamps for office lighting;

iR EEANRARZERARS ERAEREHRBARREEERSHER

e Place posters “Saving Electricity Resources” in prominent places to encourage employees to save electricity;

FERRAERR [ERE] MEH  ARBE TEHHAE:

e Replace electronic facilities with electricity efficient ones;

M ERRR BRI DR ERBNERS

e Use electronic facilities with energy saving label;

=B ASERRNERRE

e Turn off the electronic facilities after work, such as copy machine and boiler;

TR BB EN AR EF Eaa R

e Install curtains to allow the transmission of light and keep the air conditions’ efficiency;

I T BRI B L AR AR FF 22 S AR B

e Clean office equipment regularly (such as refrigerator, air-conditioner, paper shredder) to maintain high efficiency; and

EEBRMAERE (KA - =50 A SAMRIT SR R

e Turn off computers at the end of the day.

TIRR R AR A -
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Water

Due to the business nature, the water consumption
comes from employees’ daily use. In FY2018, the Group
did not face any problem in sourcing water, and the
Group’s total water consumption amounted to 4,283.0
cubic metres (with an intensity of 11.1 cubic metres/
employee). To improve the utilization efficiency of water
resources, the Group has formulated internal regulation
and required all the employees to strictly comply with
the water-saving policies in daily operation.

Require employees to strictly comply with Group’s watering saving policy;

ZREBTBRBTAKEHHORNKZBER:

BRR HEeRkERERE
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HREBHOME KERNEREREE
THEEFER - N2018EFKREE » K
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Fix dripping taps immediately and avoid any leakage of the water supply system;

BNR IS 327 /K 7K BE B8 B it e (K R AR BE (T2

Promote and educate employees to save water;
EERMEBIELRAK:

Regular inspection and maintenance on water tap, water pipelines and water storage tanks; and

EMRE R EKEEE KB RKAE )

Recycle the used water for cleaning.

fE AR Z KARER -
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Environmental and natural resources

Through a series of measures to save electricity, water,
gasoline, and reduce the amount of wastes during
operations that have been introduced above, the Group
has made significant progress towards the building of
a reliable, resilient and sustainable corporation that
pioneers in the intelligent parking industry. In FY2018,
the Group's environmental impact was minimal due to
its unremitting efforts to create a resource-saving and
environmentally-friendly enterprise.

The emissions of exhaust gas and GHG, solid
waste, wastewater is all in conformity with relevant
environmental laws and regulations. Among all the
GHG emissions during the year under review, the
Group’s major impact on the environment was from
the consumption of electricity. To minimise its GHG
emissions, which are always connected with the
precursor of global climate change, the Group strictly
monitors, manages and improves its business model,
focuses on its recycling initiatives, and relies on the
efficient usage and control of electricity.

The education of environmental protection is the first
step to which the Group pays great attention. The
Group has committed to cultivating the good habits of
diligence and frugality in terms of the use of natural
resources among all its employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL KPIS
Table 1 The Group’s Total Emissions by

X. BRERHESEE
x— KNEER20188 FIRERI & o

Category in FY2018 RN E
Intensity ™
(Unit per
Emissions Unit Amount employee)
BEO
HEB By #E (EuSES)
Air emissions SOx Kg 1.0 =
BRI RELn AR
NOx Kg 22.3 -
AL AR
GHG emissions Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) tonnes COze 166.1 0.4
BERBER BE— (EEER) = e
Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions)  tonnes COze 1,050.3 2.7
#E— (EREZHER) M-S iE e
Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) @ tonnes CO2e 15.8 -
HE= (AeRERER @ B-Ehae
Total (Scope 1, 2 & 3) tonnes COze 1,232.2 3.2
e (BE— = =) B RHRER
Non-hazardous Solid Wastes Kg 3,296.4 8.5
waste emissions ElEEEEN N
mE R Wastewater m? 4,284.0 1.1
&K MK
”) Intensity was calculated by dividing the average number of (1) BEEHHNER UFEE20185 F-F

employees of the Group in FY2018; and

@ The Group’s GHG emissions for Scope 3 (Other Indirect

Emissions) only cover that from electricity used for

processing paper.

1B EPTIF : K
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Table 2 The Group’s Total Use of Resources by K= AEBRA2018E F1RERIE 2
Category in FY2018 ERAERER
Intensity ™
(Unit per
Resource Category Item Unit Amount employee)
7
ERER HHE B HE (ENSmES)
Energy Electricity kWh'000 1,192.6 3.1
REIR B7 TTEH
Gasoline liters 69,706.0 180.1
U g
Water Water m3 4,283.0 1M1
s K ST K
Paper Paper Kg 3,296.4 8.5
i ok NF

&4 Intensity was calculated by dividing the average number of

employees of the Group in FY2018

Table 3 Total workforce by gender and age
group in FY2018

Unit: number of employees

(1)

B1/E 2 ) BRI 2 B 14 2 120181
T E AT -

R= 20188 F 1M B M F e AH B 5
METHH

By age group

BN BIAK FHe4
Aged Aged Aged Aged
below 30 31-40 41-50 50 & above Total
Gender 4 5l 30T 31-405% 41-50%% 508 M £ @st
Male 3 53 103 73 43 272
Female z 41 66 26 8 141
Total st 94 169 99 51 413
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Table 4 Employee turnover rate by gender and R 2018 FIRMBIMF R D BN
age group in FY2018 EERKLE
Unit: number of employees By age group
BN BIAH Fird
Aged Aged Aged Aged
below 30 31-40 41-50 50 & above Total

Gender B 308 A T 31-40%% 41-505% 505% M £ Mt
Male E: 6 4 0 7 17
Employee BIBB X 1.6% 1.0% 0.0% 1.8% 4.4%

turnover rate* (E2Ltt)

(in %)
Female z 7 6 8 1 22
Employee SETHBE 1.8% 1.6% 2.1% 0.3% 5.7%

turnover rate* (B 2Lt)

(in %)
Total Mt 13 10 8 8 39
Total employee # 8 TERX* 3.4% 2.6% 2.1% 2.1% 10.1%

turnover rate* (H2Lt)

(in %)
* Turnover rate = the number of reqular employees voluntarily L BB E=IFEES G BFENEE &

resigned = annual average workforce of the Group EEFFFHETAE
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To the Members of Shougang Concord International
Enterprises Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “"Group”) set out on pages 214 to

378, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended;
o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the

year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

H EREBLEXBRATDKRE
(REEZMELZ HERAA])

=R
EMEETTHNAR
BREREEERAR ([BEQF]) REWE

ANARI([EEE])HINE21485 F378H 4R
A BHRE BF:

. MN2018F 12 A31B N EA T KM R

x
. BERALTENGAREREE:
° %Z?:g Jtﬁzrﬂ’jﬁ'*“/\ 7/%%2%,

. REMBHmERME BRI2EHEE
BE-

EMWER

BFIRD ZEFHRAVBRRERERT LS

MAgEME (BEMBREER) AEMS
B RERT SE£BEMN2018F12A31HME
EUBRAREBEZBLEFEZERAME
ZRRGEReERE WEEBREL (BAHE
By ZARkE-



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Impairment assessment of investment in an associate —
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang
Resources”)

o Classification of and impairment assessment of
investment in an associate — Shougang Concord Century
Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”) in relation to
the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang
Century
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHNE NAEERREET SR

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Resources

R-—EBREQT (BHER) RENBET

Refer to notes 4 and 18(A) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held significant
interests in Shougang Resources, an associate of the
Group which engaged in coking coal mining, production
and sales of coking coal products. The carrying amount
of the investment aggregated to HK$4,821,128,000, of
which HK$1,048,488,000 was goodwill. An impairment
assessment was performed in respect of the investment
in Shougang Resources. In carrying out the impairment
assessment, management calculated the recoverable
amount based on value-in-use calculation, as determined
by the discounted cash flow model. The key assumptions
of the discounted cash flow model included revenue
growth rates, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
the discount rate which required significant management
judgement.

F2HGe M BIRRMEARKMTEE18(A)

M2018F12A31H EBESEFAFEHAR( E5E
M—HEREEERAR CEMBEENBERR) ZERE
HoREZEMESR AB%4,821,128,00050  H A E#E
1,048,488,000t A& BEEEEHREMERZEKE
EHRER S - AMEHREFGHE  TEEREAMERE
RERNETZFEAEBEFEANKESE -BIRRSTRER
ANTERREESTEIEREEBH B 2 WAL RR .
KB ERER ERERMBFE-

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of the investment in this associate included:

- Evaluating the appropriateness of management'’s
model used in the value-in-use calculation
and assessing the accuracy of mathematical
calculations used in the model;

- Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key assumptions, which
included revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rate, gross margin and discount rate based on
our knowledge of the business and the industry
and taking into account Shougang Resources’
future operating plans. This included comparing
(i) the revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rate and gross margin to industry trends and
Shougang Resources’ historical performance
and (ii) the cost of capital used for Shougang
Resources to the discount rates of comparable
companies in the industry;

BPILR ML ARRENREFERRNEF B

= AEEREENEREEFETMERARANEE
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHNE DAL ERREET SR

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Resources (continued)

R-—EBREQT (EHER) RENBER M (£)

Based on the result of the impairment assessment
conducted by management of the Group, no provision for
impairment was necessary as at 31 December 2018.

We focused on this area because the carrying amount of
the investment in Shougang Resources was significant
to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
judgement and assumptions applied to the impairment
assessment in calculating the recoverable amount based
on the discounted cash flow model were critical.

A BEEEEHEEFLREFTGEOER  K2018F12
A31BEFEHRERE-

BAFIRETEIIERNREHERRE ZRAESES
MEBEAMEBEKR UL RRBEHRREREBEAFE
AU B 5 RR B A AR E AP B H BT R B T E A

- Comparing the current year's actual results
with the prior year's forecast to assess the
reasonableness of management'’s forecasting;

- Reconciling the data input in the impairment
assessment to supporting evidence such as
budgets approved by the Board; and

- Evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis
on the key assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow model to understand the impact
of reasonable changes in assumptions on the
estimated recoverable amounts.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
key assumptions and estimates made by management
were supported by the available evidence.

S BAFEEREGESR F—FENRAETLER.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHNE NAEERREET SR

HE

Classification of and impairment assessment of investment in an associate — Shougang Century in relation
to the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang Century

BEXEEHEHER-HBREQAT (EREE]) REN D BRAEENH

(i)

0]

Classification of investment in an associate —
Shougang Century

Refer to notes 4 and 18(A) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held an
interest in Shougang Century, an associate of the
Group which engaged in production and sales of
steel cords and sawing wires for automotive tires
with a carrying value of HK$411,197,000.

R-EBELT (EREE)WREDE

ELHRAVBERERW 4R E18(A)

M2018F12A31H: EBE£EEBEEEREBEE( &
EEN—RHREAEREBRESRE MM E
ERHEENBE AR EREEEAEA411,197,000
TT)EVE KRR -

(i)

)

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on the classification of the
investment in Shougang Century included:

- Examining minutes of the board meetings
and written correspondence between
the Group and Shougang Holding to
assess management’s plan and intention
for the disposal and planned timing of
obtaining independent shareholders’
approval for the disposal. We confirmed
with management that no letter of intent
nor communication was received from
the independent shareholders who held
voting rights in the General Meeting
regarding their intended decision on the
approval of the disposal,

AR EEEHREREEREN D EFF G
MigF B
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Classification of and impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Century in relation
to the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang Century (continued)

W BEEFEHER-BEHELEARN(EREEZHDRENDIERBENME (&)
(i) Classification of investment in an associate — (i) Our procedures in relation to management’s

Shougang Century (continued)

On 21 November 2018, the Group announced that
it had entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Shougang Holding, the controlling holding
company of the Company, pursuant to which the
Company had conditionally agreed to sell, and
Shougang Holding had conditionally agreed to
purchase, the entire equity interest in Shougang
Century held by the Company at a consideration of
approximately HK$205,997,000.

According to HKFRS 5, non-current assets and
disposal groups should be classified as held-for-sale
if their carrying value will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. One of the conditions that must be
satisfied for classification as held-for-sale is that the
sale is highly probable. In addition, assets held-for-
sale should be measured at the lower of carrying
value and estimated fair value less costs to sell.

() R-EBHEQ (EREEFE)HWRESE (#F)

EEEEMECE HARRF

R2018F 118218 -
ZERATEMERITIVEE G Bt BAQ
RIEERHERELE mMEWZREe B KGR EZRE
BE BERAAMBAREBREENZIRE REY
A7 #205,997,0007T °

REES B RS ERESY - WHBEAEEERE
1852 5 BB B KB IR B A
RHEAAES BARERE D BRRERE Y
AR 0 H o TR A P B SRR 4 o UL
BESEAEEREEAR ST ATEREBER
REOBIEHE -

assessment on the classification of the
investment in Shougang Century included:
(continued)

- Obtaining representation from
management on their assessment on the
likelihood of completing the planned
disposal transaction and the intention
letter from management of the plan to
continue to hold the investment and to
recover the carrying value of investment
through continuing use if the planned
disposal transaction did not go through.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
key judgement made by management was supported by
the available evidence.

(i) PR EREHRNEREEREN D BT MHHER
MIEFF B (&)
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE EMHNE NAEERREET SR

Classification of and impairment assessment of investment in an associate — Shougang Century in relation
to the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang Century (continued)

R BESEEBHER-BBREQAR((BEREAGE)RENSERBENMG (F)

(i) Classification of investment in an associate —
Shougang Century (continued)

Given the disposal is subject to the approval of
independent shareholders at a general meeting
(the “General Meeting”) and the approval is not
able to be ascertained or determined to be highly
probable up to the report date, management
determined that the criteria of HKFRS 5 were
not met, as a result, the investment in Shougang
Century as at 31 December 2018, had not been
reclassified as an asset held-for-sale. Had the
investment in Shougang Century been regarded
as held-for-sale as at 31 December 2018, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$205,200,000
would have been recognised.

We focused on this area since significant
judgement was made by management in the
classification of the investment in Shougang
Century, specifically whether the requirements
of HKFRS 5 had been met. In addition, had
the requirements of HKFRS 5 been met, the
reclassification and impairment losses involved in
the planned disposal transaction would have had
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

0] R-EBELAR (EREE)WREDE (&)
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Classification of and impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Century in relation
to the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang Century (continued)

HE

BEfEMAHER -BABREQAR (EREE) REND BRAENRE (&)

(ii)

(ii)

Impairment assessment of investment in an
associate — Shougang Century in relation to
the Group’s planned disposal of interest in
Shougang Century

The Group has a plan for disposal of its investment
in Shougang Century and in accordance with the
requirements of HKAS 36, an impairment test is
required for non-current assets before classification
as assets held-for-sale since a plan of disposal is an
internal impairment indicator. In carrying out the
impairment assessment, management calculated
the recoverable amounts based on value-in-use
calculation as determined by the discounted cash
flow model. The key assumptions of the discounted
cash flow model including revenue growth rates,
terminal growth rate, gross margin, discount
rate and the probability of completion of the
planned disposal required significant management
judgement.

B BERE:ELER-BHELFT(ERE
£ ]) s 898 B FF1E

SEASLEEREREFEZRE REFES
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#ERIE3 6%2%* HER 8D — BRI ER
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Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁ‘}ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁéiﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁf%‘ifﬁ?r%ﬁ%é Ha
OB - FRACREEANTIEBRREBERAL
R OKEREXR -EMNE PBFRXREREFELE
ZERRERELEREEEH -

= g

(if)

(if)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the investment in Shougang
Century included:

- Evaluating the appropriateness of
management’s model used in the value-
in-use calculation and assessing the
accuracy of mathematical calculations
used in the model;

- Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key assumptions,
which included revenue growth rates,
terminal growth rate, gross margin,
discount rate and probability of
completion of the planned disposal based
on our knowledge of the business and
the industry and taking into account
Shougang Century’s future operating
plans. This included comparing (i) the
revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rate and gross margin to industry trends
and Shougang Century’s historical
performance; (ii) the cost of capital used
for Shougang Century to the discount
rates of comparable companies in the
industry; and (iii) our work performed in
respect of the probability of completion
of the planned disposal as included in
part (i) above;

B EREEER EREEREMNBEERR
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Classification of and impairment assessment of investment in an associate — Shougang Century in relation
to the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang Century (continued)

R BESESHHER-HBEQAR (BERES)RENIERBAERME (&)

(ii)

(ii)

Impairment assessment of investment in an
associate — Shougang Century in relation to
the Group’s planned disposal of interest in
Shougang Century (continued)

Based on the result of the impairment assessment
conducted by management of the Group, no
provision for impairment was necessary as at 31
December 2018.

We focused on this area because the carrying
amount of the investment in Shougang Century
was significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Further, the judgement and
assumptions applied to the impairment assessment
in calculating the recoverable amount based on the
discounted cash flows model were critical.

BF BEE:EHER-BHELT([ERE
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(if)
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the investment in Shougang
Century included: (continued)

- Comparing the current year actual results
with the prior year forecast to assess
the reasonableness of management’s
forecasting;
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Classification of and impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Century in relation
to the Group’s planned disposal of interest in Shougang Century (continued)

R BESESHHER-HBEQR (BERES)RENIERBAERME (£)

(ii) Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the investment in Shougang
Century included: (continued)

- Reconciling the data input in the
impairment assessment to supporting
evidence such as budgets approved by the
Board; and

- Evaluating management’s sensitivity
analysis on the key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow model to
understand the impact of reasonably
possible changes in assumptions on the
estimated recoverable amounts.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
key assumptions and estimates made by management
were supported by the available evidence.
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WiZF B (&)

= R ORE R (4 Y BRI A R RS R (40
ExeAENBEE)ETHEL X

= MR RERERAMAEEEHTE
BEROSFEMES T AEBRBRROEGET]
EREHHEFTROSEOTE-

REMATZEF AMARSEEBFLNBERER
B RE TREEBN RS-




Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT R &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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REEEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz BETT BT
Revenue WA 5 1,676,296 3,816,145
Cost of sales HER AR 8 (1,515,759) (3,807,035)
Gross profit ER 160,537 9,110
Other income Hiplg A 6 36,688 6,501
Other gains, net H Az %5 7 16,104 491
Reversal of provision/(provision) FEU BR TR B B 1
for impairment losses for trade receivables Bl&,/ (BE) 20 13,898 (25,227)
Net gains/(losses) related to BEBERARA D2k
commodity contracts (B8 78 22 44,713 (122,461)
Administrative expenses THXH 8 (178,075) (42,261)
Operating profit/(loss) RERAN (BE) 93,865 (173,847)
Finance costs B IS AAR 10 (5,699) (17,392)
Share of results of associates BRME DR CEE 275,363 248,525
Share of result of a joint venture BEEEARIZEE 3,253 =
Profit before income tax BRATBHANER 366,782 57,286
Income tax expense ML 11 (10,011) =
Profit for the year FERF 356,771 57,286
Profit is attributable to: IR AL FEMRESR
Owners of the Company R=E 353,097 57,286
Non-controlling interests RS 3,674 -
356,771 57,286
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
lio=3 BYETT BEFT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Htr2m (B8) KE
Items that maybe subsequently reclassified HHEAREEEN TR
to profit or loss: BB
Share of exchange differences of BhmE ARG
associates arising on translations TEEECIERZ (167,943) 176,760
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ T E BN ERELZELZH
foreign operations (29,613) =
Items that will not be reclassified BTEEF A EE R
to profit or loss: BH :
Share of exchange differences of WS
associates arising on translations MEEEZERER - 38,358
Share of fair value gain on investment Bh-RBBERAMETR
in equity instruments designated BAFEFAELMZERE
as at fair value through other comprehensive ~ ZBATA#RE 7
income of an associate NTERE 6,730 42,813
Other comprehensive (losses)/income FEEMwZE (FR) S
for the year (190,826) 257,931
Total comprehensive income for the year FEzAkK=EER 165,945 315,217
Total comprehensive income/(losses) RTATEGz2ENE
attributable to: (B8 as:
Owners of the Company R® 169,634 315,217
Non-controlling interests kiR (3.689) -
165,945 315,217
Earnings per share BREF
~ Basic and diluted (HK cents) —ERREE (BI) 1.75 0.56
12 1.75 0.56

The notes on pages 222 to 378 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F202E3BAZMERAFEAEMBHRR 2B

B in o

215



216

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRLGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 R
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As at 31 December 2018 /2018512 A318

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
W&t BEFT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER e 13 8,066 4,850
Investment properties REME 4 151,702 6,900
Investments in associates REFE AT ZIRE 18(a) 5,232,325 5,073,079
Investment in a joint venture REERAIZRE 18(b) 80,216 81,299
Financial assets at fair value through BATHEFAERZ
profit or loss — non-current CRMEE-ERH 19 195,416 121,596
Assets relating to commodity contracts BFlRRmalticBE
~ non-current —ERE 22 150,193 151,244
Deferred income tax assets EIRMEHEE 28 - 35,212
Other non-current assets HipIERBEE 15 246,280 208,495
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 6,064,198 5,682,675
Current assets RBEE
Trade and bills receivables T PES 20 117,231 823,704
Prepayments, deposits and BRFE Re Rk
other receivables H e Wi IE 20 63,893 74,602
Amounts due from related companies ERl ) NGs S 21 19 398
Amounts due from associates f&TH & DR A 21 241 8
Financial assets at fair value through BRFEFABREL
profit or loss — current CREE-RD 19 145,316 114,676
Assets relating to commodity contracts BFlAmmatcEE
— current -nE 22 3,425 =
Restricted bank deposits X RITE R 23 2,036 618
Time deposits with original maturity REBAAE=EANU LR
over three months THER 24 = 100,000
Bank balances and cash RITEERE® 24 3,034,026 1,389,628
Total current assets REBEEHLE 3,366,187 2,503,634
Total assets BEE 9,430,385 8,186,309
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves RA R &1E
Share capital &N 25 8,830,429 7,349,545
Reserves =4 135,828 (324,756)
Capital and reserves attributable to owners [ 3R 15 R4 & i 5
of the Company 8,966,257 7,024,789
Non-controlling interests iR 29,199 218,863
Total equity mER 8,995,456 7,243,652

The notes on pages 222 to 378 are an integral part of these 5222Z378B 2 ARG AETBERERZE

consolidated financial statements
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As at 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz BETTT BEF T
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMBHARE 28 29,633 25,174
Other non-current liabilities HithERBEE 1,139 =
Total non-current liabilities FrREBEEAHE 30,772 25,174
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables ENERREE 26 61,379 569,191
Other payables, provision and accrued liabilities £ b & 3008 ~ B 5 &
B EE 26 74,720 95,895
Contract Liabilities EHERE 8,047 =
Liabilities relating to commodity contracts EHBEmezEE 22 - 91,989
Tax payable FERHIE 156,868 160,408
Borrowings EEA 27 103,143 =
Total current liabilities TBEEAE 404,157 917,483
Total liabilities FR=L 434,929 942,657
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 9,430,385 8,186,309

The consolidated financial statements on pages 214 to 378

were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019

and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Tianyang
ji- PN
Director

EF

BN E214E378B 2R A UM TEHR AN 201943

H6AEE=RgHE YHREAREZ-

Liang Hengyi

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=2018512A31H It FE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RREME
Capital Share Security Non-
Share  contribution Exchange option investment Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
AR TERE  EARE BRERE IFREER  RHER AE FEERER Ch

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
BETT  AMTT  EETE  ERTT  ERTn  EETT BRI EETT BRI

Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 268 5345183 4,848,033 38,634 289,560 (720,614)  (5,095,586) 4,705,210 - 4705210
Comprehensive income 2E K
Profit for the year FR A S - - - - 57,286 57,286 - 57,286
Share of other comprehensive ~ EHEBE AR EMEE

income of associates Wz - - 215,118 - 42,813 - 257,931 - 257,931
Total comprehensive income £ R 2 K4 H

for the year - - 215,118 - 42,813 57,286 315,217 - 315,217

Ordinary shares issued (Note 25) BE{TERR
(Bst2s) 2,015,527 - - - - - 2,015,527 - 2,015,527
Transaction costs attributable to  RE/TH ZRM
issue of new ordinary shares EEZRBRE

(Note 25) (H#25) (11,165) = = = = = (11,165) = (11,165)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KERERA
(Note 30) (Hi30) - - - - - = = 218,863 218,863

At 31 December 2017 R2017128318 7,349,545 4,848,033 253,752 289,560 (677,801)  (5,038,300) 7,024,789 218,863 7,243,652
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RRERE
Capital Share Security Non-
Share contribution  Exchange option investment Accumulated Other controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests Total
RE&  EERE ERRE BRERE IHRERE RAEE  HERSE it FERER At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000
E¥Fr  EEFL  BETr EMTr EETn BEFr BRTn EBEFn ERTn BEFx
Balance at 1 January 2018 201851 A1B 25 7,349,545 4,848,033 253,752 289,560 (677,801)  (5,038,300) - 7,024,789 218,863 7,243,652
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profit for the year EEEH = = = = - 353,007 - 353,097 3670 356,771
Share of other comprehensive B ENAE2E
(loss)/income of associates (BB) /s - - (167,943) - 6,730 - - (161213) - (161,213
Exchange differences arising on  FTHEAZERZE
translation - - (22,250) - - - - (22,250) (7,363) (39,613)
Total comprehensive (loss))  ER2ME (F8)/
income g
for the year - - (190,193) - 6,730 353,097 - 169,634 (3,689) 165,945
Ordinary shares issued (Note 25) BE{TERIE (#:225) 1,488,111 - - - - - - 1,488,111 - 1,488,111
Transaction costs attributable ~ EETHEBRELZ
to issue of new ordinary RPBAE(Hit25)
shares (Note 25) (7.227) - - - - - - (7,227) - (7,227)
Transactions with non-controlling 23R EX 2% 5
interests (Note 31) (H#31) = = = = = = (41,426) (41,426)  (185,975)  (227,401)
Reclassification of share option BREGREEN2EZE
reserve to accumulated losses Rt &R - - - (289,560) - 289,560 = - - =
Realisation of gain from disposal —EEAAHLERA
of FVOCI to an associate TEHALB2ERE
ZWHER = = = = = 332,376 = 332,376 - 332,376
Transfer to statutory reserve  BRZEZT R E
(Note () (Bi) - - - - - (1,721) 1,721 - - -
At 31 December 2018 ®2018%12A31A 8,830,429 4,848,033 63,559 - (671,071)  (4,064,988) (39,705) 8,966,257 29,199 8,995,456
Note (i): HaEd) -

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”, for the purpose of this report
shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China and Taiwan) to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective
statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC company is
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory reserves,
upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company
may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory
surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand the
company’s production operations, or to increase the capital of the company.

The notes on pages 222 to 378 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements

HEDEEERBREPEARKNE ([FE] AR
EME TREFE FEARANMBRMEHTHRE
HE)EMZARRE B EERERERT2 | T
MOUREAEFEREZ RFBREZ) T RO kE M T #
@A AR BIERAENRRE TAERES - AZE
ERFESVRFINREMRL - FERRARDIKEFE
2B RN AREERFEREFEN210% &
NAVEERSFEENENBERETIMERZ50%HE -
AAFLLER - A ERFRESENRERB AR ZER
BARRMAEEZERIENRAZEAR-

F222H 2 F378A M A RAGEE M B HREK
ZEEHMD-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
023 BYETT BEFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2RERE
Net cash generated from/(used) in operations %< EF1§,/ (FTA)
REeFR 33 131,156 (219,362)
Interest expense FEHY (1,887) (17,392)
Income tax paid BRER (9,222) =
Purchase of tax certificates BERNS - (48,343)
Net cash generated from/(used in) gEFEBRE/ (A2
operating activities BEFE 120,047 (285,097)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBZHERE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of WEmE AR
cash acquired MEEBRSERS 30 5,481 (268,721)
Amounts due from associates JIE U B 2 1\ B FUIE (233) 18
Dividends received from associates BB g R 2 RE 18 319,117 87,838
Interest received BB 36,559 6,501
Repayment from related companies REMB AR ZEK 379 456
Advance to related companies BYBB AR 220 - (398)
Withdrawal of/(placement of) time deposits with 251,/ (72 ) R 41 5
original maturity over three months AZMANEHNTEHER 100,000 (100,000)
Placement of pledged bank deposits EHEEMETER - (10,000)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREERRITEX - 33,073
Placement of restricted bank deposits FEHEBHIETER (2,036) (45,175)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REZBHRITHER 618 44,557
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEREE 13 (3,776) (366)
Purchase of investment properties EEREME 14 (137,146) -
Addition of financial assets at fair value RERANTEFAERZ
through profit or loss TREE (84,291) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERRAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEELFEFE 37,604 =
Purchase of other non-current assets BEHMERHEE 15 (4,985) =
Settlement of liabilities relating rHEMERENZEE
to commodity contracts 22 (49,650) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBHRE/ (A2
investing activities REBHE 217,641 (252,217)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
023 BYETT BEFT
Cash flows from financing activities METBzRERE

Repayment of borrowings EBEER (1,949,104) (4,105,090)
Proceeds from borrowings BRAMERIE 2,048,435 3,483,936
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BOLRER MBHIEFE 2580 1,218,708 2,004,362
Net cash generated from financing activities & EH B2 REFHE 1,318,039 1,383,208
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BERBESEWEMNFE 1,655,727 845,894

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F R RREEED
of the year 1,389,628 537,488
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREE R (11,329) 6,246
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERXZBEEREELZEY 3,034,026 1,389,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE W BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s controlling shareholder is Shougang Holding
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holding”), which
together with its subsidiaries, held approximately 33%
equity interest in the Company as at 31 December
2018, and the ultimate and immediate holding company
of Shougang Holding is Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a
company established in the PRC. Shougang Group Co.,
Ltd., together with its associates (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange) other than the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), will hereinafter
be referred to as the “Shougang Group”. Together
with the 19% equity interest in the Company held
by Shougang Group's subsidiary, Beijing Shougang
Fund Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Fund”), the total equity
interest in the Company held by Shougang Group is
approximately 52%. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in Corporate Information of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are set out in
notes 17 and 18.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been
reviewed by the audit committee of the Company and
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2019.

—RER

KRB TREBFMEILZERRAA
HROHEBBHERXSHMBRAF ([H
R EM-ARBZEBRBRRAE
Wi (BB ARAR ([EHMER])
(ER2018F12A31HEREK B QA
HEBEZARAILB3%ZBE) TH
IR 2 R R EEER AR AERE
Rz EMEBRERAR -BMEERS
RAREREBEA (MBRAESL
MHRAFAEER) (ARRARENEBAF
(A [REE]) RN BEETXEH
BAEEEEE] - EREME BB
AR REHESERAA([EHE
€ BARRA%MIE & iMEBE
BARRNABZBIRENRBS52% - RAFZ
MR EE R EEE EDE 2 AN F
WMARNAERPHEE-

ARFAA—RREERAT - ARAE
SHEAR BEAARAZAANE

DEBEAMMFE17R18 -

BRIESHHRA  TAIRGE M EHRE A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, assets and liabilities relating to
commodity contracts and financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

2

ERETHHEREE

ARGV BHRRFEAZ T ESS
BRHEN T FRIFEXEHRA A
ERREMZINZHBFERERE
==

21 wRBEXE

ARRZERE BRI IIRIZAA
BERZBERBUBRELENRE
ABRBED (56228 ) 2 BRIR
B AR AP BRRTIRIBE LK
RERE ARBRAFEARZ
BREVE ARABMANZEE
LRBBERRAFEFABREZE
MEEMBBEZEMEHLER -

RENTEBEMBREER 2B
BHRATEERE THERSG
HNEREREECERERALAEHE
SR BRZBREPITERHAE
SESIERLL - EASIER K 3wl
B MR BEREBE
REBERMAET 28I - £ E4R
WEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1
(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2018:

° HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

. HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
. Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions —
Amendments to HKFRS 2

o Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycle

° Transfers to Investment Property -
Amendments to HKAS 40

o Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Group had to change its accounting policies
and make certain retrospective adjustments
following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15.
Most of the other amendments listed above did
not have any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

2

ERETHBERBE (&)

2.1
2.1.1
@)

mBERE (&)
B HREBRKE
KEE . %ZWZ% DT&Z« {§ET+ Q‘J

UWTERAZETEEAERR
2018F 1 A1k H &M 2 8t
BFEEERER:

. BB RS ERF5
(2014F )M T A

. BEMBHRELENES
F-KEEPA KA

. AR R S E) DR K
FAAERAMBMEERE
2’5)}72{/ nT

. 2014 2016 A 2
gk

. BRRENE-TAE
HRIEA05% 2 BFT

. RRBE22RINERZ RTA
NHRE

REBERRNE BB RELE
RIS R BRI S REERE
1558 2 B B E ST HER W 1EH
ETERERAE M KASHA
AT H AT R 2 S BI B A
Mg BHTEHEAMSHARR
HMEEEATE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(E)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 EiBREBHRTE (&)
(continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet (b) BB B R ERR 2 FTE] R HE
effective R BBV BmEER

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting

HTHAI Gt R BR8N
B F
HAMEI 98 Bl 1T M AR B IR R

M2018E12A31A WS

periods and have not been early adopted by the B e
Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT3 B#HH
ZEBAHZ
S HBER
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
FRM RS ERF 1657 HE 201951 A1 H
HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
FE (BRMERERE FRSTEIE 2 T HEE 1t 201951 H1H

ZE®) —BEFE23N
Amendment to HKAS 19

EB G ERFE195% BT

Amendment to HKFRS 9

BB B & 2R
LI ZIEFT
HKFRS 17

FRMBHREENFE17R

Employee Benefits
BE=T
Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation
BEAMEZRAERESH

Insurance Contract

R &4

1 January 2019
201951 H1H
1 January 2019

20191 H18

1 January 2022
20221 H18
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHBEHME (£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 EiBREBHRTE (&)
(continued)
(b)  New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet (b) BB E R R EB R B

effective (continued)

RIEBMBHREER (&)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT3 B#8H
ZERAEZ
S HBER

Amendments to HKFRS 3

ERMBREEREIR2E

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

ER S EAB IR R
BB ERES R
EH)

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB ERE28 2 EE]

Annual Improvement Project

FESEIRR

Amendments to HKFRS 10

BREW RS ER
F1057 2 EFT

Definition of Business
XBHER

Definition of Material

BEAMHER

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

REERR REERAIZKRE

Annual Improvements 2015 — 2017 Cycle

2015F E201 76 A 2 F B

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BREEHABRERNRHEERT ZHM
BEHEHKRA

1 January 2020
202051 A1H
1 January 2020

2020F1H1H

1 January 2019
201951 H1H
1 January 2019
201951 A 1H
To be determined

N

FIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group's assessment of the impact of these
new standards and interpretations is set out
below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on the
statement of financial position by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect the accounting for the
Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$145,860,000.

2

BERETHESE (B)
21 mEEE(F)
211 BHBREEBHRNE (4)

(b)

ERME R R ER 5] R
FERBUBmERER (&)
AEBEHZERT LA LR
FEZAERHIET

BB MELERNE1REE
EAEMBRELER16KERN
2016F 1AM - HAF B ERB KX
5 M 41 B AR AR ER
RER WIhHARGEEHSE
BERECENERHBER- B
ETER —EHAE (EABEE
BEEWEN EXNHe2H
BEATHER -BE—MHINMER
REPREEEHAE-

A2 @RS TEAIES
o

ZEAKZEAREEEHEN
S RE-NBEEHY AEH
Z AR EME AR RABE
145,860,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group has not yet assessed the adjustments,
if any, are necessary for example because of the
change in the definition of the lease term and
the different treatment of variable lease payments
and of extension and termination options. It is
therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will
have to be recognised on adoption of the new
standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows
going forward.

This new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The
Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
for property leases will be measured on transition
as if the new rules had always been applied.
All other right-of-use assets will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).

There are no other standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2 EZREHBERBE(£)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

mREE (&)
B HEEERKE (&)

E MM 1B R AR #rR] R & e
RIEBMEHELER (&)

ARV B REEAFE15REE
(%)
AEELTEHZLEFHE (WM
B)ELFH mRERZ EE
HERASEEENKEEHENE
BB FREE - B &
REEET ROER A FN T 2 Al By 0 78
ERzEREEENEERGS
BMEEBAR A EAEE Y
Bam M RKEZRENR-

ZETETE R R2019F1A1H
R ERIBNRFEE ARG E
T AEBEKNR2019F1A1H
(BRa&fl B4 B H3) R E A ;2 &
Bl o 7N 52 B ik E AR ML iROE % -
BrEgsya KR —F 2
BB -MEREZFRAREE
BN BEREE  BNFEL—
BEWER-FTEEMEREEE
BIERAENEEaESE=
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R#ETRAE) -

BERARENEERHERNE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
Impact of adoption on financial statements —

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New
HKFRSs")

Adoption of HKFRS 9

The Group had early adopted HKFRS 9 (version
issued in 2010) in 2012. A revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
(a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income”
("FVOCI”) measurement category for certain debt
instruments.

In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, the revised version of HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (“HKAS 39"). The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

©

EEETHERE (&)
21 HmBEE(Z)
2.1.1 B BREERFE (&)

AN R 0 R I BOY e

VR T 9 2 B 51555 (4R [
SRS L) 2
R2RE

KRB B Y15 E ERIE R

REBR2012FREHNE S
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@]

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on financial statements —
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New
HKFRSs") (continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

The revised version of HKFRS 9 introduced
a 'fair value through other comprehensive
income’ measurement category for particular
debt instruments. The introduction of this
measurement category has no impact on the
Group’'s consolidated financial statements
as the Group did not hold any of these debt
instructments as at 1 January 2018 or 31

December 2018.

The adoption of the revised version of HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The new accounting policies are set
out below. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
comparative figures have not been restated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@]

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on financial statements —
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New
HKFRSs") (continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets that
are subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss
model:

o trade and bills receivables for trading of
iron ore, management and operations of
car parking assets and management of
private funds

o contract assets relating to trading of iron
ore, management and operations of car
parking assets and management of private
finds

. other financial assets at amortised costs
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@]

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on financial statements —
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New
HKFRSs") (continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group revised its impairment methodology
under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of
assets. The impact of the change in impairment
methodology on the Group’s retained earnings
and equity was immaterial.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade and bills receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
and bills receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade and bills receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade and bills receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets. The Group has assessed that adopting
HKFRS 9 would not have a material impact on the
Group’s result of operation and financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@]

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on financial statements —
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New
HKFRSs") (continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets

(continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets
are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, and amounts due from associates,
the Group has assessed the expected credit loss
model apply to these assets as at 1 January 2018
and the change in impairment methodologies has
no impact of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the opening loss allowance is not
restated in this respect.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(@]

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of adoption on financial statements —
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New
HKFRSs") (continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 15

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 from 1
January 2018 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has adopted
the modified retrospective approach and
comparative figures have not been restated.

The effects of the adoption of HKFRS 15 are as
follows:

(a) Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities
Reclassifications were made as at 1 January
2018 to be consistent with the terminology
used under HKFRS 15:

o Contract liabilities for deposit
received recognised in relation to
fund management fee and car
parking activities were previously
presented as other payables.

° Contract assets recognised in
relation to operation activities
were previously presented as other
receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 EZRSTHBERBE(£)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEMBE(E)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 EiBREBHRTE (&)
(continued)

(c) Impact of adoption on financial statements — © T%%%\fﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁf (el &S
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New B EERIZE55% (A [ 5
HKFRSs") (continued) H?%Eﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ— Al ) B i

RIFB(E)
(i) Adoption of HKFRS 15 (continued) (i) RN T S B 75 4R 5 42 BI 381555
(&)

(b)  The impact on the Group's financial (b) BERMNEBHBERE
position by the application of HKFRS 15 as ERFISRZAERNE
compared to HKAS 18 that was previously BEFHEREIgH A&
in effect before the adoption of HKFRS 15 BB R EERES
is as follows: B RS 2RI B 155 M=

menmT
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
5B
BEER B s Al
E18HIREE E1SHIREE
201712HA318 BEHAE  2018F1A1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BEFT
Consolidated statement of 4R A BB REK (k)
financial position (extract)
Contract assets AREE - 37,750 37,750
Other receivables H b & U R 1 37,750 (37,750) -
Contract liabilities EHBE - 38,507 38,507
Other payables Hofth & 1 5118 38,507 (38,507) -
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEZES:HHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE(E)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 EiBREBHRTE (&)
(continued)

(c) Impact of adoption on financial statements — © BB S LB LA
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (collectively, the “New BRI LR SE155% (Fi78 [ 50
HKFRSs") (continued) AT EABMEREER ) LR

R2HE(E)
(i) Adoption of HKFRS 15 (continued) (i) RN T 7S B 75 3 5 22 BI 381555
(%)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 31 December
2018 Reclassification 2018
EHgt EHRBBRE
R E185% ERIE15%
REE REE
2018%12A31H EHSE 2018%F12A31H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Consolidated statement of 4R & BB K (FEk)
financial position (extract)
Contract liabilities EHBEE = 8,047 8,047
Other payables H b fE 1 3R 8,047 (8,047) =

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no material
impact to the Group’s net assets as at
31 December 2017 and the consolidated
results, earnings per share (basic and

diluted) and consolidated statement

of cash flows for the year ended 31

December 2017.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(a)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(b)

(c)

(d)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified

“Joint Arrangements”

as either joint operations or a joint venture. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Company has joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
or joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(d)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Equity accounting (continued)

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in note
2.10.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or joint control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associated company,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisitions of subsidiaries comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

J fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

2 EZRSTHBERBE(£)

2.3

EBE s
PrBEXRBAHERASREEA
oI metBERS TANHE
EE -BENBRARMERL
RERRE:

. PrEmEEZAFE

. HABRBRGZAEE A
EEZAE

. REERITZ It

. IARREBLHEE 2T
MEEHABEZAFE"
K

o« WEARTEERATRE
2 AFE-

EEBAGTAKEAREAIEE
UEmEAEZABERKAREE:
IRAR R IR B 2 R EE
E(RERZAISMERT) - A&k
Bz Z BN EEE AR FENIE
122 B o5 PR A P AR B BB R S8R
BE BREMRAEERE
FEVE AL M 25 o

YR AR BB AN EE AR B S 3K

241



242

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll_\é;\jﬁiﬁipﬁta

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the
. consideration transferred

o amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’'s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

The board of Company has appointed a strategic
steering committee which assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group,
and makes strategic decisions. The steering
committee, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of the
chief executive officer, the chief financial officer

and the manager for corporate planning.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is

Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within other
gains/(losses).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

EESHHERE (&)
26 HNEBE (E)
(i) XEBREE (E)

(iii)

BRFERIMNEG EREEEE
HE -RAAVFEREEMER
FE-BAFEFENEERA
BERNEZRESRIFERREN
—WMoE2Wm-Plan FEREE
kBE (MRAFEFABEZ
BATR) ZBEZHENERN
ERRAFEREZ—#73F
EREE (Mo BREAFEE
AHEmkS 2 BE) 2BE
EZRDIREMEE W R -

@A E

D EHEEIEE AR 2 /E5
XK (EPUEBRERREHEL
B8 2 KB RMBARRIBEIAT
TRABERZNNEE:

. B 25 2 M BRRKA
ZERENBBERZMER
MR B H 2z W E R
=,

. BihzEERRAZ KX
BRYPHEXBE (FRIEL
FHEXRWIFERH HE
AEXZATEZAELN
BoEMBERT WX
ERGACZCEXRRE):
¥4

. FrEdmtEEZER E5
R E A 2 W s A RER

245



246

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBEEGRAR
Annual Report 2018 F R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll_\é;\jﬁiﬁipﬁta

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(iii)

(iv)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(iv)

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-

line method to allocate their cost or revalued

amounts, net of their residual values, over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term
or 4 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in profit or loss as part of other
gain/(losses).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(i)

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note
15. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in “other non-current assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill on acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included in the cost of the investment
in associates or joint ventures. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected
to benefits from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(i)

Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown
at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and amortisation method
for an intangibles asset with finite useful life are
assessed at every period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash generating unit level. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable, if
not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(ii)

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Carpark operating rights 5 to 10 years

Funds management contracts 3 to 10 years

These intangible assets are included in “other
non-current assets” in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss),
and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
(iii)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in revenue or other
gains/(losses) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11
(iv)

(v)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
note 20 for further details.

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 (revised version
issued in 2014) retrospectively, but has elected
not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with
the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

During the year, none of the derivative
instruments has qualified for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Trade and bill receivables

Trade and bill receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Trade and bill
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade and bill receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See note
20 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade and bill receivables and
notes 2.1.2 and 2.11 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEEHE (£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Borrowing 218 EE
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, EBEVSEATFENREEE Y
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings RGN ATER » IR

are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value

of the equity instruments issued.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Borrowing (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EES:HHEME (£&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax 220 EHRIEEFMBH (£Z)

(continued)
Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled.

BRI S8

“%% m¥ﬁﬁf¢ A R E
BRI M ENRZEERESL
E%MWAZI% YR & HR

BEIAREBBZBAG

EIEERE ARG RO R
PR Z BN EHIFHE B R Z
AL WHEE BB R TRIEES
IR T A5 M RBE S 2 TR AR E R
e

AL I 188

BLEFMSHUNBEEIEEERSE
BeHERHERABEESACE
BrER THARE M BRRBEHE
REE - AM WEEREBEA®E
REFBZULHER BT THE
PR T i 3 AE T A5 0 2R B ) 25 1
R—ERXIETEESHEK
ERHMEBER 2R H (XA G
M BERBE BIEEFRF
BATAR - BEFSHUARSE
HAREMBIAB LRBIHE
(RBUE)ETE BB RBBIE
RS EEZRSBELEMER
BEEERER-



262

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

~ e B H% R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that is measured at fair value is
determined by using the tax rates and the tax
bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of these investment
properties.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EES:HHEME (£&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee Benefits 221 EEEF
Retirement benefit obligations BIKEFEF

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme") set up pursuant
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets
of the Pension Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for the
Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Employee Benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

In addition to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Group’s employees in Hong Kong,
the Group is required to contribute to central
pension schemes for certain Group’s employees
in the PRC based on applicable rates of monthly
salary in accordance with government regulations.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specific contributions.

Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share
based compensation plans, which the entity
receive services from employees as compensation
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The
fair value of options granted under the Group
is recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

- including any market performance
conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price)

- excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period), and

- including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (eg the requirement for
employees to save or holdings shares for a
specific period of time).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The employee option plan is administered by
the Group. When the options are exercised, the
Group transfers the appropriate number of shares
to employee. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
directly to equity.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised

for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24
(i)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods - iron ore

The Group purchases and sells iron ore in the
market. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the
customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer,
and either the customer has accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods - iron ore (continued)

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term of 90 to 180 days, which is
consistent with market practice.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Fund management services income

Fund management segment provides fund
management service to investment funds.
Revenue from management fees are recognised
on a time-proportion basis with reference to
the net asset value of the investment funds
and managed accounts. Performance fees are
recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the
relevant performance period and it is determined
that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the
relevant basis of calculation for the investment
funds and managed accounts.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

2.25
(i)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Investment income

Investment income includes net gains/losses on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Refer to note 2.11 for the recognition policy.

Carpark income

Refer to note 2.26 for the recognition policy.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25
(i)

2.26

Earnings per share (continued)
Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account the after income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
inception at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short-term and long-term payables. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to the profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Leases (continued)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Group as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based
on their nature.

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) and at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Dividends are
recognised as other income in profit or loss when
the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment.
In this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if
it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested

for impairment as a consequence.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Company manages its financial risks in
accordance with guidelines laid down by its Board
of Directors. The Finance Department identifies
and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation
within the Group to cope with overall risk
management, as well as specific areas, such as
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. It is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to Hong Kong dollar, United States
dollar (“US$"”) and Chinese Renminbi
("RMB") denominated transactions.
Foreign exchange risk arises where future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in currency
that is not the Company’s functional
currency.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Several subsidiaries of the Company have
foreign currency sales and purchases.
Certain trade receivables, amounts due
from related companies, amounts due
from associates, bank balances, trade
payables and borrowings of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% with all
other variables held constant, there will be
no significant impact on the post tax profit
of the Group (2017: Same).

Interest rate risk

The Group holds interest bearing assets
and liabilities including cash at banks,
certain bank deposits, borrowings and
wealth management products. The Group
is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balance and borrowings.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, if interest
rates on cash held at banks had been 25
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, there will be no
significant impact on the post tax profit of
the Group (2017: Same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates
on bank borrowings had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, there will be no significant
impact on the post tax profit of the Group.

The Group has no exposure to interest
rate risk on bank borrowings as at
31 December 2017 as there was no
borrowings as at 31 December 2017.

Other market risks

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk and commodity prices risk through its
commodity contracts to purchase iron ore
as detailed in note 22.

The Group is required to estimate the fair
value of commodity contracts to purchase
iron ore at the end of the reporting
period with change in fair value to be
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

The fair value adjustment will be mainly
affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the
forecasted Platts Iron Ore Price, the
forecasted marketing commission saving,
the forecasted annual production of the
mines, the lives of mine and the discount
rate.
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Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(iv) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks
and financial institutions, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
deposits and other receivables,
as credit exposures to trading customers,
including outstanding receivables.

(i) Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition,
Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade
debt and other receivable at the
end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment
loss is made for irrecoverable
In this regard,
directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.
Besides, the Group has reduced
credit risk on trade receivables by
requesting trade deposits to be
made or settlement by bank bills
before delivery, especially in the
trading business. The Group mainly
deals with companies with a good
repayment record and reputation
and also has policies in place to
assess the credit worthiness of

amounts.

customers.

3

BEERERE (&)
31 H¥RBEZR(Z)
SRR (&)

(iv)

EERR
SEREM KA RTREM
CREBER EATFE
SABRBECZERMEE &
EREMEBWRIERE S
BREZEERR (BIEX
BEEWGIE) -

() [\ 38

BiEEEERBR
ERE - AEEE
BEEZk—#4
ABBEHEIE
ERE - FEHEI
MEME R
LA T AR B BN R 3 45
He Uk [a] 788 HA oK+ 2
RN N A=
S HN R A
Ee®EigEER
B oEEKEMIE
Wk 2z ] U Bl &
B AR B A
bl & iR A
B2 REEE -’
 EERAE &
EEzEERKRE
K& R A o bt Sh
AEBERFF
(HRIRE %K)
RERMNATEAE S
BREXABITERE
*F uﬁﬁﬁw
RZEER
$%l$%£iﬁ
RiFERLHERA
BEYNREITR
S UHEFHE
FEEEZHXK-



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 &3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n_\%zﬂsz%ﬁimqﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

The Group has limited credit risk on
liquid funds as the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions
which are reputable and/or with
high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

Credit risk mainly arises from trade
and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the top
five debtors and the largest debtor
accounted for approximately 78%
(2017: 74%) and 27% (2017: 24%)
of the Group’s trade receivables
balance, respectively. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history.
The Group normally conducts
credit checks on new customers
and requires them to pay a deposit
of certain percentage of the sales
amount, or to provide the Group
with a letter of credit when placing
orders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9,
the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivable carried at amortised cost
at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group's past experience in
collection of trade receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9,
the Group’s credit risk assessment
of these trade receivables carried
at amortised cost also takes
into account forward looking
information, such as general
economy measure and changes
in macroeconomic indicators, to
estimate lifetime expected credit
losses.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

The Group applies the simplified
approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade receivables. The Group
recognised lifetime expected credit
loss for trade receivables carried
at amortised cost based on either
individually customers who are long
overdue with significant amounts or
known insolvencies or non-response
to collection activities, or collectively
assessing them for likelihood
of recovery based on ageing of
the balances with similar risk
characteristics taking into account
the forward looking information.

On that basis, the loss allowance as
at 31 December 2018 and 1 January
2018 (on adoption of revised
version of HKFRS 9) was determined
as follows for trade receivables:
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BERRER (£)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BBEBER (&)
Market risk (continued) mEEEE ()
(iv)  Credit risk (continued) (iv) ZERR (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (ii) TRIEERE
(continued) (%)
Lifetime Gross Lifetime
expected carrying expected Net carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
RERAY
As at 31 December 2018 20185128318 REBHERE BKEE FEER REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
% BEFIT BEFIT BEFIL
Individual assessment {8 B 5F {4 100% 13,577 (13,577) =
Collective assessment BB 74
0 - 30 days 0%£30H 0.8% 117,231 - 117,231
31 - 60 days 31608 2.6% - - -
61 -90 days 61290H 3.5% - - -
91 - 180 days 91£180H 4.21% - - -
181 - 365 days 181%365H 50% - - -
Over 365 days 3658 M £ 100% - - -
130,808 (13,577) 117,231
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

As at 1 January 2018 7A2018%F1A1A

3 BEERER (&)
31 H¥ERBEZ(Z)
HE AR ()

vy EERR (&)

(ii)
Lifetime Gross
expected carrying
loss rate amount

REBHBREE #AKEME

EREERE
(#&)
Lifetime
expected Net carrying
credit loss amount

FEER REFE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BETFT JBETFT BT
Individual assessment {8 Bl 100% 14,747 (14,747) =
Collective assessment R B8 7 {4
0 - 30 days 0%£30H 0.8% 622,449 (4,864) 603,111
31 - 60 days 31608 2.6% 182,235 (4,738) 177,497
61 -90 days 61290H 3.5% 34,141 (1,195) 32,946
91 - 180 days 91£180H 4.4% 8,712 (383) 33,758
181 - 365 days 181%365H 50% 3,642 (1,821) 1,821
Over 365 days 365H M £ 100% - - -
851,179 (27,475) 823,704

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments. Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

v)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring it has sufficient liquid cash
balances and credit facilities to meet its
payment obligations as they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
A monthly report on forecasted inflow
and outflow of cash is compiled for
the directors’ review. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has
HK$103,143,000 borrowings outstanding.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group
has no borrowings outstanding. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group has
available unutilised trade line facilities
of approximately HK$660 million (2017:
HK$942 million).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

v)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest dates on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the following table details
the Group's liquidity analysis for its
commodity contracts as detailed in note
22. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted net cash (inflows)
and outflows on those commodity
contracts that require net settlement and
gross (inflows) and outflows on those
commodity contracts that require gross
settlement. When the amount payable is
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
derived from interest rate and foreign
currency exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The liquidity analysis for
the Group’s financial instruments relating
to commodity contracts is prepared
based on the contractual maturities as
the management considers that the
contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of commodity contracts.

3 MREREREE(#F)
31 MBEBRREE (&)

s EE (&)
v  RBETER (&)

TREFIAKE ZIETE
TREEHRTANEH-
AERTIBRBAREREE
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MEBERMAREEZRE
R -ZREEMERR
TMEZRESRE W F
KRFENF - RIRELR
SRBRBRESHRZ X
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

3.1

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  HMERBRERE (&)
Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBEZE(£)
Market risk (continued) FE R (&)
(v) Liquidity risk (continued) (v) nEEeRK (£)

Repayable on Carrying
demand/ Total  amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years Total  cash flows 2018

R2018%

REXEE/ RER 128

ZEANRA ZfiAE -2 mEE RefE AL
i -£ [ik3 1f @it ag BRE
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BEFT BEFT BEFL BEFT BEFL BEFT BEFL
2018 2018%
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3Ef74 488 &
Trade and bills payables EAEHRER 61,379 - - - - 61,379 61,379
Other payables RfbER3E 71,808 - - - - 71,808 71,808
Borrowings [ER 104,141 - - - - 104,141 103,143
237,328 - - - - 231,328 236,330
Commodity contracts ARAH
- gross settlement -2%LE
First Commodity Contracts ~~ E—(ERAH
- outflow (Note) - (#z2) - - 67,705 159,119 11,288 238,112 (150,193)
Second Commodity Contract ~ E=(AERAH
- outflow (Note/ —id(HE) 3,555 - - - - 3,555 (3,425)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  BISEKRER (£
Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBREZE(£)
Market risk (continued) HEEpEE (&)
(v) Liquidity risk (continued) v) mEES R (&)
Repayable on Carrying
demand or Total amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 Over  undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years 5 years cash flows 2017
#2017%
BERERD AUR 128
=fAANA = E —£Z mEz Réiig 310
&8 - k3 k3 BAREF a8 LEEfE
%
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
EEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT EEFT BEFT 8T
2017 W017%
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3E474 488 &
Trade and bills payables ENERREE 569,191 - - - - 569,191 569,191
Other payables EfETE 73,859 - - - - 73,859 73,859
643,050 - - - - 643,050 643,050
Commodity contracts AREH
- gross settlement -2ELE
first Commodity Contracts ~ £—HEREH
- outflow (Note) —it (i) = - 10684670 4615878 - 5680548 (151,244)
Second Commodity Contract ~ E=(AARAH
- outflow (Note) -tk (i) 93,700 93,700 - - - 187,400 18,853
Third Commodity Contract ~~ £=(EREH
- outflow (Note) il 73,136 - - - - 73136 73,136
Note: Cash outflow represents purchase of iron M BeRtERES®

ore under the commodity forward contracts

as detailed in note 22.

The amounts included above for variable

interest rate instruments for non-derivative

financial liabilities are subject

to change

if changes in variable interest rates

differ to those estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting

period.

EHANEEHEAO
(FEBERME22)

HEFEH R EEHTH
T ¥ 5 B 4 R B BT 78 X A
K2z EhE Rl LR
BRZFTEERMARBZ
FEAMERT A2 FRIARKA
EE2H-
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings disclosed in note 27 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debts.

3

BHERER (&)

3.2

EXxmEmEE

AREEREEHRREEER
EEBBTLUKESAEE A

FEARE FEERKEEAGEE
R S SN E RN s
BEFEZEERBRETE

AEBEARFEBBEME27/E
ZEREBRREEER (BFED
FITRARfEE) -

ExB¥FRI-RELARE-
AEBERBEFTHERZR &
iR A BB - B AT R B R Ak
MAREBETHEXELRARE
B AN FEEBRRERNERE-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(i)

3 HEBERER(E)

Fair value measurements of financial 33 SRMIAZAFVERE
instruments
Fair value hierarchy () R FEER
This section explains the judgements and RENRE A E TR B SRR PR
estimates made in determining the fair values of REATFEFENERIAAT
the financial instruments that are recognised and BAEL & A E RbE - /EE
measured at fair value in the financial statements. EHEETATEMABASEZ
To provide an indication about the reliability of AISEMRE ARBEEREHE
the inputs used in determining fair value, the AlERESRIAS A=E%
Group has classified its financial instruments into B BERRTRETRM
the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-RRB F-RRA FE=ZRRA &5t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT EBETT EBETZT
Recurring fair value M20185F12A31A R H
measurements as at AYEE
31 December 2018
Financial assets at FVPL B FEFARDZ
THEE
Commodity contracts Bma K - 3,425 150,193 153,618
Unlisted equity securities FLETRAES - - 195,416 195,416
Wealth management products ¥ 81 & @ - - 106,399 106,399
Iron ore future swap contracts #HEAHERHL Y 38,917 - - 38,917
Total CEl 38,917 3,425 452,008 494,350
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(i)

3 HEBERER(E)

Fair value measurements of financial 33 S@@mIAZATEE(Z)
instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) () RFEER (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—HMA FE_HZBRE BRI BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFr  EEFT BETFT EETFx
Recurring fair value R2017F12A31ARE®
measurements as at DAFEFHE
31 December 2017
Financial assets at FVPL ERFEFABRZS
Commodity contracts Bma K - - 151,244 151,244
Unlisted equity securities FETRAES = = 121,596 121,596
Wealth management BHEM
products - - 114,676 114,676
Financial liabilities at FVPL ERFEFABRZ
SHEE
Commodity contracts Bma K - (73,136) (18,853) (91,989)
Total GEL - (73136) 368,663 295527

There were no transfers between levels 1 and

2 for recurring fair value measurements during

the year. For transfers in and out of level 3

measurements see (iv) below.

FAE—REREE —FRH

ZHEREEERFE

FAEMES

B-BERAE=-REAFFEZEA

rEHES

BT X (iv) ©
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(i)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

3 HEBERER(E)

3.3

(i)

ERMTRAZAFVETE (&)

RFEER (&)

AEBE 2R A/NRE BE AR
REALNFEBRZENEAR
WH -

F-RMARB-NERBTEHEEEZ
ERTAE(MAFEENITET
ANBRAES) 2R FETRE
& HIME A R O T 5 R E S
R-AKEMBEZEREEM
A2 M5 RERREFFRITE %
ETATNGFASE —ZERH -

EREBERERMISEE
ZEBMI A (MBINTETAR)
ZAFENGERMNTE -Z%
HERM D F A &S 28
EMSEE #MEERKE
RAZFBHTEIE - ERATF
BtEzTEZFIEEAEKEY
AHREBRIRE AZEIASH
P BEZRER -

BE=H/FH - E—EAXZEEKX
B A BRI IR IR ] B R T 5 B
BET AZEIASWINAS
= %
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair

values

Specific valuation techniques used to value

financial instruments include:

o the use of quoted market prices or dealer

quotes for similar instruments

o for the commodity contracts — discounted

cash flow analysis

o for unlisted equity securities — stated with

reference to recent transaction prices or

the net asset values of the unlisted equity

securities

o for wealth management products -

discounted cash flow analysis, and

° for other financial

instruments -

discounted cash flow analysis.

3

BREREE (&)
33 S£RIBECAFENE(E)

(i)  FAREERFEZIEGERT

AREFEeMTABEZFEM

BHRAEE:

«  AEIAZTHEHMEKZ
SRIRIE

. BRAH-HBEALKE
X

. FELETBRAB S -2 R
EIBRAB SIS
BB EFETR

. BMER-MRESRE

P R
- HESBIA-MERS
RE S -
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(iii)
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  BIEEBREE (£)
Fair value measurements of financial 33 S@mIAZATEE(Z)
instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements using significant (i) FRFHEBHEMEEZZ T
unobservable inputs (level 3) ZRFEFE (F=RKF)
The following table presents the changes in level TREVEHZE2018F12A31H
3 items for the periods ended 31 December 2018 N2017F12A31 B IE IR 2 &
and 31 December 2017: =& MmBIER 2
Unlisted First Second Wealth
equity Commodity Commodity management
securities Contracts Contract products
EEW £ EZfH
R % BRAH BREH BHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT BT BEFT
1 January 2017 201751718 - 181,716 - -
Total gains or losses: BakEEESE:
Gain recognised in profit or loss ~ REZHER 2 W = (30,472) (18,853) =
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KERBAF
(Note 30) (Hii30) 121,596 = = 114,676
At 31 December 2017 and 2017F12A31B R
1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 121,596 151,244 (18,853) 114,676
Total gains or losses: BakEREESE:
Gain/(loss) recognised in the RiEA2ARERERZ
consolidated statement of Wi/ (ER)
comprehensive income 9,222 (1,051) 22,278 8,432
Transfer to level 2 BEE_HBRA - = (3,425) =
Addition NE 72,448 - - -
Disposal HE - - = (10,814)
Acquisition a subsidiary KE—EHEAR 97 = = =
Exchange difference ERES (7,947) = = (5,895)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12831H 195,416 150,193 - 106,399
Transfer between levels 2 and 3 (iv) ZFE-REFHEE=RREZEH

(iv)

In 2018, the Group transferred the fair value
measurement for the Second Commodity
Contract from level 3 into level 2 as the
remaining iron ore deposit of the relevant mine
was fully extracted and to be sold within the
coming twelve months. As a result, the key inputs
of the fair value measurement are observable at
the date of report.

B

20184 - A FHEE R L &2 T 8
A TR IR B R S FA S A5 7 R 5K
TZEARNEE AEEKE=
NEAREHNAFEFTEES
CHRBREEEE AR E
o RBEER AEEFED
TR ABEEREE-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3

(v)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair

value

3.3

wv)

The following table summarises the quantitative

information about the significant unobservable

inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements.

See (ii) above for the valuation techniques

BHERER (&)

ERMIRZAVEFE(F)

18 BB IE I A R B2 1 FERI B

TRPAEAE=RERNATE
AAEMANFREREEERY
BBANEEEN -FERANMG
1B H i 76 25 £ 3 (i)

adopted.
Fair value at Range of inputs
RT5IRHZ2ATE YEHAGE
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2018 2017 inputs* 2018 2017 to fair value
FHBREEL
it FEBA* FRERUECEBAANRLNTEZBE
HKS'000  HK$'000
B¥TT EEFT
The First Commodity 150,193 151,244  Forecasted Platts UsSD58.00/ USD56.12/ Increase 10% (2017: 10%) of the Platts
Contracts iron ore price DMT to DMT to iron ore price would increase fair value
usD61.32/ usSD59/ measurement by HK$3,103,000 (2017:
DMT DMT HK$2,819,000).
F-HERAH 150,193 151,244 EHEXERA e ST LREREABREMO0% (20174 :10% )
Btk 58.00%X7LE 56.12%TLE REHATE 3,103,000
LN SEAN (20174 : }8%2,819,0007C) ©
61.32%T 59%TT

Decrease 10% (2017: 10%) of the Platts
iron ore price would decrease fair value
measurement by HK$3,261,000 (2017:
HK$2,819,000).

ERMBABRED10% (20174 :10% )
BN FE RS E3,261,000T
(20174 : % %2,819,0007C) ©
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BERBRER (£

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial 33 SRMIAZAFEFE(E
instruments (continued)
(v)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair v) 1BEEEGARELFENE
value (continued) (%)
Fair value at Range of inputs
RTFIRHZATE HERAEE
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2018 2017 inputs* 2018 2017 to fair value
FHBERMEZ
it HERA* FHBEEECHBERARATEZBR
HKS'000  HK$'000
BEFT EEFrT
Forecasted annual 1.2Mtpa- 2.4Mtpa- Increase 10% (2017: 10%) of the forecasted
production of the 5.5Mtpa 7.1Mtpa annual production of the mines would
mines increase fair value measurement by
HK$6,475,000 (2017: HK$15,125,000).
BILRAFES 12081- 2408 M- B LI T80 4R 2 2 3 N10% (20174F : 10% )
55081 71081 1§ G RN T E 88 N8 %6,475,0007C

(20174 : %%15,125,0007T ) °

Decrease 10% (2017: 10%) of the forecasted
annual production of the mines would
decrease the fair value measurement by
HK$6,805,000 (2017: HK$15,125,000).

BRI FEERD10% (20174 :10%)
BEHATE 2R E%6,805,0007T
(20174 : ##15,125,0007T) ©

Discount rate 19.00% 19.97% Increase 10% (2017: 10%) of the discount rate
would decrease the fair value measure by
HK$5,708,000 (2017: HK$6,673,000).
i3 19.00% 19.97% B REAN10% (20174 :10% ) B EH
RFER 2R 5,708,000
(20174 : % %6,673,0007T) ©

Decrease 10% (2017: 10%) of the discount
rate would increase the carrying fair measure
by HK$6,106,000 (2017: HK$6,673,000).

BERERD10% (2017 :10% ) B EH
AT @R %6,106,0007T
(2017% : %%6,673,0007) °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BERBRER (£)

3.3

(v)

Fair value measurements of financial 3.3
instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair )
value (continued)

ERMIRZAVEFE(F)

18 BB IE I A R B2 1 FERI B
(%)

Fair value at Range of inputs
RTSIRHZATE YEHAGE
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2018 2017 inputs* 2018 2017 to fair value
FHBRME
it BB A FEBELECHBRARATEZBR
HKS'000  HK$'000
BEFT EEFrT
The Second Commodity 3,425 18,853  Forecasted Platts Transferred  USD59/DMT 2017: Increase/decrease 10% of the Platts iron
Contract iron ore price to level 2 ore price would increase/decrease fair value
measurement by HK$1,885,000.
E_HERAH 3,425 18,853 WAILEKEBA HEF_4AF SLLAM 017 BAEREBA 2 EREM/
fER 59% T HA10% B EHATEEEM/
B #1,885,0007T °
Discount rate Transferred 16.00% 2017: Increase/decrease 10% of the discount
to level 2 rate would decrease/increase the fair value
measure by HK$80,000.
BRE HEE R 16.00% 20174 : BEREIZI,/HA10% G H A TE
SRR D/ miEE80,0007
Wealth management 106,399 114,676 Interest rate 2.30% 3.20% Increase/decrease 10% (2017: 10%) of the
products t0 4.15% t0 3.75% interest rate would increase/decrease
the fair value measure by HK$800,000
(2017: HK$860,000).
BHER 106,399 114,676  Fl% 2.30% 3.20% FIEM,/HD10% (20174 :10% )
F4.15% £3.75% BEHATEBEM,/H L E%800,0007T
(20174 : ##860,0007T ) ©
e There were no significant inter-relationships e FREBI I IR A 2 B

between unobservable inputs that materially affect
fair values.

The management determined the fair value of
the unlisted equity securities with reference to
recent transaction prices or the net asset values of
the unlisted equity securities. As at 31 December
2018, the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities is determined to be HK$195,416,000
(2017: HK$121,596,000).

BEHNFEEKNEATZEZ
BERIEEEE -

EEE2RIFLTRAZSFD
MR GEREEFEETIE
EIRAESFRDTE 72018
F12A318 I ETRAFEFH
NEEEE AB 195,416,000
gL (20174 : % #121,596,000
TT) e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(vi)

3.4

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes
a team that performs the valuations of financial
instruments required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team
reports directly to the senior management and
the audit committee. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the senior
management and the valuation team at least once
every six months, in line with the Group's half-
yearly reporting periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed
at the end of each reporting period during the
half-yearly valuation discussion between the
senior management, audit committee and the
valuation team. As part of this discussion, the
team presents a report that explains the reason
for the fair value movements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar
agreements

The Group has no such financial assets or
financial liabilities outstanding in the consolidated
statement of financial position which are
under master netting agreements. No material
impact on the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and respective
disclosures relating to the Group’s master netting
agreements as no such contracts outstanding.

3 HEBERER(E)

3.3

(vi)

34

ERMTRAZAFVETE (&)

1B

AEEPBEHRE @ R B
A mEEMEETEN
BRMEE BREE=ZFRHAF
Bt/ MEEERARREERE M
ERREERE - REAAEHE
My FERESH SREEER
HENESLEBREARGER
EMBREERRER —RHT® -

E_RARNME=FERNRFE
MEBHTRSREERE BKE
BeRHENMMREREPRE
FEEBESRT MM -
ERIWmO—&0  NMEEEXR
BENRBEATEEINREA -

ZEAREHEREE TR
TR - FRGEREOHER
FRRNEHEEREHMAE

AREER R M BFARR KR EAE
MFREEEBZ THAZIRZ

CREEXTRAGB ARALE
ZERARZBMEL AHEAE
B MR RELHE
LREBASER —FREEE R
ZERRBUBREATE -
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(@) Impairment of investments in associates

The carrying amount of investments in associates
amounting to HK$5,232,325,000 (2017:
HK$5,073,079,000) is reviewed for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 (“Impairment of
assets”) whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Group determines
the recoverable amount which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.

The value in use calculation is based on the
estimations of future expected cash flows from
the associates and a suitable discount rate. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than or more
than expected, or there are unfavourable events
and changes in facts and circumstances which
result in downward revision of future estimated
cash flows, a material impairment loss may
arise or reverse. No impairment loss has been
recognised in respect of investments in associates
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation for
investments in associates are disclosed in note 18.

4
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B {3 RSB

mEMBERBEH G E  BRE
ERRIENERER - EEEREMR
AEB ST HRETFITERHAE-

%‘EJr&%J e T E R - WEF I ERNE
EEBLEMER BEAREBRLR

Z%—Jﬁu; ERENMGEEE BBAE

MIARREHFRTELE -

(@) REEQARREZRE
REEE N RIIRE 2 BREE A B
5,232,325,0007T (20174 : &%
5,073,079,0007T) ' & F L E 4+
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax losses of approximately HK$568
million of which HK$308 million is subject to
confirmation by Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD") (2017: HK$515 million,
of which HK$316 million was subject to
confirmation by IRD) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. In cases where probable
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised
and the amounts are confirmed by the IRD, a
deferred tax asset may be recognised.

Fair value and classification of assets
relating to commodity contracts

The fair value of commodity contracts as
detailed in note 22 is determined based on the
present value of future cash flows estimated in
the valuation model and the fair value for the
commodity contracts to purchase iron ore is
established by using valuation techniques. The
Group has established a process to ensure that
valuation techniques are developed by qualified
personnel and are validated and reviewed by
personnel independent of those that developed
the valuation techniques. However, it should be
noted that some inputs, such as forecasted Platts
Iron Ore price, the forecasted annual production
of the mines, the lives of the mines and discount
rate, require management estimates.

4 ERMGERAEE)

(b)

(0

Fri&H

B B R AR 5 R SRR S BT 388 - B
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%swﬁ
T (HABEI08ETESGES
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%mﬁﬁ)
(20174 : BH¥s 15T Hh
%%3%?%;%&%%%%#

B )M REITEESERN
mﬂﬁM%Tﬁ%TmM%%
=R BEMSBECERLES
R AT ERREEHEBE
Eo

EEERE
Eo¥

Bme N2 AT E (FIEHRH
H22) RREBEEEEBRAMBETZ
ARBEERBREETE MAES
BAZEMmENZAFERB
BERMEE AEELC 2T
RBFERGERNEAEGERA
TEY YHBYRRAE[ER
Mz ALBRIERFE A&
BHEMO@ARE  MAEAZ
EXREBEAER B ZRAF
EE RIUZAERFHMER
T HFEREEL A -

WZEAEZAYE

295



296

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE
Annual Report 2018 F R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll_\é;\jﬁiﬁipﬁta

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E2018F 12 A31H L FE

4

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(d)

Classification of investment in an
associate — Shougang Concord Century
Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”)

On 21 November 2018, the Group announced
that it had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Shougang Holding, the
controlling holding company of the Company,
pursuant to which the Company had conditionally
agreed to sell, and Shougang Holding had
conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire
equity interest in Shougang Century held by the
Company at a consideration of approximately
HK$205,997,000.

According to HKFRS 5, non-current assets and
disposal groups should be classified as held-
for-sale if their carrying value will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than
through continuing use. One of the conditions
that must be satisfied for classification as held-
for-sale is that the sale is highly probable.

The management assessed that the disposal
was subject to the approval of independent
shareholders in a general meeting and the
approval is not able to be ascertained or
determined to be highly probable up to the
report date. The management determined that
not all of the criteria of HKFRS 5 were met. As
a result, the investment in Shougang Century as
at 31 December 2018, has not been reclassified
as an asset held-for-sale. Had the investment in
Shougang Century been regarded as held-for-sale
as at 31 December 2018, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$205,200,000 would have been
recognised.

4

BRI (E)
d REBEEATFREZIE-BER

EEKEEARAR(BERE
£])

R2018F11A21B A& EE
o B EARRQ AR A R E
ERITVEERZE B - AA
RIEBRHRELE  R&HiE
REEGGREBEARRRFE
CEREEZEHRE RER
#7785 #205,997,0007T °

RIBE BB HREERIESS - 3F
mBEENMEEENNKRERE
EfEFEREBHERZ MRS
FEGERKRERAERD BRIFE
HE - DEARIFHEZ —BY
ARRZIGEHRHERENT

EREENTE HEALBURR
PR AE EHE R EE Z R
EHHMABELIEEASE
AT ERERT WIHEB B
¥ ELERIELH 2 FTBZREY
w2 AL 2018512 A31
H REREEZEREWRERN
SERFIEHEEE-MRER
EEZREMN2018F12A31H
WRRFELHE #BRARMES
1B 475 %205,200,0007T °
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

Information reported to the directors, being the chief
operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision makers have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:
Trading business trading of iron ore;

Car parking assets operation management and

ERERDHBER
RUTES (FREE

BERRAN)H

BRDBERFAHEDIRBZ2ER iR
ZEEEZERNERKERERBEM

E-RERNEEZ 2 WA 2[43E
MBEETBREERRABRINZIEEE

#Beo

Bt RIBEF BV RS LERIFSH

$ BzeEREFDHMT:

FEEEKLEE FEEEEEN

and management business operations of car % ([FEHE5 e R
("Carpark operation”) parking assets; and ")
Urban renewal-oriented fund management of W mES AR LEESER-
management business private funds. NETEBRED
("Fund management”) (TE€E8])
An analysis of revenue of the Group is as follows: REBZEXEBAINEOT :
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Sales of iron ore HE#EREAO 1,499,792 3,812,329
Fund management services income £ & & IE R U A 93,443 =
Investment income — gain on unlisted #&& WA
equity securities —JFETRAFF W 9,222 =
Carpark income (GE21NON 62,038
Others Hit 11,801 3,816
1,676,296 3,816,145
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5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EEERDBER (&)
(continued)
2018 20185
Fund
management
Sales of services
iron ore income Others Total
HEeEE
HEERR R WA Hit &t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BETFT BETT BETT BETT
Timing of revenue recognition WA HER B
- At a point in time —EE-EH 1,499,792 - - 1,499,792
- Over time -E-BREHRA - 93,443 11,801 105,244
Total A 1,499,792 93,443 11,801 1,605,036
Segment revenue and results PHEXBREE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

NTRASEERERFAREED B

R Z D e

HE2018FE12A31AILEE

Trading Fund Carpark
business management  operation Others Total
EE RS HeER [FEHELE Hitr CEi
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Revenue from RENBEP ZWA
external customers 1,499,792 102,665 62,038 11,801 1,676,296
Segment profit/(losses) PEETF (E]) 44,270 24,598 (23,479) (672) 44,717
Other income HA 36,688
Other gains H bl 13,612
Central administration costs R {THK A& (42,612)
Net gain related to BBRARaHL
commodity contracts W F 44,713
Finance costs R (5.699)
Share of results of associates &N E 2 £4E 275,363
Profit before income tax BRATET AR R 366,782
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

LEBERDBER (&)

DEEEEREE ()
HE2017E 128318 ILEE

Trading
business Others Total
EES Hi BFF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Revenue from external RKEMNEERE ZWA
customers 3,812,329 3,816 3,816,145
Segment losses o EEE (19,501) (5,901) (25,402)
Other income H b U A 6,501
Central administration costs 1 4T Bk 7N (32,485)
Net gain related to EHERMRENZ
commodity contracts U 5 5 =8 (122,461)
Finance costs B 75 Ak A (17,392)
Share of results of associates #{hHE 2 N 7] 2 ¥4 248,525
Profit before income tax bk BT 15 B AT & A 57,286

The Fund management and Carpark operation segments
were acquired by the Group near the year end of 2017.
Therefore, no segment revenue and results of the two
segments are presented for the year ended 31 December
2017.

AESBENEEGLEED T ATEER
FRi2017F K FTWCEE - Bt - tE @
ESRE =2017F 128318 L FEW &
DEEFERERER
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2018

5 HEXERIBER(E)

THEERER

UTRAKBEEERABREZHDE
e Z 34T -

R2018%F12A31H

Trading Fund Carpark

business management  operation Others Total

EEES HeER FEELE Hit &t

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Total segment assets NHEELSE 102,475 326,919 453,878 18,449 901,721
Total segment assets include: 7 5 & E 48 55 6177 -
Investment in a joint venture R—RAEZEREIZEKE = - 80,216 - 80,216
Investments in associates REENF 7K E 5,232,325
Bank balances and cash BAGEEERS 3,034,026
Unallocated assets ANEEE 262,313
Consolidated assets B E 9,430,385
Total segment liabilities NHEBEESR 55,426 29,995 61,326 7,648 154,395
Unallocated liabilities APBEE 280,534
Consolidated liabilities BEE 434,929
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 REERITBER(EZ)
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEEREE (&)

As at 31 December 2017

R2017%F12A31H

Trading Fund Carpark
business management operation Others Total
ECES B EE (FEELE Hith AEf
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT JBEFT BEFT BT BEFT
Total segment assets NHEEER 844,822 214,016 249,392 13,216 1,321,446
Total segment assets include: 7 A& EAEF I :
Investment in a joint venture R—RKAEQAEZHE = = 81,299 = 81,299
Investments in associates REELNRZIRE 5,073,079
Bank balances and cash ROEERBS 1,389,628
Unallocated assets ADBEE 402,156
Consolidated assets BEE 8,186,309
Total segment liabilities NHBELS 601,081 12,544 49,279 2,182 665,086
Unallocated liabilities APEERE 277,571
Consolidated liabilities BafE 942,657

As at 31 December 2018, there was no unsatisfied
performance obligations.

-

M2018F 12318 WEREBITHEY
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5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EEERIHER(EF)
(continued)
Other segment information Hith 2 # & R
2018 20184 Trading Fund Carpark
business management  operation Other Total
EEES S HeEE FEELE Hitr Bt

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
B¥TL  ERTT  EBETT  EETn BETx

Additions to non-current REFNDEE
assets (Note) (#rit) - - 145,784 - 145,784
Depreciation of property, nE BER
plant and equipment RETE 50 553 305 212 1,120
Reversal of provision for FEN R FURL (B
impairment losses B m &
for trade receivables 13,898 - - - 13,898
Increase in fair value of REMEZ
investment properties AFEEM - - 7,752 200 7,952
2017 20174 Trading
business Others Total
BHED Hh, Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
Additions to non-current REIERDEE
assets (Note) (Brat) 215 151 366
Depreciation of property, ES =5
plant and equipment RETE 35 224 259
Provision for/(reversal of FE U BR SRR E B
provision for) impairment (BEDE)
losses for trade receivables 25,247 (20) 25,227
Increase in fair value of WEWME 2 AN FEEM
investment properties - 900 900
Note: Non-current assets exclude those assets arising from the Frat: FERBEETBIEWE (15 RHT
acquisitions as detailed in note 30 and financial assets 300 EAEMEE -BAFETFAEBRED
at fair value through profit or loss - non-current, assets SREE-ERD HEERANEEN

relating to commodity contracts and deferred tax assets. BENELEHBEEE-
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
(continued)

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas
- the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers by
geographical location at which the goods and services
were delivered and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed
below:

LEBERDBER (&)

it EE R
AEBXREATEME - PRAREEL
3 X

AEERESNDES 2 WA EE SRR
132 4 308 R I B R B R P
BB R T ¢

Revenue from external

customers from

continuing operations Non-current assets (Note)
REMBEFZBWA kRBEE (M)
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BETF T
The PRC H 1,673,098 3,812,329 1,036,265 413,888
Hong Kong 5B 3,198 3,816 4,877,740 5,082,331
1,676,296 3,816,145 5,914,005 5,496,219

Note: Non-current assets exclude assets relating to commodity
contracts, equity instruments and deferred tax assets.

B FRDEETCLEAEERANZE
E-RATAREREMEAEE-
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group from
the continuing operations are as follows:

LERBERDBER (F)

EBIEEF AN
RERFEARTEEREFELEER
ZHEHEEERERI0% 2B PR ALR
T

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Customer A BEEA 243,451 N/AZ i A2

Customer B’ Z B! 198,909 N/AZ i 2

Customer ' xREC 186,238 N/A 38 R 2

Customer D' EFD N/ATE 2 399,963
Note: 1 Revenue from trading business. Brat: KEBGHEB 2 W -

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 2 HEKRETEAREE ZHE

10% of the total sales of the Group.

BEEREBRI0% °
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OTHER INCOME Hilr A

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T JEBT T
Interest income on bank deposits RITF T B U A 36,559 6,501
Sundry income MM 129 =
36,688 6,501

OTHER GAINS, NET Hibg a5 F 8
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) FEN U zs, (E518) 558 2,229 (7,838)

Gain from changes in fair value of

RANEAFEED 2 W

investment properties (Note 14) (M7E14) 7,952 900
Fair value gain on wealth B ERATENS
management products 8,432 -
Wavier of trade payable to R bR BN — 2 BB 77 R
a related party - 8,212
Litigation expenses (Note) FABA (M) (5,460) =
Others B 2,951 (783)
16,104 491

Note: In 2013, a subsidiary of the Group was involved in a legal
case involving in chartering service. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group reached an agreement on
the settlement amount of USD 2.2 million (equivalent to
HK$17.2 million). Out of the settlement amount, USD 1.5
million (equivalent to HK$11.7 million) had been provided
previously and the remaining USD 0.7 million (equivalent
to HK$5.5 million) was provided for and settled during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

B

R2013F  AEE-—RWERE S A
— S RIEAMBRSHERRE - REBE
2018F12A31B L FE  REEFM
iR F0.022183% T (FHERNE®0.172
B EK g - FEMAEESF - 0.0158
ET (HERBE117ET) BRI
sHERE - MR T0.007(8%T (HER
7 #50.05518 ) ER B E20185F12 A
BTRIEFERBELES-
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8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BEHEES 22X H
2018 2017
HKS$000 HK$000
BEF T BEF T

Employee benefit expenses (excluding EE®FAILZH (THIEESE
benefits and interests of directors) B EER) (FM3E9)

(Note 9) 101,589 20,866
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ ¥ ¥ -BEKREITE

equipment (Note 13) (FF5E13) 1,120 259
Directors’ emoluments (Note 37) EEWE (MiE37) 5,191 -
Amortisation of other non-current H b IE TR B) & B 8

assets (Note 15) (FF5E15) 16,736 =
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2R B &
— Audit service — &R 2,820 1,996
— Non-audit service — I EH IR 1,278 =
Cost of inventories recognised BRAEZIEZFEKRAR

as an expense 1,515,759 3,807,035
Minimum lease payments under THREFREEHENIET

operating leases in respect of 2 &EHE

land and buildings 12,298 4,798
Service and management fees BRSSP

charged by Shougang Group EREA (WiE34)

(Note 34) 1,640 960
Others Hth 35,403 13,382

Total cost of sales and administrative $4E AR R 1TH X H 4858
expenses 1,693,834 3,849,296
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9

BEEEANXH (TEREESHEIR

(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF =)
DIRECTORS)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T JEBT T
Basic salaries and allowances HEAR &€ NMoEB, 98,396 20,002
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE FIFT B 5K
contributions 3,193 864
101,589 20,866

()

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest

in the Group include one (2017:one) director,

whose emolument is reflected in the analysis in
note 37. The emoluments paid/payable to the
remaining four (2017: four) individuals during the

() ITEBSHFAL

HZE2018F12A31HILEFE - &
EEMeEaMARALBEE—
% (017F: —R)EF - Hi2
R FE372 94T - B E2017
FK2018F12A31HILEFEE
o/ EABTIEE (20174 M

years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 are as BIALTZMEWT :
follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits e hHMmER 5,817 5,098
Contributions to retirement RKAE FFT 84 50
benefit schemes 793 226
6,610 5,324
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10

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9
(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS) (continued)

(i)  Five highest paid individuals (continued)

BEEEANXH (TREESEIR
) (&)

() IHEERSHFAL (E)

The emoluments of the highest paid individuals BRHFATZHMENRUATE
fell within the following bands: = :
Number of individuals
A
2018 2017
Emolument band e EE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 &% 1,000,001T&E
75 #1,500,0007T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 #%1,500,0017L %
75 2,000,0007T 2 1
4 4
FINANCE COSTS 10 BBRAE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Interests on bank borrowings RITIE KA A 1,886 17,392
Interests on other borrowing H B BRAR 3,813 S

5,699 17,392
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
assessable profit (2017: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax have made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
Hong Kong assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
2018 (2017: 25%).

The amount of income tax expenses charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:

1

Fr8Bi< i

EBFNEHIBEERBEFIRE X
16.5%5tE (20175 : 16.5% ) °

AEBERREEF SRR G - Bt
HEMBHRLYENMEFEFELE
AEHEE-

BEPBECEMSHE([RE/RAEH
R REEMBREERIEL  £F
B2 KB A TFN2018F 2 i T A25%
(20174 :25% ) °

RERAEEERERAMBG Z T EH S E
MIER:

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current income tax: BNERFTISFH

Taxation outside Hong Kong BABINIIR
— The PRC — 9,338 -
Deferred income tax (Note 28) EIEATIS R (KT7E28) 673 -
10,011 -

Note: In 2016, the income tax expenses included Hong Kong
profits tax of approximately HK$49,061,000 in relation
to the offshore trading profits of iron ore claimed by the
Group in prior years (the “Offshore Claim”). The Group
received tax assessment demanding notes on the Offshore
Claim (the “Assessment”) issued by the Inland Revenue
Department subsequent to the end of the reporting period
of 2016. Although the management of the Group lodged
an objection against the Assessment, provision for prior
years' Hong Kong profits tax of HK$49,061,000 was made
as the management of the Group was uncertain about the
probability of the success of the objection.

In 2017 and 2018, the abovementioned tax objection
has not yet been resolved, resulting in the tax certificates
of approximately HK$48,343,000 being purchased as
requested by the Inland Revenue Department. The balance
of tax certificates and corresponding profits tax payable
were presented on a net basis within tax payable as the
Group had a legally enforceable right to and intent to settle
on a net basis.

HiE: R2016F  FIBHAXBRETRTEFE
AEEBRBEBELSINEZBEFNE
76 F 15 T 4974 #49,061,0007T ([ 5h
BE|) - AEEN2016FEREHER
BEERE RSB EHNTRE
ME([FH)) BEAEBMEERED
HABRERYE HHRAEEEEE
THEA EREAR I R ET AT RE1E - 1B
T FEBBFSHHH49,061,0007T
VB B o

20174 K%2018%F - Ll Fi 1B R ¥ ™
KRR BHARKRERERERLE
#48,343,0007T 2 f#Fi 5 - R H 4 #4
KB IE 2 B FIB IR FEEERA
SEEMBIERNZY AEE#REEE
AABIMITRF R ERIRFEELELE
=
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1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as follows:

FrEH<H (&)

FRAZHAXHREEE2EEaERIIR
ZBRET S B ATE B S ER 0T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B A i A 366,782 57,286
Calculated at domestic tax rates 12 18 28 = i ) i AR /9 &
applicable to profits in the MEGTHEOFIE:
respective countries: 59,370 9,452
Tax effect of amount which are not ~ REFEERFHWABFBER
deductible/(taxable) in calculating a0, (HERE)
taxable income: CRENBRETE
Share of results of associates BB E N ES (45,435) (41,007)
Share of result of a joint venture B2 R EE (813) =
Expenses not deductible for tax A0 =
purposes 4,028 13,338
Income not taxable for tax purposes  HZB R Hi Uk A (20,131) (2,079)
Tax loss not recognised AIERT I E B 17,379 21,800
Utilisation of tax losses previously FABAREERTEEE
not recognised (4,387) (1,504)
Tax expense for the year FEBBEXH 10,011 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

The basic earnings per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue:

12

BRER
(@ E=X
AKEEGRERZFTIEZARRF

BEFAARGENBRIASET
BB S8EE

il

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
B F T BB T T
Profit attributable to equity holders of AN AIHEZEIF A AFEL
the Company (HK$'000) wmA (B¥ETFT) 353,097 57,286
Weighted average number of ARTEERERER
ordinary shares for basic earnings B 3 3 AR hn e 715 21
per share (thousands) (Note) (FR&) (Hat) 20,121,731 10,155,814
Basic earnings per share BRELRAT
(expressed in Hong Kong cents per (A REWS)TR)
share) 1.75 0.56
Note: The earnings per share and the weighted average Bt 20175 2 BREF R E BRI

number of ordinary shares for 2017 have been
adjusted for the bonus element in the Open Offer
(as defined in Note 25).

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Company has no share option outstanding as
at 31 December 2018 (year ended 31 December
2017: the share options did not have a dilutive
effect on earnings per share).

(b)

BTHBERANEE (5
B BE25) o 49 B SN T 2
AE-

B
SREERT T BRE MR L EE

BENE s LBER BRABRDEITYE
BRZMEFHEEE -

ARAQFR20185F12 A31 8 I 48 5 K 17
fFZRERE (B 22017128318 1t
FE-EREHSRABNTEESY

2)-

31



312

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREREXERAF

Annual Report 2018 &3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE W BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 YM¥E -BEREZE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
B
HENELE RERRE RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEFT BEFT BEFT BT T
COST B
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 718 3,977 2,633 2,601 9,211
Additions NE 103 263 - 366
Disposals HE S (1 S (M
Acquisitions of W BER B A A
subsidiaries (Note 30) (H1i£30) = 2,497 = 2,497
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 4,080 5,392 2,601 12,073
Additions NE 376 3,400 - 3,776
Disposals HE (545) (246) = (791)
Acquisitions of WeBER B A A
subsidiaries (Note 30) (K#30) = 2,652 = 2,652
Exchange difference I B = (355) = (355)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H 3,911 10,843 2,601 17,355
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1/1H 1,973 2,391 2,601 6,965
Depreciation charged EHNRITE 150 109 = 259
Disposals & = (M = M
At 31 December 2017 R2017412A31H 2,123 2,499 2,601 7,223
Depreciation charged EMBRTE 158 962 = 1,120
Disposals HE (510) (183) = (693)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W E R A
(Note 30) (FF5E30) = 1,730 = 1,730
Exchange difference R EE - (91) S (91)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H 1,771 4,917 2,601 9,289
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 December 2018 20184 12A31H 2,140 5,926 - 8,066
At 31 December 2017 M2017412831H 1,957 2,893 - 4,850

During the year ended 31
impairment loss (2017: nil) was provided for.

December 2018, no

HZE2018F 12 A31 B ILFE - #HEFA
EE BT EE (2017F &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REWER
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$°000
BT JEMTF T
At fair value BAYE
Opening balance at 1 January M1 ATH 2 B4 g 6,900 6,000
Addition NE 137,146 -
Change in fair value recognised REFE T ER R TR
in the consolidated statement of NEEEE (7))
comprehensive income (Note 7) 7,952 900
Exchange differences PEH =% (296) =
Closing balance at 31 December R12A318 2R &% 151,702 6,900
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of HRINEMERZAEZEARERAERZ
comprehensive income for investment properties: ki
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$ 000
B FT BT T
Rental income He A 2,679 216
Direct operating expenses from REEAHESBRAZYEZ
properties that generated rental BEELETH
income (1,806) -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance (2017: Nil).

Valuation of the Group’s investment property situated
in Chengdu is performed by the valuation team of the
Group, to determine the fair value of the investment
property as at 31 December 2018.

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment
property situated in Hong Kong is performed by the
valuer, AA Property Services Limited, to determine the
fair value of the investment property as at 31 December
2018 and 2017.

The revaluation gains or losses are included in
“Other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 7).

MR2018F12A31H AEBETEBRY
E—HIEREEZ RBEAHNER
(20174 : £&) o

AEBMRKEOREMENGEE T B
REBMEE/NEETUETER20184F
12A31BEEMEN A FE

AEBMRBEBNREMENBE L GE
TAREEMREYEBMERARET
LAEE B R 20184F K2017F 12 A31H %
EMENRFEE-

B RERIFAGEEE KSR
M) [E s F 8 ] (B&E7) -
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14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

REWE (&)

RV EER
TREBEETESMBRAFEIRZ
wEME-

Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

FREBEMEEZ
EEWMABE (F=&&R)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHT T BB T
Recurring fair value measurements BEMATESE
Investment properties: wEME:
Carpark building — Chengdu FEISKIE— K 144,602 =
Residential building — Hong Kong FEE-—FE 7,100 6,900
151,702 6,900

The Group’'s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that causes the
transfer. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year.

AR BAOREBREFARERG B R
MR BB Y AR TEER
RBA RS - F 5 E—RAR B
AR BIIA R = MR AR B 2 RO o 5 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

14 BREYE (£Z)
A EMEEEEBERAND

FERE (F=RKH)

Carpark Residential
building - building -
Chengdu Hong Kong Total
FEERE =Y -
— R &R —-&E Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B F T B FT BT
2018 20184
Opening balance at 2018F 18182
1 January 2018 HBR¥) 4 R - 6,900 6,900
Addition NE 137,146 - 137,146
Change in fair value RizEE2EREEXF
recognised in the BRz2RFEE
consolidated statement of (PMF3E7)
comprehensive income
(Note 7) 7,752 200 7,952
Exchange differences fEH =% (296) - (296)
Closing balance at 2018F 128318~
31 December 2018 Hi R 45 88 144,602 7,100 151,702
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

14 REYE (&)

RAFEBEMEEERERANA
FERE (B=ZREH) (&)

Carpark Residential
building — building —
Chengdu Hong Kong Total
(BB PN : FEE
— KD —&B Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB TFT BT T BT T
2017 20174
Opening balance at 2017F 18182
1 January 2017 AV 45 81 - 6,000 6,000
Change in fair value Rize2EREAEKXF
recognised in the TR AT EEE
consolidated statement of (FMF5E7)
comprehensive income
(Note 7) - 900 900
Closing balance at M201781283182
31 December 2017 HA R & 84 - 6,900 6,900
Valuation processes of the Group FEBEM/ERE

The Group's investment properties were valued at
31 December 2018 by internal valuation team and
independent professionally qualified valuers who hold
a recognised relevant professional qualification and
have recent experience in the locations and segments
of the investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest and
best use.

The Group’s senior management reviews the valuations
performed by the internal valuation team and
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes.

REE 2 REMETI RN GHENER
BEARNBREXEERTSELRNE
HEREMEN R R BEBME
KRN BIEESERMEMMNR2018
FI2ANBETHE -BABEREME
mE HEERERYASZRREER

AEERREEERMNABMGENER
B AEMRMEREN S PETHMG
B
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

At each financial year end the senior management:
o verifies all major inputs to the valuation;

o assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation;

° holds discussions with the internal valuation team
and independent valuers.

Valuation techniques

The Group obtains valuations for its investment
properties at least annually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent valuations.
The directors determine a property’'s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:

° current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences

o discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows

o capitalised income projections based upon a
property’s estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

14

REWE (&)
rEBHERRE (&)
REMBERR SREER:

. REGBENMBEIEZEEGA:
. AR GERRNBEFER

B8

o EREABEEMARBILGE
e TR -

BRI

AEBELBF-RPEEEMERE
CXER

REFESHR EFTHEERFROAMG
BEEHFRERSMENRFENFG-
EENAEAFTELTBERNEETYE
BlE-

ATEMDRAEEE ARG EIE
IS M B AR - R A VB A B A
HOEFNREERASFENER
B

. TRMENMEREENENE
B ERIAUDEE LB TER
M5 E T MER (AR RRE
MERELAE)

. RIFARAKRRESREM A LT
BANFERERE

. REBEY R MG HHRAFE AR
REMSRBEDTE N X
T FEOR B9 B AR WA

P ERITL B -
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14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table analyses the level 3 investment
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

14 REWE (&)

TREGBERMONE =ZREINKED
X (R FEIE) -

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at 31 December  technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FRBEMEL
FHBRMEL FRBEMECHE L6 LN
LES M2A31B 2 AT E EERH BEBA HAEE ATEZER
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS 000 HK$'000
BRTx BRI
Carpark building 144,602 Income approach Comparable’s RMB110,000- N/A The higher the unit
- Chengdu discounted cash flow unit selling price RMB190,000 TEm selling price, the
FBEEAE WNE (BREERE) akmEz per parking higher the fair
~K 8 BEE space value
BREEEN BUEBUS:
ARM AT
110,000 £
ARH
190,0007¢
Rental rates growth 5% for N/A - The higher the growth
rate the first TEE rate, the higher the
HEBERERE 1-5 years, fair value
and 3% EREHR
later on REFT
B1E55F
R5% &
A3%
Discounted rate 7% N/A The higher the discount
HRx A rate, the lower the

fair value
BREdE
ATEYE
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 BEWE (E)
The following table analyses the level 3 investment TREZEGERMOTE=ZRBANEEY
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques. ¥ (EAFEIE) -
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at 31 December  technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FRBEMEL
FHERMEL FRBEMECHE L6 LPN -
LES R2A31B 2 AT E EERH 1PN BAEE ATEZBE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BRTT BB
Capitalisation 3.2%-4.3% N/A - The higher the
rate A capitalisation rate,
fovNdig: the higher the fair
value
BRI ERR
AVEES
Residential building 7,100 6,900  Income approach Term rate 2% 3%  The higher the term
- Hong Kong (term and reversionary method) # Bitt % rate, the lower the
FER-&5 WNE (BERERE) fair value
BELEES
RTEWE
Reversionary 2.5% 3.5%  The higher the
rate reversionary rate,
BHLE the lower the fair
value
BELEES

NFEEE
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

15 HUFERBEE

Carpark Funds
operating management
rights contracts Goodwill Others Total
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
rEg HeER
geE &8 BE Hith At
(Hiita) (Hitb) (Hitc) (Hitd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT ERTT AETT BETFT BETT
Cost KR
At 1 January 2017 R2017FE1 718 - - - - -
Acquisitions of WEEM B A
subsidiaries (Note 30) (Hi#30) 56,308 28,586 98,296 25,305 208,495
At 31 December 2017 M2017412A318 56,308 28,586 98,296 25,305 208,495
Acquisitions of WM B A
subsidiaries (Note 30) (Hit30) 15,143 - 34,393 - 49,536
Addition NE - - - 4,985 4,985
At 31 December 2018 720184124318 71,451 28,586 132,689 30,290 263,016
Amortisation a
At 1 January 2018 and R2018E1 1B R
31 December 2017 20174124318 - - - - -
Amortisation charged HHER (9,009) (5,126) = (2,601) (16,736)
31 December 2018 20184124318 (9,009) (5,126) - (2,601) (16,736)
Carrying values EKEE
At 31 December 2018 720184124318 62,442 23,460 132,689 27,689 246,280
At 31 December 2017 M2017412A31H 56,308 28,586 98,296 25,305 208,495
Notes: Bt -
(a) Carpark operating rights represent the carpark operating (a CHEERAEEE TR EEEAED

rights held by Shouzhong Investment Management Co.,

Ltd. (“Shouzhong Investment”), Urban Parking Beijing
Limited (“Urban Parking”) and their subsidiaries. The
rights entitled the Group to operate a number of carparks
in the PRC for 3 years to 10 years over which the cost will
be amortised.

A(EHRRE])

CEH (R EEE

BERAR ([EHFE]) RKZOH
BRRABANFESKEE - AEEE
RATBEEE ZEEFEES3FE10F
HATE A8 B RR AR S ©
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 15 HittFRBEE (&)

Notes: (continued) Biat - (&)

(b) Funds management contracts represent the contracts (b) HEEEBEANEAEBRRE =2017F
entered by a subsidiary acquired by the Group during NANALEFENEZMBEAR (RE
the year ended 31 December 2017. Beijing-Hebei Co- HREERSER(FL)ESEEER
development Exhibition Zone (Tangshan) Fund Management RA([REEXR])REWBAR)H
Co., Ltd. (“Jingji Capital”) and its subsidiaries with other HM AT 264 - ZEAHNERER
parties. The contracts granted the Group to manage the SEEEBRAREMITNTFEZEER
funds held on behalf of other contracting parties and WEEBRAERRBR SE1FZE10
receiving management income as return for 1 year to 10 - B S EEERAAR
years over which the cost will be amortised.

(c) Goodwill is allocated to the following cash generating units: (@) BEAIEEATREEEAET:

Shouzhong
Investment  Jingji Capital Urban Parking Total
BERRE REER EHEE @
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT BEFT
At 1 January 2017 ©2017F1R18 - - - -
Acquisitions of g 100N
subsidiaries (Note 30)  (#1:£30)
(Note (e)(i)) (Hizte)i)) 44,614 53,682 - 98,296
At 31 December 2017 72017F12A318 44,614 53,682 - 98,296
Acquisitions of WM B A )
subsidiaries (Note 30)  (##i£30)
(Note (e)(ii) (Bt e)i) - - 34,393 34,393
At 31 December 2018 2018 12A31H 44,614 53,682 34,393 132,689
(d) The balance mainly represents prepayment of expenditures (d) M T BIEEEEBE T ATETETF

for obtaining operating rights in respect of certain carpark
operating projects entered into with independent parties.

FEISKEHARSKERA 2 BN
FRIE -
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15

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Goodwill impairment assessment

(1)

Impairment testing on Shouzhong Investment

For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill as set out above with carrying amount of
HK$44,614,000 (2017: HK$44,614,000) has been
allocated to a cash generating unit ("CGU") in the
carpark operation segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from
Shouzhong Investment was determined based
on value in use calculations. The value in use
calculations used cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount
rate of 13% (2017: 13%). Cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
(2017: 3%) growth rate for this CGU.

The key assumptions are budgeted revenue,
discount rate and growth rate determined based
on the management’s expectations for the market
development.

No impairment on this CGU was made for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the
recoverable amounts, which were the value in
use, exceeded the carrying amount. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amount of the CGU.

15

HituERBEE (&)
HisE: (%)

(e) BB R AR

(1)

B 18 &l 18 7
RETRERG EXAEZ
2 7 R {E 8 #44,614,000
7t (20174 : B 44,614,000
TIEREBSEED DR
ERGELET ([REELE
jl) e

BEFREFMEENRESELE
BMA ke & EIRIEE
AEBENEEE FAEAE
ERAENEBEEMANTE
B TEE R13% (20174 :
13% )BARENE SRR
B -BAAFHZREAE
FRABERN3% (2017F :3%)
HRERHEE-

TERRARBEREZ TS
GRAEMET A WA B
EESETE

AU E S (AN EREE)
HEBEREE - UL R B E2018
FER2017F12A31B I EE
W BRI IR & B A B TR
B -EBFHEE ERZERRZ
EREEAEE BT 2 EH
BeEABETZRELERR
ReEFBET A REISHE-
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15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

For the goodwill relating to Urban Parking (Note
30(a)), the goodwill was determined provisionally
as at 31 December 2018. The directors considered
that no provision for impairment loss was necessary
as at 31 December 2018.

Impairment testing on Jingji Capital

For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill as set out above with carrying amount
of HK$53,682,000 (2017: HK$53,682,000) has
been allocated to CGU in the fund management
segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from
Jingji Capital was determined based on value in
use calculations. The value in use calculations use
cash flow projection based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year
period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15% (2017:
15%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017; 3%)
growth rate for this CGU. The key assumptions
are budgeted revenue, discount rate and growth
rate determined based on the management'’s
expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU was made for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the
recoverable amounts, which were the value in
use, exceeded the carrying amount. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amount of CGU.

15 HtFRBEE (£F)

Bst: (&)

(e) BWEREN A (F)

(i1)

(i)

REREEZEE (W
30(a)) i 5 - R Ty R20184F
12ABVBEERET -EER
A R2018% 128318 B7A
PR EE BRI E -

RE A E
RETHREAR EXREZ
8 2 AR E (B8 53,682,000
7t (20174 : B #53,682,000
TIERESEENBOIEES
REeELET-

REEAMEENRESELE
BEaxm A e e REE
AEBENEEE FAEAE
HRAENREEERAENRSF
HB B TEE R15% (20174 :
15% ) BRI IR EMIBE T2
BH-BAAFHZREAE
FABEMN3% (2017F :3%)
BEEREHE T Z2BRILARIE
EREsMBERERETEZ
TEEWA AR ERIERE.

BRI E S (AN EREE)
HEAEREE - LR EE2018
FR2017F12A31B I EE
W AE R IR & B A B TR R
B-EBFHBE ERZERZZ
EREEAEEB T EEH
BeELBETZRELERR
ReEFBET A REI&HE-
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16

17

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 REHESsz2E@MIA
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets EtREE
Financial assets at FVTL BAFEFABEZEHEE 494,350 387,516
Financial assets at amortised cost REBBRRAAR R EE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEREEBESEEY) 3,202,769 2,342,408
Financial liabilities tRERE
Financial liabilities at FVTL BAFESFABEZZERAE - 91,989
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IRE# &R AAR SR EE 226,753 643,050
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 17 FEHBRATE

The following is a list of the principal

subsidiaries at 31

TREHIIH20185F 128318 2 = B

December 2018: BAA:
Place of
incorporation
or registration/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share/ Principal
Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company activities
BRI/ BRTR ARRAREERTRG/
MEARER mEh EHERA AEMERLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE B3
2017 2018 2017
% % %
Shougang Concord Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - - Provision of management
Management £ Ordinary shares services
Company Limited #%100,0007T RUEERRY
ERMEEEFRAT Lk
Shougang Concord Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 100 Provision of management
Shipping Services Limited 9 Ordinary shares services
ERMERBER AT BT EER REEERSE
SCIT Services Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$1 - 100 100 Provision of management
Hong Kong Ordinary share services
RERXER/BE 1ETLAR RUEERSB
SCIT Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 100 Trading of iron ore
BEMEBZBRARA 5% Ordinary share ERRES

BEITERKR



17

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited
BEREBREEFRATE 325
Annual Report 2018 F 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n_\%zﬂsz%ﬁimqﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 FEWEAR (&)
Place of
incorporation
or registration/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share/ Principal
Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company activities
RIHER/ BETR ARNABEERTRE/
HEARER RE 2RERR & A TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE B
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
Shougang Concord Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 = - Provision of management
Services Limited 0 Ordinary shares services
BERREARAF BT REEERS
Shougang Concord Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Trading of iron ore
International Trading Limited ~ &7& Ordinary share EEAESH
ERERESHERAF BB
PERRERETEHRE (FIL) The PRC RMB266,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
EEEBRERNA f ARE management services
Jingji Capital &* 266,000,0007T RULEESERRE
BTREEEERAA The PRC RMB400,000,000 - - 100 44.94 Carpark operation
Shouzhong Investment ¢ f ARE FHEGEL
400,000,0007T
ERREAREELA The PRC - - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
1 NC f management services
RELEESEERD
TRERRRREEE The PRC RMB26,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
BRAR L H ARE management services
26,000,0007T RELBESEERY
BHRILREEEES The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
ERERDR L H AR management services
50,000,0007% RELBESERRY
EREEREEEBRAT 2" The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
H AR management services
5,000,0007C RELBESERRY
R BRE AR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 80 80 Provision of private fund
BRAR H AR management services
10,000,0007C RELBESERRY
RBERAEREREES The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 70 70 Provision of private fund
ERERDR L H AR management services
5,000,0007C RELBESERRY
ERETHEREEE The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 60 60 Provision of private fund
BRAR H AR management services

10,000,0007% RELEESERRS
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17 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17 FEHBLR (&)

Place of
incorporation
or registration/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share/ Principal
Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company activities
B RER BETR ARNABEERTRE/
WEARER B BHRRA & A TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE Bk
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
tRBRIREESSER The PRC RMB20,851,500 - - 80 35.95 Carpark operation
BRAA o ale ARE FEERE
20,851,5007C
HEGITEEEEFRAR 4 The PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 90 40.45 Carpark operation
i ARE FEERE
20,000,0007T
ERER S HEERER The PRC - - - 100 44.94 Carpark operation
BRAR 4 FE FEGEE
RBETHARESER The PRC RMBS,000,000 - = 100 100 Carpark operation
BRATE 2 FE AR FEHEE
5,000,0007T
PERBCEER The PRC RMB30,000,000 - - 100 - Education & training
=1 NCE FE AR ¥E RE
30,000,0007C
RBETEARES The PRC RMB300,000 - = 100 — Carpark operation
ERBRAF HE AR #300,0007 BESEE
BHOLREEER The PRC RMB1,110,000 - - 100 - Carpark operation
BRAR M FE AR® FEGEE
1,110,0007T
BH(ER)FEER The PRC RMB1,717,214 - - 100 - Carpark operation
BRAR M FE AR® FEGEE
1,717,214
XEEPREAREREES The PRC - - - 51 - Provision of private fund
ERBRRFN 3 management services
RELEESERRE
ERFET S RRESER The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100 - Carpark operation
BRAR M FE AR® FEGEE
5,000,0007T
XEEHR S HRERER The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100 - Carpark operation
BRAR M FE AR® FEGEE
5,000,0007T
o Limited company established in the PRC A RBEEKT Y ERSE AT
* For identification purpose only * &5

Subsidiaries under Jingji Capital Group
# Subsidiaries under Shouzhong Investment Group (Note)

REBAEEETHEAR
BRRESEBRTHEBAR (M)
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note: Shouzhong Investment is a subsidiary of the Group
although the Group has only approximately 44.94% equity
interest and voting rights in Shouzhong Investment as at 31
December 2017 as the directors of the Company concluded
that the Group has sufficiently dominate voting interest to
direct the relevant activities of Shouzhong Investment and is
able to exercise control over Shouzhong Investment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, there was no
subsidiary with non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

17

TEWBAR (E)

MizE: BRARARESERA AEEHEEEH
WEBRERRUIESEPRENERH
SEBNI A S R IR BT SR
BEFREAAEE—HNBAR &F
AEER2017F12A31BEHEEF
BB LIA4.94% R HE R R IFHE -

ERIHEBEERRTEFEAREES
FEEZARRBIMBRR -EFRR
RUEMBMBAR ZAHBHERFREB
JNIIE =

ZEWBRRRAFERPEEITER
EHES -

R2017F K2018F 128318 i &EE
R ESHAEEMEBERZHE

AR
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2018 which, in the opinion of the directors,
are material to the Group. The entities listed below
have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,

which

are held directly by the Group. The country of

incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is
the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

18(A) REFE R A 2 RE

AT &P AL BH2018F128318H 2
/N §$wﬁ&%®7ﬁ$%l

MEBEK TR ZEAERE
PR B AEEEERRA- &%"

Al Z MRS AMBERAARE 2 E
EEEME AR AR 2 LI ELAT

Rk

AR
ARRRIGE R ER

Proportion of issued

B ERR T ATA L FH

SRZHEPIRER -

%18

Principal shares/ registered
Place of place of Measurement capital held by Proportion of
Name of entity incorporation operation method the Group voting power held  Principal activities
KEBRAERATRY,/
ARER AMBRLLE FELEBY HEFE HEMER LA FEREREZLA IEEH
2017 2018 2017
Shougang Fushan Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 27.61% 27.61% 27.61% 27.61% Coking coal mining,
Resources Group N FE &% production and sale of
Limited (“Shougang coking coal products
Resources”) and side products
BREBLEREE ERAR LERHEEK
BRAAF EmREER
([ERER])
Shougang Century Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 35.71% 35.71% 35.71% 35.71% Manufacturing and sales
(Note) B i i oy of steel cords and
BERERE (M) processing and trading
of copper and brass
products
BERHEMRGRIAE
EFERMIRES
Note: On 21 November 2018, the Company announced that Fiat: H2018F 118218 A AR EMHE

it had entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Shougang Holding, the controlling shareholding company
of the Company, pursuant to which the Company had
conditionally agreed to sell, and Shougang Holding had
conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire equity interest
of Fair Union Holdings Limited (“Fair Union”) at a
consideration of HK$205,997,000 (the “Restructuring”).
As at the date of announcement, Fair Union holds, directly
and indirectly, approximately 35.71% in aggregate of the
entire issued share capital of Shougang Century.

The completion of the Restructuring is subject to approval
of the independent shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting.

AR ZER AR ERMERETLEE W
FOBKEAR Tﬁlﬂfﬁ‘mﬂnﬁjﬁﬁ
& 15 AR 7B {6 4 b [R) 2 B B Fair Union
Holdings Limited ([Fair Union]) 2~
2 E R R 1B R 1205,997,0007T
([E#]) - RZAEBEH - Fair Union
BEREKEEREEREESHEBRITR
KA U35 71 %S -

BHRBEARRABILRRABERE RS £
BAERTETEK-
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18(A) REEE AR 2 RE (&)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT JBE M F T
Cost of investments in associates REEE QN BIIRE 2 KA
— listed in Hong Kong —REELE™ 6,834,092 6,834,092
Share of post-acquisition losses B EEEBEER
and other comprehensive losses, Hi2mEEE -
impairment loss, WEEE IR EWRE
net of dividends received (1,601,767) (1,761,013)
5,232,325 5,073,079
Fair value of listed investments R EZRFE 2,455,274 2,628,374
Goodwill [

Included in the cost of investment in Shougang
Resources, associate of the Group, is goodwill
of approximately HK$1,048,488,000 (2017:
HK$1,048,488,000) arising from the acquisition of

REMHER(NEB2BERA) 2&
ERATRERAKREGNERMEE
2 B4 ¥ 1,048,488,0007T (2017
% : #¥1,048,488,0000T) - BB 2 #

Shougang Resources. The movement of goodwill is set FHEINMT -
out below.
HK$'000
BEFIT
Cost A
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 201741818 -2017F12A318 K&
31 December 2018 2018%F12A31H 2,257,169
Impairment R
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 201781818 2017F 128318 Kk
31 December 2018 201812 A31H 1,208,681
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 7201712 A31H &20185F12A31H 1,048,488
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Impairment assessment

No impairment loss has been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil) in respect of the
interest in Shougang Resources with carrying amount
of HK$4,821,128,000 (2017: HK$4,634,344,000) after
considering that the recoverable amount of Shougang
Resources is higher than the respective carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of the interest in Shougang
Resources has been determined by calculating the value
in use of the investment. For impairment purpose, the
management estimates the Group’s share of Shougang
Resources’ future cash flows which are based on the
financial budgets attributable to the equity interest
of the Group approved by management covering a
5-year period and using a pre-tax discount rate of 12%
(2017: 12.88%), and the cash flows beyond 5 years
are extrapolated using a zero terminal growth rate.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of future cash inflows which
include revenue growth rates and gross margin. Such
estimation is based on the associate’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

18(A) REEE AR 2 RE (&)

WAE R
KERFHMER 2 ATRESESKAE
JERRE £ 7 %E  NEE20185F 12431
BEFE CYERGMERER ZER®
BE/5%4,821,128,0007T (20174 :
4,634,344,0007T ) MR BB KB (2017
FE®) - REMERERZTHE S
BEERFTEREZFEREEEE
RBEBNSMES BEEBAEMERY
BHEEAREEBMEBEMEMDEARRS
FORER WFEMR12%0FHATEIR X
(20174 :12.88% ) ' EBHSFMNIRE 7
BREKBREREEE -ABEFESE
ZEMFEBRZERRBEESRAMTE
B EPERRABEERRERNE M
BRAMTIREBEZBERFABERAR
EEEEMSEECENAEE.
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment in
Shougang Century amounted to HK$411,197,000
(2017: HK$438,735,000) is also tested for impairment
in entirety in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing the respective
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the
Group’'s investment in Shougang Century has been
determined by calculating the value in use of the
investment. The management estimates the Group's
share of Shougang Century's future cash flows which are
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period at
a discount rate of 11.60% (2017: 11.30% to 11.82%).
The parameters adopted in Shougang Century's cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated with
zero terminal growth rate. Other key assumptions for
the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
future cash inflows which include revenue growth rates,
gross margin and probability of disposal, such estimation
is based on the management’s expectations for the
market development.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the recoverable
amounts of Shougang Resources and Shougang Century
are higher than the carrying amounts and thus no
impairment loss is recognised regarding the Group's
investments in Shougang Resources and Shougang
Century.

18(A) REEE AR 2 RE (&)

WA (2)
AEBREREEZREEARE
7S #411,197,00070 (20174 : B ¥
438,735,0007T) N ERBEB A E
A6 REEREBEIERE —EEDEE
TRERR - FEREE R P E & 58
ETER - AEBREREEZREZ
RSB FEBTERECEAER
ET - ERERBRENFHUBKEE
LABEIR E11.60% (2017 1 11.30% =
11.82% ) s A EEEEEREEZR
RKEERE-REREEMS BHER
SHRANFHERTKELEREERE -
TEEREAEZHEMFEREZEGER
KEeRAFH HERFRKRAERE.
ERERHEFTEN  BERGETIIRE
BERBEMISERAEN-

20184 K2017F12A31H Bl &
BREREEZUWESESSRET
B AEAERTEFREHEREE
REGEZHRERRBERE-
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18A) R & NTI 2 IRE (&)

Summarised financial information of material FTEBRENTMEERBE
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of EAASESTIEMERNRCYHE
the Group's material associates is set out below. The BEEZHINMT - THHBERBIEIE
summarised financial information below represents GFENRIRBEAEVBREENRR 2
amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements MBERERITEE ELEERDETE
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. They have been A1 DA MR &2 B 1 30 A R 2 VA B T A
amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group MR BEHeBREEENEIE-

when using the equity method, including modifications
for differences in accounting policy.

(i) Shougang Resources (i) B &R
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Current assets mEEE 7,395,292 7,631,105
Non-current assets FEMEEE 13,855,750 14,063,540
Current liabilities mEEE 2,868,700 2,661,400
Non-current liabilities EREEaE 1,606,536 1,657,562
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue =3 3,686,176 3,471,922
Profit for the year FEmF 1,151,928 1,182,584
Profit for the year attributable to  Hil B R#EHR A
owners of Shougang Resources JE 1k F E )i 7 1,100,488 1,080,649
Other comprehensive (loss)/income F & & 2 H
for the year (BR) M= (561,275) 879,059
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENRETE
for the year 590,653 2,061,643
Dividends received from the FEDWEZERRIRE

associate during the year 319,117 87,838
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18A) R E AT 2 IRE (&)

Summarised financial information of material FTEBRELATMBEERBE (£)

associates (continued)

(i)  Shougang Resources (continued) () EHER (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt E R B BRAR S B
information to the carrying amount of the interest KABRREE AR 2 ERRE
in the associate recognised in the consolidated B2

financial statements:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Net assets of Shougang Resources & il & 5 % & & 16,775,806 17,375,683
Non-controlling interests FEE R (1,391,690) (1,440,871)
15,384,116 15,934,812
Proportion of the Group's REBRERERZ
ownership interest in BB RS L
Shougang Resources 27.61% 27.61%
4,247,555 4,399,602
Effect of fair value adjustments RKRBREAFEAEZ
at acquisition o (355,234) (329,852)
Goodwill kS 1,048,488 1,048,488
Other adjustments H b % (119,681) (483,894)

Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBREMEREZRZ
interest in Shougang Resources BREE 4,821,128 4,634,344
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of material

associates (continued)

18(A) REEE AR 2 RE (&)

IRBRENAMBENYRE (&)

(i)  Shougang Century (i) EBREE
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current assets MEEE 2,112,075 2,007,373
Non-current assets EREBEE 1,154,794 1,313,844
Current liabilities mEBaE 1,776,727 1,706,893
Non-current liabilities IERBEE 298,590 345,655
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue R 2,254,170 2,113,258
Loss for the year FEEIE (8,681) (68,518)
Loss for the year attributable to BEREEHE A
owners of Shougang Century B FEEE (8,681) (68,518)
Other comprehensive (losses)/income FE H 2 (EE)
for the year Uz (68,436) 141,619
Total comprehensive (losses)/income FE 2 (&)
for the year W s 4858 (77,117) 73,101
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Summarised financial information of material

associates (continued)

(i)  Shougang Century (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

18A) R E AT 2 IRE (&)
FTEHEATNKERME (£)

(i) EREMF(E)
LB E MR RS MR
RAERNEE AP 2 B iRE

in the associate recognised in the consolidated B2
financial statements:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB FT BT T
Net assets of Shougang Century BEZEEFEE 1,191,552 1,268,669
Proportion of the Group's REBREREEZ
ownership interest ARSI
in Shougang Century 35.71% 35.71%
425,504 453,042
Share option reserve BRI (10,671) (10,671)
Other adjustments Hh A% (3.636) (3,636)
Carrying amount of the Group’'s A£BEREREE#EZZ
interest in Shougang Century RMEE 411,197 438,735
18(B) INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18B) R—REERAZKRE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of investment in a joint R—RKEERAZREKA
venture
Unlisted investment FLEWIRE 81,299 81,299
Share of post-acquisition results BEWBEREZEZER
and other comprehensive income, — Hfth & HE Uk 25
net of dividends received (MR B WERE) S A5E =
Exchange difference b 5 = 28 (4,336) -
80,216 81,299
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18(B) INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at

31 December 2018. The country of incorporation or

registration is also their principal place of business, and

the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the

proportion of voting rights held.

18(B) A —

=

REERAZRE (&

AT S5 A EBER2018F12A318 2
BB QA ZERRAIKILLEMBEARIN
AREZ X ELE M AR AR
Z L BIE R IR A 2 L BIAE R -

Proportion of issued

Principal shares/registered
Place of place of Measurement capital held by Proportion of
Name of entity incorporation operation method the Group voting power held  Principal activities
ARARBEERITRG/
ARER A it 2 TEREHY HEHE AEME XL BERE#ZLA FEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018F 20176 2018F  2017F
Beijing Shouzhong Car  The PRC The PRC Equity method 48.13% 48.13% 48.13% 48.13% Carpark management
Parking Management 1B FE &% services
Company Limited 2 FHEEERS
(Note)
TREGEEER
BRAFL
(Hizt)
g Limited company established in the PRC. e RAPBKZZEREERA
Note: Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking Management Co., it tREPEFEEEERAR([EHFE

Limited (“Shouzhong Parking”) is held by Shouzhong
Investment and became a joint venture of the Group upon
the acquisition of Shouzhong Investment as disclosed
in Note 30 (c). Accordingly, the Group indirectly owns
approximately 48.13% equity interest in Shouzhong
Parking. Pursuant to certain terms and conditions given in
the equity owners' agreement, the financial and operating
policies of Shouzhong Parking require approval from all
equity owners. Shouzhong Parking is jointly controlled by
the Group and another equity owner and, as such, it is
accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

On 30 December 2018, the Company announced that
it had entered into a capital increase agreement with
Shougang Fund and other parties, pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to contribute RMB76,000,000 to the
registered capital of Shouzhong Parking, a joint venture
of the Group (the “Capital Increase”). Upon completion
of the Capital Increase, the equity interest in Shouzhong
Parking held by the Group will increase from 48.13% to
66.0% upon the completion.

BE)BAEPREFBITRKESEHRE
BERKARNEBEZEE QR (MHE
30()FTIEER) AL - ASEHERS
B EENAISI3% B E-RIEESE
BEABZEASZE TERRGEE  &F
FEZHMEREEBRACTBERE
EAE-BFREEHASERS —F
HaEA ALRES  AERARSE
Bz —REERAA-

MR2018F12A30H  ARBEMHEE
HERMESREMITAOFILIEER
FOBYE AEERERAAEEEE
AREFEEZEMEAEEARE
76,000,000 ([ &) - BETK
B AEEREZEREEZREER
TEAK 1% FR48.13% I 15 66.0% °
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18(B) INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

Note: (continued)

Upon the completion of the Capital Increase which is
subject to approval of the independent shareholders of the
Company at a general meeting. Shouzhong Parking will

become a subsidiary of the Group.

Commitments in respect of joint venture

18(B) R—REERAZRE (£&)

Hiaz: (&)
RIEETER (REAR BB IR N K

RRELHMERDAFER)E EFE
B A A AR B E R A

BHAE R RMA

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BB FT
Commitment to provide fund 1R E & HEFE
or joint venture's capital BERNRERNEGE
commitment - -
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Cost of investment in a joint venture R—RAE QAR ZIKRERAR
Unlisted investment REMKE 81,299 81,299
Share of post-acquisition results BMOWErE EER
and other comprehensive income, HEth2mEia
net of dividends received (MBREUERE (1,083) -
80,216 81,299
Summarised financial information of joint BELNRMBERBE

venture

Summarised financial information of Shouzhong Parking
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

BEREEZUBEMMEHIIMT T
M2 EEMRBREREEEVBRE
EHRE B ERBMBRERATZE
B

S EDRRAERENLERA U B
LN T
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18(B) INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)

Summarised financial information of joint

venture (continued)

18(B) A —

REELTAZRE (&)

BEQNRAMBENRE (&)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEBT T
Current assets B EE 62,761 4,928
Non-current assets ERBEE 545,996 265,630
Current liabilities mEAE 28,250 758
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE 413,842 100,867
The above amounts of assets and tHEENEBESHEORE
liabilities include the following: LTRA:
Cash and cash equivalents BehkBeEFEEY 2,629 2,557
Current financial liabilities mETRAE
(excluding trade and other (TBEREEFREZRKE
payables and provisions) o fth < SR IE M ) 27,144 =
Non-current financial liabilities B emAasE
(excluding trade and other (TBEREEFREZRKE
payables and provisions) H b i < FR00E M B ) - 100,867
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LAl BA RS E R E ,Z?/.:.\Hﬁkﬁ&ﬁmﬁ

information to the carrying amount of the interest in the

BEEFDEER EAE\%/ Al Z

joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial EE 2SR :
statements using the equity method of accounting is as
follow:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Net assets of the joint venture BENRFEE 166,665 168,933
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZAEBREGE QR Z
investment in joint venture BEEER 48.13% 48.13%

Carrying amount of the Group's
investment in joint venture

AEEREERAEREZ

FREE

80,216 81,299
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL):

debt investments that do not qualify for
measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI;

equity investments that are held for trading, and

equity investments for which the entity has not

19

BAFEFABRZEHEE

AEEBLTERMEESEARATE
SRR SRARE:

PRHENIRERK AT ESHIRR
FEFAEMEEmKES ZEBE
‘&

BEXSH2RAEE : &

REIEERBATEFAEME

elected to recognise fair value gains and losses AR ARG E -
through OCI.
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted equity securities (Note a) FELEMBRAES (Kita) 195,416 121,596
Current assets REBEE
Wealth management products (Note b) BB E f (#1itb) 106,399 114,676
Iron ore future/swap contracts (Note ¢) #iEAES HHAE L
(Kratc) 38,917 =
145,316 114,676

Note a:

Note b

Note c:

It represents unlisted investment funds. The Group has
interests in these investment funds and these are also
under the Group’s management or advisory and from which
it earns fees from investment management or advisory
activities and fund distribution activities.

It represents the wealth investment products issued by
banks with interests at floating rates ranging from 2.30%
to 4.15% (2017: 3.20% to 3.75%) per annum and will
mature within one year.

It represents future/swap contracts on iron ore price traded
on active market. Fair value change on these contracts
amounted to HK$27,172,000 (2017: HK$14,719,000) is
recognised in the cost of sales.

Hita

Mizb -

HriEc

HiEFEMBREBE - ARERZERE
BehBERED MZEELTEAR
SEMNEE RN BRIREEE K
BRIZBRESHELDTESE
e

RATFEGFABR SREEREN
T2.30%%4.15% (20174 :3.20%
F3T75% )2 FHFENEHE T2
BMREER BN —F NI -

HiERERMISEENHBEAERDY
BREBHAN - ZEANNATE
B B #27,172,0007T (20174 ¢
75 %14,719,0007T ) 7R 88 & AK A8

7
e
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20

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND

BYRRERERENRE - BE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER Rk H e IR
RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEMT T
Trade and bills receivables AR R R E & 130,808 851,179
Less: Provision for impairment losses 3 : J8i{E 5 18 5 1§ (13,577) (27,475)
117,231 823,704
Prepayments and deposits FERNRERIZS 48,798 66,548
Value added tax recoverable AJ Y [B] 1 (E 9,110 3,806
Other receivables E e W 3kIE 5,985 4,248
63,893 74,602
181,124 898,306

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 90
to 180 days as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 90 to
180 days). The maturity periods of bills receivables

are normally 90 to 180 days as at 31 December 2018

(2017: 90 to 180 days). The following are aging analysis

of trade and bills receivables net of provision for

impairment losses presented based on the invoice date

at the end of the reporting period, which approximate

the respective revenue recognition dates:

72018F 128318 EREER ZZEH
— /% R90Z180H (20174 : 90E180
H) -7M2018F12A31H BKWEE 2
E|HRHA R — A% B90Z=180H (20174 ¢
90£180H ) - EWERFZ KT (0K R
EEBEEG RBREHERSRIEZHESE
BE (REEHEXH o BRBBEE)

22RO

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

EBEFIT BETT

Within 60 days 608 A 117,231 777,169
61 - 90 days 61%290H = 34,181
91 - 180 days 91£180H - 8,712
181 — 365 days 181&365H = 3,642
117,231 823,704
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Due to the short-term nature of the trade and bills
receivables, their carrying amounts are considered to be
the same as their fair value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
Movement in the provision for impairment losses for
trade and bills receivables is as follow:

20

YRR RERENRE - BE
REMERRE (&)

HREEERAEREBREMTE &
FREERESEEAFERRF-

AEERBEBMBREEREIRG
e EZERBEEER RAARK
BRRERREEREBBREE  BURN
RERBZREBERE ZZEE
T

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T JEBTF T

At 1 January R1A1H 27,475 2,248
(Reversal of provision for)/ HE (BERE),

provision for impairment losses B (13,898) 25,227

At 31 December ®12H31H 13,577 27,475

The entire balance of the provision for impairment
losses for trade and bills receivables with an aggregate
amount of HK$13,577,000 (2017: HK$27,475,000) are
individually impaired trade receivables.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

BRERREEZ BREBERE A
ER&HBALLEABK13,577,0000T
(20174 : B¥27,475,0007T ) A& B
B2 EUER -

HipEUGRIASG R EER 28 RAR
BEHBRRES —FAEER-
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21 BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 21 EHEBEBATRIRBEE QAT Z&R

AND ASSOCIATES

The amounts due from related companies and associates 20184 Kk2017412H318 & T #
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand as BARIRBE AT ZRIBRERT &
at 31 December 2018 and 2017. BRRAEERER-

22  ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RELATING TO 22 EHEEREHNZEE/(8f#E)

COMMODITY CONTRACTS

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000
BB FT JBE M TF T
Assets relating to ERREREYEE
commodity contracts
First Commodity Contracts 2l *'Eﬁr#bwibﬁéz
classified as non-current asset —MEmE Y
(Notes a) (/fm‘fa) 150,193 151,244
Second Commodity Contracts with EMGIRT MDA
MGI classified as non-current asset FERBEEZ
(Note b) EOHERED
(Htitb) 3,425 -
153,618 151,244
Liabilities relating to FREmEZaE
commodity contracts
Second Commodity Contract with A MGIE] 3 K
MGl (Note b) E_PBE@mEL
(Ki#tb) - (18,853)
Third Commodity Contract classified DERRPDEBEZE=H
as current liability (Note ¢) Ema i (KFatc) - (73,136)

(91,989)
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ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RELATING TO 22 ERBMENZEE/ (8HE)

COMMODITY CONTRACTS (continued) (&

Notes: M at -

(a) In November 2008, the Company entered into the (a) MR2008F 11 H AR A EMount
commodity contracts (the “First Commodity Contracts”) Gibson Iron Limited ([MGI )T 3/
with Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“MGI") to purchase iron BEN([F—BEREN])UNEREE
ore at the forward price. The forward price is determined RESHEA EHERDI2RLRXE
with reference to Platts Iron Ore Price. A B MmEE -

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the major terms of the 20184 K%2017412A31H A2 A
outstanding First Commodity Contracts entered by the BMGIETZ AR E—HEREHN.Z
Company with MGl are as follows: FEBFEROT :
Notional amount Period Forward price
EREH B EHER
Purchase approximately 80% 1 November 2010 to the life Platts Iron Ore Prices less operating adjustments
of total production of a relevant of the relevant mine and marketing commission for lump and fine
mine in Australia 201011 A1B8 & ore products per dead weight metric tonne
B8 — RN AR L PR BATE L AT {5 FR 4 HA BFERAMRBERMEZ EREBEABKREE
HWEEXI80% HERTSERERD
On 24 October 2014, MGI announced that there was 20149107240  MGIE #iKoolan
a slump in the Main Pit seawall in Koolan Island and Islandz =2 LR B &R L
Main Pit was inundated as a result of the breach of the Z R OB EERILBIEKER - 5
seawall. Subsequent to the Slump, the production of the 1& > Koolan Islandf& I 2 &£ E 28 -
Koolan Island mine was suspended. MGI has restarted the 2019 HIMGIE E /i Koolan Islandf& L
production of Koolan Island mine in early 2019 and it is ZHE  FRATHR2019%5F L FIREH
expected to resume iron ore sales in the first half of 2019. BEHE-
As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the First M2018F12A31A  E—HAmA K
Commodity Contracts was determined by the directors ZAFETHESE2EMARKE L E
with reference to a valuation report carried out by Flagship MEZBUAERBEXMGEMBEEE
Appraisals and Consulting Limited (2017: Greater China EFEEEARAR (20174  REF
Appraisal Limited), an independent qualified professional BEERRAR)ZHERERMERT &
valuer not connected with the Group and the fair value is DF{E#) 78 %150,193,0007T (2017
approximately HK$150,193,000 (2017: HK$151,244,000). 4 : #5#151,244,0007T) - REZ2018
For the year ended 31 December 2018, a loss of F1RANALEFE ERGRE2E RS
HK$1,051,000 (2017: HK$30,472,000) has been recognised 7% P TSR B 1B 5 151,051,000 (2017

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. % : }£%30,472,0007T) °
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22

ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RELATING TO
COMMODITY CONTRACTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

In December 2016, the Group has entered into another
commodity contract (the “Second Commodity Contract”)
in relation to the production of iron ore in Iron Hill with
MGI. Pursuant to the Second Commodity Contract, the
Group is entitled to a discount on the purchase of the pre-
agreed quantity of iron ore within one year from the date of
the first shipment.

In December 2017, the Group renewed the commodity
contract to extend the contract term to the life of the
relevant mine.

The major terms of the Second Commodity Contract
entered by the Group with MGl are as follows:

22

ERBmaNZEE/ (BF)
(&

i (&)

(b) 20165128 - NEE B AEMGIET
S AEBlon HIEEZ Z— BSR4
H(E=—EREN]) - BEFE=H
BARmAH AEEAEMEEAHMAS
B—FRARRBELHERECEHER
AIEZYH -

R2017F 127 AEEEEERA LA
ERGTHEELAIERFHZAOH
B o

AEEEMGRIZE —HERANZ
TEFFMT

Forward price

EHER

Notional amount Period

EESH Ll

Purchase approximately 23% of 20 December 2017 to life of
total production of a relevant relevant mine
mine in Australia

BB — (BRI AE RR R 1L #2017412H208 &
HMESL23% AR 1Ly AT 5 PR A R

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Second
Commodity Contract was determined by the directors with
reference to a valuation report carried out by Flagship
Appraisals and Consulting Limited (2017: Greater China
Appraisal Limited), an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group and the fair
value is HK$1,637,000 (2017: negative fair value of
HK$18,853,000). For the year ended 31 December 2018,
a gain of HK$22,278,000 (2017: loss of HK$18,853,000)
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Platts Iron Ore Prices less operating adjustments
and marketing commission for lump and fines
ore products per dead weight metric tonne

BFEAMRBERNB L EXEBREAEBREEE
RAEERTSHEERRS

HR2018F12A31R  F_MERAEY
ZAFENREEELERAEBUE
MECBYAEREXMEMERE
EFHBEBRERAR (20174F ZE#F
BERAR) ZHERERETMATF
B 5 7%5%1,637,0000T (2017F B R
F{H 7% #18,853,0007T) ° & £20184F
12A318LEFE - Yz #%22,278,000
70 (20174 : 518 7% % 18,853,0007T)
KA 2ARERFEER
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ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RELATING TO
COMMODITY CONTRACTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0

In December 2016, the Group has entered into another
commodity contract (“Third Commodity Contract”) with
an independent third party and committed to purchase a
certain quantity of iron ore at a price calculated which is
based on Platts Iron Ore Price Index. The major terms of
this commodity contract entered by the Group with the
independent third party are as follows:

22

ERBmaNZEE/ (BF)
(&

Wiz (%)

(c) 20165128 AEBR—FEIE=
FALS—hEReEN([E=0ER
ER])  AFREREEABRIEEGT
BrERBEEETHEZEBA K&
BEZEBLE =N AERAN
ZEEBRRMAT

Forward price

EHER

Notional amount Period

EELHE Ll

Purchase approximately 800,000 1 January 2017 to
metric tonne of a relevant mine 31 December 2017
in Australia M2017F1 AR ZE

88 — {EDEOM A8 B LU 4 2017412 A318

800,000 Wi

The Third Commodity Contract expired on 31 December
2017 and a provision for loss of approximately
HK$73,136,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in 2017 as determined
by the directors’ estimation. During the year, the Group
negotiated with the independent third party and reached
an agreement on the settlement amount of this commodity
contract at HK$49,650,000. Such amount was settled
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and provision
for loss of HK$23,486,000 was reversed and recognised as
changes in fair value of commodity forward contracts in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the year.

RESTRICTED AND BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the restricted
bank deposits represent bank deposits restricted by

certain banks to secure the issuance of letters of

credit. The restricted bank deposits amounting to
HK$2,036,000 (2017: HK$618,000) will be released
upon the settlement of the letters of credit, which will

be within twelve months from the end of the reporting

period and are therefore classified as current assets. The
restricted deposits as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
are denominated in USD.

23

Platts Iron Ore Prices plus freight cost and
agent fee
TRABABEMEERRESE

E=ZME@mAEHNR2017F12A318
B w2017 F R EEHAETEZ
GERERRRPEERBIEREY
73,136,000 - RAFE A&
EHRBYE=FERERTE RS
AEZAMAHNNNEEEALEE
49,650,000 - B AL REENEE2018
F1I2ANBIEFEXNMBEBERE
523,486,000 7T Y 4 1 1€ 1 B 07 AN
ERAEERERNERAE MRS
Wz ATFEES-

ZRHEBITER

20184 K2017F 128318 Rl
RITERERAEERAEMXE TR
IR 2 BAITIE R - STPR H 17 3R B
2,036,0007T (20174 : # #618,000
TL)BRBREPERFRT T 2EAR
EERMEEERRER BLtoEAR
BEE - XRFITFHRN2018F &2017F
12A31B 5 AETaHE -
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24

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND TIME 24 HRITEERBESUREZHBEA
DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY ZSEBULZEBRER

OVER THREE MONTHS

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREFERS 3,034,026 1,389,628

Short-term bank deposits less
than 3 months

= @A AR 2 K HISR 1T 17 5K
- 100,000

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
B FT BT T
Bank balances and cash and time RITEF MRS URERERREA
deposits with original maturity over ABZEAUNEZ FHER
three months are denominated A5 EEESE
in the following currencies:
RMB AR 182,416 169,746
HK$ B TT 635,718 422,305
usD ETT 2,215,770 897,577
Others HAt 122 =
3,034,026 1,489,628
The time deposits carry interest at market rates which EHRERMENE BN F1.50%F
range from 1.50% to 3.50% (2017: 0.05% to 2.25%) 3.50% (20174 : 0.05% %F2.25% ) Z

per annum.

MHFEREHR -
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SHARE CAPITAL

25 RKX

Number of share

Share capital

ignp ¢ & A<
'000 HK$'000
TR BET R
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: BXETROCHZLER:
At 31 December 2016 720165 12831H 8,957,896 5,345,183
Issue of new shares on 16 November 2017  72017%11A16H
(Note a) BTk, (Mista) 8,957,896 2,015,527
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITHROEER HKA
new shares - (11,165)
At 31 December 2017 2017512 H318 17,915,792 7,349,545
Issue of new shares on 26 March 2018 72018F3H26H
(Note b) BITHRG (Mb) 1,047,931 227,401
Issue of new shares on 19 September 2018 #2018F9 A 198 Z1T# B 1
(Note ¢) (FtEc) 4,903,742 1,225,935
Issue of new shares on 28 December 2018 72018412 A28H
(Note d) BITHARG (PEd) 177,426 34,775
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BOMBRHEERZHA
new shares (Note ) (BigzEC) - (7,227)
At 31 December 2018 12018%F12831H 24,044,891 8,830,429

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

On 16 November 2017, the Company issued 8,957,896,227
open offer shares at the subscription price of HK$0.225
per open offer share (the “Open Offer”). The total
net proceeds of approximately HK$2,004,362,000 had
resulted an increase in share capital of approximately
HK$2,004,362,000.

On 26 March 2018, the Company issued 1,047,931,056
shares as a part of the consideration for the acquisition
of 44.95% equity interest of Shouzhong Investment, a
subsidiary of Group at the closing market price on the
transaction completion date of HK$0.217 per share (Note

31(a)).

On 19 September 2018, the Company allotted and issued
2,800,000,000, 600,000,000 and 1,503,741,731 shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.250 per share to Jingxi
Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of Shougang Fund), Rocket
Parade Limited and ORIX Asia Capital Limited, respectively.
The total net proceeds of approximately HK$1,218,708,000
has resulted an increase in share capital of approximately
HK$1,218,708,000.

On 28 December 2018, the Company allotted and issued
177,425,528 shares as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of 100% equity interest of Urban Parking at the
share price per share of HK$0.196 (Note 30(a)).

B sEa -

b

Mz

Pidstd :

M2017F 118168 AR AT
8,957,896,227 AR EHE K n  RE
ERABRAMBEERME0225T
(IDBERE]) -FBEFEFHELED
7 #2,004,362,0007T & 5% A 3
#)7%2,004,362,0007T °

R2018%3H26H KA FRKKZ 5 5%
KEHHETESRER217TZ
RS BT EE171,047,931,056
B IERKEREENRERREF
B E44.95% R 2 52 KB (M :E
31(a)) °

R2018F9A19R AR AR ERE
BO250m 2  RBEBAREZERE
RAR (EMESL2Z27)  Rocket
Parade Limited R BX h Lt MEREGR
A A7 Bl BE % K % 172,800,000,000
f% - 600,000,000% % 1,503,741,731
BRD -FMERBEFELEBEANERE
1,218,708,0007T B B i AN 38 A 40 75
#1,218,708,0007T °

MN2018F 128288 AR AR E
RE®0.196T 2 RE R H REAT
177,425,528 fx 17 - {E A = 5
FHEI100%REZD S HRE (K
30(a)) °
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26

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES, PROVISION AND ACCRUED
LIABILITIES

26

EARAR RS HMEARKE-
BEREFREE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT JBEMTF T
Trade and bills payables ERERRERER 61,379 569,191
Accruals fEstE A 28,601 20,720
Other payables H b B 5RIB 46,119 75,175
74,720 95,895
136,099 665,086

The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills
payables presented based on the invoice dates at the
end of the reporting period:

RESHRERE REZRAH25 2
ENEARERBEZREDTWOT :

As at 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BB T
Within 90 days 90H W 61,379 567,082
91—180 days 91%180H = 2,109
61,379 569,191

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that most of the payables are within
the credit timeframe.

REEMZFHEEHNR0A - AEHE
& B B L B B TR R A RE AR KR ) &
NHRBEERNEERARA -
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BORROWINGS 27 RITER
Bank borrowing Other borrowing Total
RITHEN Hit B R @zt
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000

BETT EETT BEFr EETT BEFT BT

Repayable within one year and

AR—FREER

shown under current liabilities REBEEETIR 34,827 = 68,316 - 103,143 =
Secured HHEA - - 68316 - 68316 -
Unsecured EH A 34,827 = = - 34,827 =

34,827 - 68,316 - 103,143 -

The exposure of the variable-rate borrowing is as
follows:

P2 F BB MT

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BB F T
Variable-rate borrowing FEER
Within one year or contain a —FANKHEE
repayment on demand clause ESRIEE BN 34,827 =

In 2018, the variable-rate bank borrowing of
approximately HK$34.8 million which carry interest at
the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus a
range of 1.8% to 3.5% per annum, which ranged from
2.16% to 4.27% per annum. The bank borrowings are
guaranteed by the corporate guarantee of the Company.

The borrowings were denominated in USD.

Other borrowing represents HK$73,740,000 of
borrowing under a financing arrangement entered into
by the Group with a related party in the form of a sale
and leaseback transaction with a repurchase option.
The subject sold and leased back under the financing
arrangement is an investment property of the Group.
As the repurchase price is set at RMB1 which is minimal
compared to the expected fair value and the Group is
certain that it will exercise the repurchase option, the
above financing arrangement has been accounted for
as collateralised borrowing of the Group. The average
effective interest rate of the arrangement for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is 5.5% per annum.

R2018F - F BIRITEBRO B
34,800,000 fm BIR TR EF 2
((RBRTAEFRE])MFENT
1.8%ZE3.5% (AN FFE2.16%=E
4.27% ) *RITERTIAR QB KR A
BRIEER-

BIRTIAETTEHE -

E M8 FRIE AN 5 B B — 2 B HE U5 AR 7
BOERERNERBERRZMEILEE
ZHEIE T Z & 3B #73,740,0007T ° 1R
BRELTHERAR 2 ZENDERER
ZEREME BRERBERER/ARE
170 (BB AFEmMSMTEMN) B
NEBBETEASTHEBEEERE KL
BMELRHEARIBAEE 2 BRBER -
REE2018F12A31BILFE » L5t
ZEHERFFEAB5.5% o
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28

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 REFFBH
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REEHBRRARZEVME  BHTE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax EHEEERABEELEE UTRIE
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is ERIBEEG 2D UIEMEHRE A
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial e
reporting purposes:
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Deferred tax assets EIERIEE E - (35,212)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAGRE 29,633 25,174
29,633 (10,038)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/ UWTARAERNTFEERRBLEZR
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the ERHIBEE(BE)RHEZE:
current and prior year:
Fair value
Fair value Fair value  adjustment
adjustment  adjustment  of financial ~ Unrealised
and of other assets at loss of
revaluation  non-current FVPL - equity
of properties assets  non-current instruments Tax losses Total
RATE
Hit  FARHEZ
VIEA FRE SHER
AFERE Bz -¥RBz RAIAZ
REff ATEAE ATEEE  £2BREFE HEEE st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 ®201741 418 614 - - (32,291) (614) (32,291)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 30) U &5 B2 & (M #30) - 21,224 3,950 - = 25,174
Exchange differences ERESE - - - (2,921) - (2,921)
At 31 December 2017 R2017412A31H 614 21,224 3,950 (35,212) (614) (10,038)
Charged to statement of REEKERNR
comprehensive income 1,914 (3,539) 2,348 - (50) 673
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WM B AR
(Note 30) (B30 - - 3,786 - = 3,786
Realisation of gain from disposal of 3 —EE & A )
FVOCI to an associate HERATEFA
EthzENE 2 hE = S S 31,837 S 31,837
Exchange differences ERER - - - 3,375 - 3,375
At 31 December 2018 20185124310 2,528 17,685 10,084 = (664) 29,633
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$568 million (2017: HK$519
million), of which HK$308 million (2017: HK$316
million) is subject to IRD’s confirmation. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$4 million of such losses for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the HK$564 million (2017:
HK$515 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Except for tax losses of HK$92
million (2017: HK$35 million) will be expired in 5 years,
such tax losses do not have expiry date.

DIVIDENDS

On 26 March 2019, the Board has recommended a
final dividend in the total amount of HK$700 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
Based on the enlarged total number of issued shares
of 27,428,933,903 shares of the Company immediately
following the completion of the subscriptions of shares
pursuant to the subscription agreements announced by
the Company on 19 March 2019, such a final dividend
would amount to HK2.55 cents per share. The final
dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed after 31 December 2018 has not been
recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2018.

28

29

ELEFREH (F)

20185128318 AEERBAHB
EE X BB E568E T (2017F : B
5.19(870) - AP A ¥3.0818 T (2017
FBEBEII6ET) BRI BERE
B H E20184F M2017F12A318 1t
FE BRZSERPLOEK0.04ET

RIECERIEEE - AR EETERIRK
s F R A 4 BE B #E5.6418 7T (2017
F S ISEI) BHEBBERELT
MEEE-BRHEEBEASBK0I2IET
(20174 : BH¥035E L) BRAFAE
HiSh BB BT & A -

R E

2019 3A26H B EAREE
E2018F12A3B IEFEARPHEA
HABETET (20175 ) - RIFEAQF]
MR201963 198 R EMREHE %
ZRERERMD THE AR RLEAE
TR 17 42 $27,428,933,903 /% + 5% K Ef
f& B # B ERR2.558 1l ;2 RHAR 878
FREERITZREAFAE LRER
HHb A - A2018FE12 A3 1B &R 2K
HARR BR2018F 12 A3MB Y AR A
B8&E-
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION 30 XEBEH
(a) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in (@) MR22018FWEEHFEEZ

Urban Parking in 2018 100% 1 2

On 1 November 2018, the Group entered into MR2018F11 AR AEEET
a sale and purchase agreement with Urban WIFESERAERAR (—HE
Parking Limited, a limited liability company BB ZBREMERREIL
established in Hong Kong, to acquire 100% of —HEEHZE WKEEHFE
the equity interest in Urban Parking, a limited (—HEEFREKZZBEREER
liability company established in the PRC. The a]) 2 100% A% # - 2 X W R
acquisition was completed on 28 December 2018. 2018F 12 A28H %K - BH(=E
The principal activity of Urban Parking and its LEWBAR (REAISHE
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Urban BHEE]) v EXBFRREHEES
Parking Group"”) is provision of the management BEBRE -

services of car parking lots.

Consideration transferred EEAE
HK$'000
BEFT
Equity consideration (Note 25(d) B RE (Ait25(d)) 34,775
Cash consideration ReRE 11,903
46,678
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the PUEE B HRFT RS 2 B E R HER
date of acquisition are as follows: ZBEWT:
HK$000
BYETT
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 880
Fair value through profit or loss BATEG AER 97
Other non-current assets HMEmEEE 15,143
Trade receivables JE 8 BR X 1,234
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JB{ 3k 18 ~ ¥ & K E b fE UL G IR 1,349
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 17,384
Trade payables JE - BR X (3,387)
Other payables, provision and accrued HMEMNSRIE BERESEE
liabilities (15,089)
Tax payable JE A B 18 (1,540)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMRENRAR (3,786)

12,285




Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

30 EBEOF(E)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in (@) MR2018FWEEHFEEZ
Urban Parking in 2018 (continued) 100% Mz (&
Consideration transferred (continued) HEAE(E)
The fair value of assets and liabilities have been BEKBBZAFENREEE
determined on a provisional basis as the fair EEFE - TBHRERE 2 T#5
value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired BERBBEZATVEIGNRIISG
may be adjusted upon the completion of initial B FREAREBETARE M
accounting year which shall not exceed one year MEFFEASWE R HRHT
from the respective acquisition date. The fair FHA—F-FEATFEEAR
value is being valued by the internal valuation SERNEHERBHETEE
team of the Group.
The fair value of trade receivables of the EHEFEEEER 2 BBKERR
Urban Parking Group at the date of acquisition WEHBHZ2AFENAEY
amounted to approximately HK$1,234,000, which 1,234,0007T - 8148 & #) & %6 40
approximates to the gross contractual amounts. HoRBEREBERHR 2&EM
Based on the best estimate at acquisition date, FoTEHT ARSI E A DR S
the contractual cash flows are expected to be mE e
fully collected.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition: WEEEEA ZmE:
HK$'000
BEFT
Consideration transferred EHEARE 46,678
Less: net assets acquired B T E ERE (12,285)
Goodwill arising from acquisition WHEEEES 2 HE 34,393
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

30 EBEOF(E)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in (@) MR2018FWHEEHFEZ

Urban Parking in 2018 (continued) 100% &z (&)

Consideration transferred (continued) BEAE(E)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition because the ARG G AN B IEIE S 5 (E

cost of the combination included a control WEEBEEEEE - LIN &

premium. In addition, the consideration paid for HZENREERBEENESR

the combination effectively includes amounts SEHKEER KRRMSERER

in relation to the benefits of revenue growth, ATEBERBHEZEN2E AR

future market development and the assembled ZENG IR EAHNBETLEE

workforce of the Urban Parking Group. 2 WERIZ L - I 7] g E 5 B

These benefits are not recognised separately MR e

from goodwill because they do not meet the

recognition criteria for identifiable intangible

assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is W BEEBEEE  mEHRTE

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. BRABRHBMRIBZIAE °

Net cash outflow on the acquisition: WESHEEA RS MEF5E
HK$'000
BYETT

Cash consideration paid BENRERE (11,903)

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances WFRECReRREEEY

acquired R BR 17,384
Net cash inflow WEMAFHE 5,481

The Urban Parking Group did not have any
contribution to the Group's revenue or results
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as the
completion of the acquisition was just before 31
December 2018.

A WS FIEM2018F 12 A31
HRIZTK EHEEEEHNRE
EE E£2018F12A31BILtFE
W EE W B AR
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Urban Parking in 2018 (continued)

Consideration transferred (continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, total group revenue for the year would
have been HK$1,712 million, and profit for the
year would have been HK$358 million. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2018,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

Acquisition of 100% equity interest of
Jingji Capital in 2017

On 8 September 2017, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Shougang
Fund a limited liability company established
in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Group, to acquire 95% of the equity
interest in Jingji Capital, a limited liability
company established in the PRC. The acquisition
was completed on 13 December 2017. On
21 December 2017, the Group entered into
another sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to acquire 5% of the
equity interest in Jingji Capital. The principal
activity of Jingji Capital and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Jingji Capital
Group”) is the provision of private fund
management services in the PRC.

Consideration transferred

30 EBEOF(E)

(a)

(b)

R018FE B ERFEEZ
100%#E s (&)

BEAE(E)

s U B8 E 18 2 R2018F1A1H
TR CAFEEBRBEEEBN
BEB17.12870 FREFBLH
BAEKISSEIIL-EmEERHEMR
HEPARS  RPEETMBER
2018 F1H1AER R AEE B
BBz RS REEEE T
THRIERRIRFEE 2 FEA -

MP017FWEBREER
100%fE =

7201749880 @ AEEH
E2 (—HARPBRERKIZERE
FRARAKEMEEZZ2ENHB
RENFIVEEmE NI ER
HEA(—HRPBRKZZER
BEERA)Z95%M#E - &I
BR2017F128138 K - R
2017128218 AEEE—F
BYE=FFAURS—HEEH
H A R EE AR 2 5% o
REAAREMBRAR (FEA
[REEXAEE|) 2ZEXEBAR
FHRERELEESEBERS -

BFEE

HK$'000
BEFT

Cash Re

286,985
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30

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest of
Jingji Capital in 2017 (continued)
Consideration transferred (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition are as follows:

30

XBEH (B

R2017F B REER 2
100% %= (2)
BEEE (E)

R H I e B E R ER
ZBEWT:

HK$°000
BT
Property, plant and equipment M- WE REE 1,877
Financial assets at fair value through BERAFEGFABERZ
profit or loss — non-current CRMEE-JERD 121,596
Other non-current assets HEiIEREBEE 28,586
Trade receivables J7E W BR 31 5,102
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBf I8 « & & & E 4th B W FRTB 3,147
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss — current TRMEE-RD 34,223
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFEERS 74,936
Trade payables e BR X (374)
Other payables, provision and accrued HMERNZKIE BERESEE
liabilities (10,836)
Tax payable i ANERE (4,591)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHAR (11,102)
242,564

The fair value is being valued by Flagship
Appraisals and Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer, not
connected to the Group.

The fair value of trade receivables of the
Jingji Capital Group at the date of acquisition
amounted to approximately HK$5,102,000, which
approximates to the gross contractual amounts.
Based on the best estimate at acquisition date,
the contractual cash flows are expected to be
fully collected.

BRLTEEHEAEEYEEH
BB EEREREMER
BEFHBERARARETHR
(=

REAARSEEEURERFAKER
B2 A ELRB 5,102,000
T EBAENSEES - RER
W EE BH 2 S EMar TBET A
2EWBIEHNRERE-



(b)

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) EBEo (&)
Acquisition of 100% equity interest of R2017FWBEREER >
Jingji Capital in 2017 (continued) 100% 5 ()
Consideration transferred (continued) HENE (&)
Goodwill arising on the acquisition: WESEEEA 2 HE:
HK$'000
BEF T
Consideration transferred N (E 286,985
Plus: non-controlling interests in the mRREEAEEZEERER
Jingji Capital Group 9,261
Less: net assets acquired B T E EFEE (242,564)
Goodwill arising from acquisition WEEE2HE 53,682
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Goodwill arose in the acquisition because the
cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively includes
amounts in relation to the benefits of revenue
growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the Jingji Capital Group.
These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

& BFACAN B PR 45 HI AR (B
BRBEHELBE M
HZENREERBREREER
SHEBRAZR - RRTHERR
AABRER AP -
BN &SNS TN A A #5 E P
BEZHERFE RO HEBE
DR

B RESEHRELEZHERTE
BAAHRKEZEE -
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 30 XEBE/(E)

(b) Acquisition of 100% equity interest of (b) MR2M7FUBEBREELRZ
Jingji Capital in 2017 (continued) 100% & ()
Non-controlling interests FEIER
The non-controlling interests in subsidiaries of the R RHRER N REERE
Jingji Capital Group recognised at the acquisition M8 A A IR R T2
date were measured by reference to the non- EIERERIEGEREE RSN
controlling interests’ share of the recognised BRRIEEFEZEERSEE
amount of the net assets of respective subsidiaries TE + E X5 %9,261,0007T
of Jingji Capital and amounted to approximately
HK$9,261,000.

Net cash outflow on the acquisition: WHEEEEE 2R MEFE:
HK$'000
BB TFT
Cash consideration paid ENBEERE (286,985)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances WK R RREEEY
acquired W& R 74,936
Net cash outflow WemLFE (212,049)

The Jingji Capital Group did not have any
contribution to the Group’s revenue or results
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the
completion of the acquisition was just before 31
December 2017.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, total group revenue for the year would
have been HK$3,857 million, and profit for the
year would have been HK$56 million. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

mAR KB EEENR2017F12A
31HAIE  REEAREEEHAK
SE#HZE2017F12A318 EF
EZWaE R EETEARNER -

il B E T E M2017F1 A1H
T FRNEBBEETER AR
¥38.5718 7T - F N F i RS
0.56f8 - HE B RHEH R A A
® RPVEEIE TR MIEEE 72017
F1IATBERBAEESERR
B2 RS s IR E
RARRERE ZTER -
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(c)

Acquisition of 44.94% equity interest of
Shouzhong Investment in 2017

On 8 September 2017, the Group entered
into another sale and purchase agreement
with Shougang Fund to acquire 40% equity
interest in Shouzhong Investment, a limited
liability company established in the PRC. The
acquisition was completed on 21 December
2017. On 21 December 2017, the Group
entered into another sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to
acquire approximately 4.94% equity interest in
Shouzhong Investment (collectively referred to as
the “Second Acquisition”). The principal activity
of Shouzhong Investment and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Shouzhong
Investment Group”) is provision of design,
architecture, operation and management services
of car parking lots with a focus on smart car
parking system in the PRC.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group
has the right to nominate three out of the five
members of the board of directors of Shouzhong
Investment and is regarded as having control
over Shouzhong Investment. As such, Shouzhong
Investment is accounted for as a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
financial results of Shouzhong Investment is
consolidated into the results of the Group.

Consideration transferred

30 EBEOF(E)

(c)

R17EWBEFRREZ
44.94%REFH

MR2017F9A8R  AEBEY
MESITVTE—HEERRE U
WEEHRRE (—BERBEKT
ZEREMTERA)Z40%MKRE-
IR ERR2017F128218 5%
e R2017F12A8218 A& E
H-ZBIYE=ZFYR %
EEmHE NKRBEEFRERED
494%RE(HERIEZINE
FE|) BHREREMBEAQRR
(ZiBAR BEFREEE]) 22X
BERARPEANESEERER
GREHREREEM 2R B
B REBEREERY -

RUBERTKIL  NEEE#
RABTREEZEORKET
=B UWEREBETRE
ZEGIE-BAY EPREER
RRRZIEEMBRRAK:
YK EFREZWBFEAEREH
AREBEE -

BEAE

HK$'000
BETT

Cash

153,482
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 30 EBEH(E)
(c) Acquisition of 44.94% equity interest (0 R0M7FWEBEHREZ
of Shouzhong Investment in 2017 44.94% % (&)
(continued)
Consideration transferred (continued) HEHEAE(E)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the RUHE B ERFT S 2 B E R HER
date of acquisition are as follows: ZBEWT:
HK$'000
BEFT
Property, plant and equipment M- BB REE 620
Other non-current assets HMIERDEE 81,613
Interest in a joint venture R—EEERRZER 81,299
Trade receivables JfE U BR 31 1,308
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B 3K1H ~ &2 & & E b FE UG IE 39,938
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEGFABRY
profit or loss — current EMEE— R 80,453
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRS 96,810
Trade payables FETER K (2,109)
Other payables, provision and accrued B 5RI8 BERET AR
liabilities (47,390)
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTEMAE (14,072)
318,470

The fair value is being valued by Flagship
Appraisals and Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer, not
connected to the Group.

The fair value of trade receivables of the
Shouzhong Investment Group at the date
of acquisition amounted to approximately
HK$1,308,000 which approximates to the gross
contractual amounts. Based on the best estimate
at acquisition date, the contractual cash flows are
expected to be fully collected.

BRATEEHENEEYERH
BZBYABRERMGEMER
BENFEBEEARARETHR
&

BEPREEB ZEKERR
WEBHZAFENABE
1,308,000 T " B148 & #) & BE 4
HoRBARWERB &EM
H ML EEREANES

N=g=}
JLE °



30

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 30 EBEH(E)
() Acquisition of 44.94% equity interest R017FWBEHREREZ
of Shouzhong Investment in 2017 44.94% % (&)
(continued)
Consideration transferred (continued) HEZMAE(E)
Goodwill arising on the acquisition: WEEEEAZmE:
HK$'000
BT T
Consideration transferred EEAE 153,482
Plus: non-controlling interests in the M REFRESE ZFTERER
Shouzhong Investment Group 209,602
Less: net assets acquired BTN BB E R E (318,470)
Goodwill arising from acquisition WEEEZHE 44,614

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

Goodwill arose in the acquisition because the
cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for
the combination effectively included amounts
in relation to the benefits of revenue growth,
future market development and the assembled
workforce of the Shouzhong Investment Group.
These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the Second
Acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in the Shouzhong
Investment Group recognised at the acquisition
date were measured by reference to the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amount of the net assets of
Shouzhong Investment and respective subsidiaries
of Shouzhong Investment and amounted to
approximately HK$209,602,000.

& BFRCAN B PR 45 HI A (B
BRBEHELBE M
HZENREERBEETRE
SHEBRAZR - RRTHERR
AABRER AP -
BRSNS T A #5 E P
BEZERFE @RI HEBE

7R

B E_WBERELZHER
TR RAHRKREAZIER -

H R Ea

REBERERZRETRE
KEZFEBRER 2 E A
EEZHETRENETRE
ERMBARZEEFELD#
REBIHLIFAE WREE
209,602,0007T °
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of 44.94% equity interest
of Shouzhong Investment in 2017
(continued)

Non-controlling interests

Net cash outflow on the acquisition:

EBaot (&)
(9 R2017FBBEFREZ

44.94% = (&)

H R E
WHREREL ZHE R FRE:

HK$'000

BEF T

Cash consideration paid ENBEERE (153,482)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances WK R RREEEY

acquired R 96,810

Net cash outflow RemH F8E (56,672)

The Shouzhong Investment Group did not have
any contribution to the Group’s revenue or results
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the
completion of the Second Acquisition was just
before 31 December 2017.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, total group revenue for the year would
have been HK$3,821 million, and profit for the
year would have been HK$42 million. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

Costs of acquisitions

Costs related to acquisition during the year
amounting to HK$925,000 (2017: HK$3,494,000)
have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an
expense in current year, within the administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(d)

BREZWREEEEN2017F
12A31BRITN BFRIREER
HAREEEE2017F12A31H
IHFEZRSNEETETAE
f%jio

i B BB E R2017F1H1H
#38.2 187 - F Am A A&
0BT -HEEREMHFAR
®RMEEIE TR MR 102017
F1A1A TR RSB S ERRE
J W R EEE I HE
BARRELE 2 TER -

W B R A

FAKEEE Z2HBEKXKEB
¥925,0007T (20174 : B ¥
3,494,0007T ) 3 5T A 8 & K
B WRAFERGEZE K
RPZITBASZNERAE—EA
350



Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited

BEREBRGESREAT
Annual Report 2018 F 5§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £E2018F 12 A31H L FE

31 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a)

On 23 March 2018, the Group acquired an
additional 44.95% equity interest of Shouzhong
Investment for a consideration of RMB209.9
million (equivalent to HK$227.4 million).
The consideration was settled by issuance of
1,047,931,056 shares of the Company (Note
25(b)). Upon the completion of this acquisition,
the Company’'s shareholding in Shouzhong
Investment increased from 44.94% to 89.89%.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-
controlling interests of HK$153,618,000 and
decrease in equity of HK$73,783,000 attributable
to owners of the Company.

On 6 September 2018, the Group's interest
in Shouzhong Investment increased from
89.89% to 100% upon a deemed acquisition
without consideration transferred. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$37,193,000 and increase in equity of
HK$37,193,000 attributable to the owners of the
Company.

During the year, the Group has completed several
transactions with non-controlling interests, which
are in the management’'s opinion not material
to the Group, within the Shouzhong Investment
Group and Jingji Capital Group. The Group
recognised increases in non-controlling interest
of HK$4,836,000 and decrease in equity of
HK$4,836,000 attributable to the owners of the
Company.

There were no transactions with non-controlling
interests in 2017.

31 EFERERETZIXRS

(a)

20183 A23H AL B Ui
B RARNEEING 95% R - R
BEHARE2009E T (HER
BHEE2.274187T) ~RETABE
17X B11,047,931,056 8% A% 1
75 22 A (B #E25(b) ) - M #%
WHESEKE ARRREPRE
B35 A% B 44.94 %32 Z£89.89% o
I £ B T 5 S 1 AR 2k D B I
153,618,0007T K % B J& i #E 24
AL #73,783,0007T °

MR2018%F9A6H RN —EHBKRA
WENEREERZE NEER
BRI ENEEARS9.89%HEE
100% ° RN&E E R IEIER E =
B #837,193,0007T i A 3R fE
GRS I B 37,193,0007T °

FAAREED EIEERERT
KETRG BERERR ZF
RPGHAEBBHFER MEH
PREEBERREEASEBE
Ko AN 55 B W sR JE 450 AR P 2 1 N
75 #4,836,0007T + M A% S FE(E AR
1 55 R D B #54,836,0007T ©

2017 F I FEEAFEIE I MR 7T
R
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32

INTERESTS IN COMMITMENTS 32 HEEZEm
32.1 Operating lease commitments - Group 321 REMEAFZ-KELATESR
company as lessee ABEA
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Minimum lease payments paid FARBELROMEZN
under operating leases during ZREMSHOT:
the year are as follows:
Land and buildings T REF 4,863 4,798

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

PR & B A R B AR SR T AT A

4%

i)

REMHZARZEEE K%
A ZEHeRET:

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Within one year —F RN 44,514 6,598
In the second to fifth years FE_EZERF

inclusive (BREERMF) 101,346 4,887

145,860 11,485

The Group leases certain of its office premises in AEBBRBELERNTHERAM

Hong Kong and the PRC under operating lease
arrangements. As at 31 December 2018, leases
for properties are negotiated for one to three
years.

REBERFBZETEFEY
#.42018F12A31H %Y
¥R EmHERE—ZE=F-
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32 INTERESTS IN COMMITMENTS (continued) 32 FAEzEz:(E)
32.2 Operating lease commitments - Group 322 REMEAFZ-KEQATESR

32.3

company as lessor

HEA

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB F T BT T
Minimum lease payments received £ PR 75 48 ‘& 2 #9 B Y BR
under operating leases during ZREMSMT:
the year are as follows:
Investment properties wEME 216 216

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

RBEHRBRE  NEEEBP
B &l

contracted with tenants for the following future YERNZzARREEBEE WA
minimum lease payments: ™~
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Within one year —F RN 132 193
Capital commitments 323 EXREHE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Capital expenditure contracted MEEEETEZERY
for but not provided in the BARREGE M BmE
consolidated financial statements #2318 2 & AR X
in respect of capital injection to
investment fund - 36,024
Capital expenditure contracted WHEEESME 2B RTH
for but not provided in the BARREGE M BHRE
consolidated financial statements #2318 2 & AFI X
in respect of acquisition of
carpark properties - 118,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

33 SFEBREREBRMEE

33.1 Cash generated from/(used in) 331 REEKEL (A ZES
operations
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT JEM T T
Cash flows from REEBREEZ
operating activities HEeRE
Profit before income tax B AT 15 B Al & 366,782 57,286
Adjustments for: HTHNEBELFAE:
Interest income ) B BA (36,559) (6,501)
Interest expenses FEX H 5,699 17,392
Exchange difference fE X ZER (2,229) 7,838
Share of results of associates b /N I (275,363) (248,525)
Share of result of a joint venture BEEERRICER (3,253) -
Gain from changes in fair value WEMERNTEEF
of investment properties Z Wz (7,952) (900)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERZEZ
and equipment meE 1,120 259
Amortisation of other non-current  E b 3F 7% B & 2 % 14
assets 16,736 -
Fair value change of financial assets XA FEAEBZZ
at fair value through profit or loss & @EEZ
N EEE (44,826) -
Net (gains)/losses relating to BFHEMREHN . ()
commodity contracts Vel Eibx (44,713) 122,461
(Reversal of provision)/provision for [ 4 B 5% & H & Uk
impairment losses for trade and TRIE (BB ER)
other receivables V% (13,898) 25,227
Wavier of trade payable to a R IER — BB TR
related party - (8,212)
Operating cash flows before LEEEHA
movements in working capital KERERE (38,456) (33,675)
Trade and bills receivables R R R R B iE 719,138 (447,742)
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRIE -ZE R
receivables H g Y kI8 (14,869) (26,102)
Trade receivables from related JE i B B R BR FOR
companies - 8,704
Trade and bills payables ERERKER (507,583) 290,615
Other payables, provision, accrued — E {th i~ 7018 - B4
liabilities and contract liabilities BB ERGHNAEE (27,074) (11,162)
Cash generated from/(used in) REEBEE S
operations (FFA) 2R & 131,156 (219,362)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS (continued)

33.2

33.3

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

This section sets out an analysis of liabilities
arising from financing activities and the
movements in liabilities arising from financing
activities for each of the years presented.

33

GEREREBRWE (&)
332 MEEBHZABEYR

REHHR 255 FERAE
BHELZAARABELHER -

Borrowings

(Note 27)

(RS

(MizE27)

HK$'000

BB TF T

At 1 January 2017 MR2017F1 /818 616,783
Financing cash flows MEREME (621,154)
Exchange differences fEH =% 4,371
At 31 December 2017 720176124318 -
At 1 January 2018 201851 H1H -
Financing cash flows MEREME 99,331
Exchange differences M N E R 3,812
At 31 December 2018 201812 HA31H 103,143

Major non-cash transactions

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the consideration of HK$34,775,000 for
the acquisition of equity interest of Urban
Parking was settled through issue of shares
of the Company (Note 30 (a)).

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group acquired an additional equity
interest of Shouzhong Investment by issue
of shares of the Company (Note 31 (a)).

FEHFRERS

(a) MEZE2018F12A318
IEFE - WEZHEER
72 KRB #34,775,000
TEBEBEITARTRMD
S A+ (KiE30(a)) ©

33.3

(b) MEZE2018F12A318
LEFE ARAFABBER
TRAB RGO WEE PR
®E 2 BINIRBE (BT 5E
31(a)) °
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34

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Group is a subsidiary of Shougang Holding, which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co.,
Ltd. (formerly known as Shougang Corporation), a state-
owned enterprise under the supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Accordingly, the Company and the Group
are significantly influenced by Shougang Group.
Shougang Group is part of a larger group of companies
under the PRC government. Accordingly, the Group is a
government related entity in accordance with HKAS 24.
The transactions and balances with Shougang Group and
other PRC government related entities are disclosed in
note (a) to (c).

(@) Transactions with related parties

34

BAEE A TR

AEBREMZERZMBAR A
REBEEEBEREZEQEBZHA
xR BHEEARAR (5 S HE
RE)ZE2EWBAR - EHt ARA R
AEBHZINEMEB ZEATYE B
MEERTERAET - R AR
Ez— Rt REFEEFERNFE24
BoAKESRAHBER - BEME
BREMFERFEBEEETZIRS
R AERRIN I T (a) = P FE (R EE

(a) EREABATETZXS

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T JBE M TF T
Shougang Group EEiEYL
— Sales by the Group (Note (iv))  —AEBIEE (Ait(v)) 572 2,040
— Other income by the Group —AREBEMUYA
(Note (iv)) (K7 (iv)) 710 2,040
— Purchases by the Group —REBEHE
(Note (i) and (iv)) (B0 % (>v)) 2,086 541,229
- Underwriting commission —AMAEBEKBRBIHEAS
charged to the Group (B1EEGD % (iv))
(Note (ii) and (iv)) - 10,524
— Finance cost (Note (iv)) —RERAR (Hatav)) 4,690 =
- Rental expenses (Note (iv)) —-MemZ (Hitov)) 4,625 =
- Management fee expenses —EBRBRY (Mitdv))
(Note (iv)) 1,640 960
Associate of the Group AEEZHE QT
— Services provided by the Group — A% B2 H AR
(Note (iv)) (K17Edv)) - 1,560
- Fund management fee income —AEBZHES
by the group (Note (iii) and (iv)) ~ EIEBBUL A
(B 32 i) & (iv) ) 93,442 =
— Interest income by the Group —AREBEMUYA
(Note (iv)) (Htaziv) ) 849 -
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes: (i) Shougang Group provides materials, leasing
and management services to the Group.

(i) The commission expenses are charged
by Shougang Group in respect of the
underwriting of open offer shares by
Shougang Group as set out in note 25.

(iii) The Group provides fund management
services to its associate.

(iv) The terms of the transactions are mutually
agreed between the Group and the counter
parties.

In addition, details of acquisition of subsidiaries
from Shougang Group, transaction with non-
controlling interest involved Shougang Group and
the other borrowing obtained from a related party
are disclosed in notes 30, 31 and 27, respectively.

Balances with Shougang Group

Details of balances with the Group's related
companies are set out in note 21.

34

BABATRE (&)

(a)

(b)

EEBALETZRS (&)

Kz () B EERAEEIR
Hok - HEREER
& o

(ii) SAnFsE25 T - E 3
SERARABEERM
ZEEERESER -

(iii) AEE AR E QT
RHESEERRS-

(iv) R ZIGERTIAARE
B =S FHEEWE

o B R EBEKENE R
GRS E=F kSR el g: £
7T 2R PR — % B 7 B
BEMERZFHIF D I ERM T
30 - 3127 -

e fed

BRABNEERE QR 2 E0ReF
BENM 21 -
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(c)

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 34 RBHBALTHE (&)
Compensation of key management (0 EBBABZHFM (£)
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members EENEMFEEEENERE
of key management personnel during the year is NZBemT:
as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
EHT T BT T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 5,169 3,620
Post-employment benefits RIKETN 22 18
5,191 3,638
The remuneration of key management personnel TEEBRANBZHeHESSE
is determined by the Remuneration Committee TrHFMEEGETE WEER
of the Board of Directors having regard to the MIHER - FmF B 2 TSR
market practice, competitive market position and KAERIA LRI
individual performance.
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 35 [ERRREETE

35

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2002 Scheme”) on 7 June 2002.

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to enable the

Company to grant share options to selected participants

as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or its associated

companies (as defined under the 2002 Scheme).
The 2002 Scheme was adopted on 7 June 2002 and
terminated on 29 May 2012.

RRQBIR2002F6 A7THRMAN T —EE
fx#EstEl ([2002F 58] ) -

025 EIEEEALNAIREERH
ERTHEREEARSHARRK
HMBAR R SEBEQR (EER
2002 5T &) FrtE B B 2 BB =k 22 B -
20024 5+ 8 72002F6 A7 8 H 4 &R
2012F5H29H 4% || »
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors may,
at its discretion, offer directors (including executive and
non-executive directors), executives, officers, employees
or certain other eligible participants, share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option was
determined by the Board of Directors at its absolute
discretion and was not less than the highest of (i) the
official closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the
average of the official closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer of share options. Each of the grantees was required
to pay HK$1 as consideration for the grant of share
options in accordance with the 2002 Scheme. The offer
of a grant of share options must be accepted within
60 days from the date of the offer. All the outstanding
share options which had been fully vested as at 31
December 2016 were cancelled during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2017, no share
options under the 2002 Scheme were exercised.

35

BRESE (F)

RIF2002F 58 EFGHBERNES
(BREATEIFRTESR) THRAER
TE REIETEMLRERZHEER
TREEARBEARRRD

EERECOTEECHESS2RE
T HZEBETBLRATZESE
(DR B IR B B 1 IR 19 OB 22
FTERMEBERABIEARTE: (VB
EREEREAHIAEEEERAA
RORBRXMEERERMABRFEAE
FUWAE  RGNAR AR R ERES
A BB EE - 1R IER2002F 51 & - F &
BARBEWER T 2BRERAINE
BATEAREB-FIIREBE T 2 ERE
ARREEHAHRI60R AEMR R
2016F12A31HE2EEBZATE X
TR EREYREZE2017F12H318
IEBA B E TS o

HZE2017F12A31HILFEE B ERE
2002 4F 5+ &I 1718 (E fr] B A% 4 -
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

KRBz M BRRR R EEE B

As at 31 December

®12H318
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 RE 2,323,740 2,323,740
Investment in an associate R—EBE QT2 E 4,876 4,876
Amounts due from subsidiaries BETHB AR 2B 7,194,755 3,595,030
Assets relating to commodity contracts BB mA N2 EE
- non-current —FENRH 150,193 151,244
9,673,564 6,074,890
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - 1Ze REA
receivables WA 8,923 3,367
Loan to a subsidiary BERT—HMMBAFR - 207,039
Assets relating to commodity contracts BEE ANz EE
— current —mE 3,425 =
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERS 2,775,597 995,740
2,787,945 1,206,146
Total assets mEE 12,461,509 7,281,063
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued liabilities EAEMZBEREFEE 6,701 1,441
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB AR 2 RE - 815,737
Other financial liabilities HEthemalE 359 359
Liabilities relating to commodity FHmmeazaE
contracts - 18,853
7,060 836,390
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital & 2 8,830,429 7,349,545
Reserves (Note) e (M at) 3,624,020 (904,899)
12,454,449 6,444,646
Total liabilities and equity HWEBEREDS 12,461,509 7,281,036

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019
and was signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Tianyang
HXE
Director

EF

AAB 2 EARNEKER2019F3 26

=

Liang Hengyi
Director

Z2F

PESEEedE TATIHIEETRRE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

36 ADNFZHBRRRRFEHERE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Note: et -
(Accumulated
Share loss)/retained
option reserve earning Total
(RetEE)
BRERE REBF &5t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB F T BT T BT T
Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 B2 &8 289,560 (1,048,014) (758,454)
Loss for the year and total FEBERTERXEHE
comprehensive expense - (146,445) (146,445)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31B 2 &8k 289,560 (1,194,459) (904,899)
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 A Z &8 289,560 (1,194,459) (904,899)
Profit for the year and total FEMNLEEBALE
comprehensive income — 4,528,919 4,528,919
Reclassification of share option EMOEBERERER
reserve to accumulated loss RitEi8 (289,560) 289,560 =
Balance at 31 December 2018 HR2018F 12 A31A 2 &8k - 3,624,020 3,624,020
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37

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A)

emoluments

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

nineteen (2017: eight) directors were as follows:

37

EEEMNRME (RE B D AFRE
56622F 55383 1% * 58622GE N A

(BARESZEMNERMEE) KRR
BB LEMRAERKE)

(A) EERTHAZME

BN+ % (2017F N\
BIEFSAZHMET

Contributions

Salaries  to retirement
and other benefit
Fees benefits scheme Total 2017
Fek RIKEH 20174
e Hit g H TR =h
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BETFT BT BEFT
2017 2017F
Executive directors ARATRHTES
of the Company
LI Shaofeng FhE - - - -
SHU Hong Eipees - 2,400 18 2,418
DING Rucai T&F - - - -
Non-executive directors AATFYTES
of the Company
LEUNG Shun Sang Tony 2% 230 - - 230
ZHANG Bingcheng RIRA S = - -
Independent Non-executive AATBIFHTES
directors of the Company
KAN Lai Kuen Alice BER 330 - - 330
LEUNG Kai Cheung Kenneth REE 330 - - 330
WONG Kun Kim BEHB 330 - - 330
Total emoluments AL 1,220 2,400 18 3,638
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

EEENRMZE (REBQAFRA
56622F 55383 1% * 55622GE 1\ A

(BARESENEREKE) RAR
BRETRAUERKE) (&)

(continued)
(A) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s A EBEERITHAZME (&)
emoluments (continued)
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefit
Fees benefits scheme Total 2018
FeR BIKER 20185
e HihgFl BE- L3 A
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFT BETT BEFT
2018 20184
Executive directors AABHTES

of the Company
LI Shaofeng DIk - - - -
LIANG Hengyi (Note (a)) 2EE (Hiit@) - 2,376 14 2,390
SHU Hong (Note (b)) & (HaEb) - 696 8 704
XU Liang (Note (b)) RE (Hwm) - - - -
ZHAO Tianyang (Note (a)) HRE (B1) - - - -
DING Rucai (Note (a)) TA (Hiit(a) - = = =
Non-executive directors ADAFHTES

of the Company
HO Gilbert Chi Hang (Note (b))  IE18 (#7#(b)) 155 = - 155
Ll Hao (Note (c) T (HiE(c) 39 - - 39
Ll Yinhui (Note (a)) TR (W itE) 306 - - 306
LIU Jingwei (Note (a)) BRE (Wit@) 247 - - 247
LEUNG Shun Sang Tony (Note () RIB% (#3t(d)) 87 - - 87
ZHANG Bingcheng (Note (a) ~ TRIBAK (#152(a)) - = = =
Independent Non-executive AARBIFHTES

directors of the Company
KAN Lai Kuen Alice (Note () ~ EEIE (i) 126 = - 126
DENG Yougao (Note (d)) H8: (Wiw) 200 = = 200
LEUNG Kai Cheung Kenneth REE (W)

(Note (d)) 126 - - 126
WONG Kun Kim (Note () "2YB (i) 126 = = 126
CHOI Fan Keung Vic (Note (d) ~ B&% (H7(d) 192 - - 192
WANG Xin (Note (d)) T& (M) 204 - - 204
ZHANG Quanling (Note (a)) KRB (MitE) 289 - - 289
Total emoluments WemsE 2,097 3,072 22 5,191
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37

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(A)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

Notes:

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Liang Hengyi, Dr. Li Yinhui,
Mr. Liu Jingwei and Ms. Zhang Quanling were
appointed, and Mr. Ding Rucai and Mr. Zhang
Bingcheng resigned, as directors with effect from 6
January 2018.

Mr. Xu Liang and Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang were
appointed, and Mr. Shu Hung resigned, as directors
with effect from 21 May 2018.

Mr. Li Hao was appointed as a director with effect
from 27 September 2018.

Mr. Leung Shun Sang Tony and Ms. Kan Lai Kuen
Alice retired, Mr. Wong Kun Kim and Mr. Leung Kai
Cheung resigned, and Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Choi Fan
Keung Vic and Mr. Deng Yougao were appointed,
as Directors with effect from the conclusion of
the 2018 annual general meeting held on 18 May
2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

37

(A)

EEEMNRME (RE B D AFRE
56622F 55383 1% * 58622GE N A

(BARESZEMNEREKE) KRR
BBETRAUERKE) (&)

Bat -

ESRTRARMS (&)

MABLEE REEREE T
BEEL AEELERER
BUTHZTAREE URT
AR ERERAK G EBTE
£ H2018F1A6A#EK -

BREXAERMNEELEES
TAEES ARG LALEBRT
EEH2018F5A821BE4E
o

THELERBZERES B
2018F9H27B AW -

RIBEFXERBBEBLLTRE
EE EHBEERREER
ABAEE RISHL 2E
MEERBERLEREZ TR
£ E H2018F5818H £ 17
Z2018FERRBAF RS LEREZ
EX

ERATEEMS I BRES
RHEEEAQRTARAEERS
B2 R - Lt Ik
HITESME T ERBRENER
ARFEEMBARZERR
AR i S o bl 98 57 FE
TEEMS T BERBSFERAE
REEERERE XA -
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(A)

(B)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

(continued)

Mr. Li Shaofeng, the Managing Director of the
Company, has overall chief executive responsibility
for the Group's business development and day-to-
day management generally and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Managing Director. Mr. Li Shaofeng
has voluntarily waived his monthly salary of
HK$315,000 since 1 March 2014.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no

emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or

benefits in respect of termination of Directors’

services were paid or made, directly or indirectly,

to the Directors; nor are any payable (2017: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z=2018F12A31H It FE

37

38

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(continued)

(@)

(D)

(E)

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services. (2017: nil)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2018, there are no loans,
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2017: nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2018 or at any time during
the year (2017: nil).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 19 March 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements with several subscribers,
pursuant to which the subscribers have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, a total of
3,384,043,134 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.25 per subscription share.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LFEMBERE
RESULTS Ef
Year ended 31 December
BZN2A31BLLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
BEFT BT BT BT BETT
Revenue WA 1,906,787 416,121 1,035,606 3,816,145 1,676,296
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BB)EF (2,038,372)  (3,889,639)  (1,954,220) 57,286 356,771
attributable to: ATALER:
Owners of the Company K& (1,640,708) (3,349,310) (1,621,162) 57,286 353,097
Non-controlling interests FEERRER (397,664) (540,329) (333,058) = 3,674
(2,038,372)  (3,889,639)  (1,954,220) 57,286 356,771
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHRAE
At 31 December
R12A31R
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BB BETT
Total assets BEE 25,887,668 21,262,373 5,847,436 8,186,309 9,430,385
Total liabilities BARE (21,644,268)  (21,042,435)  (1,142,226) (942,657) (434,929)
4,243,400 219,938 4,705,210 7,243,652 8,995,456
Equity attributable to
owners of the Company BRREGER 4,825,802 1,336,312 4,705,210 7,024,789 8,966,257
Non-controlling interests EERER (582,402)  (1,116,374) - 218,863 29,199
4,243,400 219,938 4,705,210 7,243,652 8,995,456
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RENXRBRE

Particulars of major investment properties held by the Group as AEBER2018F12A31HBEEZETEREY

at 31 December 2018 are as follows: XFBOT:
Group Category of

Property Use interest  the lease

EEFEZ
LY A Em  HAHAER
Flat A2 on 8th Floor, BB Residential 100%  Long-term lease
Pearl City Mansion, i 78 /2 = 100% RHALY
Nos. 22-36 Paterson Street, B fE#722-365%
Causeway Bay, Rk RESIEA2E
Hong Kong
L1-L3 Floor, Pl Operation of 100%  Self-owned property
222 Jirui Five Road, Pk & i car parking lot 100% HBHHE#E
Chengdu High-tech Zone, = ¥R i K REISKE
Sichuan Province 2225k N 1-3[8

China
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